NEW HANOVER COUNTY
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

230 Government Center Drive, Lucie Harrell Conference Room, Wilmington, NC 28403
Members of the Board
Cameron Moore, Chair | Kristin Freeman, Vice-Chair
Henry “Hank"” Adams | Maverick Pate | Luke Waddell
Board Alternates
Pete DeVita | Richard Kern | Michael Keenan, Sr.

Rebekah Roth, Director of Planning & Land Use | Sharon Huffman, Deputy County Attorney

April 27, 2021, 5:30 PM

I. Call Meeting to Order (Chairman Cameron Moore)
Il. Approval of March Minutes (currently in draft status)

March Member Attendees: Cameron Moore, Kristin Freeman, Maverick Pate, Luke Waddell
lll. Regular Items of Business

Case BOA-958 — Sean McDonough, applicant, on behalf of Brett and Christy Tanner, property
owners, is requesting a variance of 8.8’ from the 15’ minimum side yard setback requirement per
Section 3.2.6.D of the New Hanover County Unified Development Ordinance. The property is
zoned R-20S, Residential District and is located at 8020 Bald Eagle Lane.

Case BOA-959 — Keith Williams, applicant and property owner, is requesting a variance of 10’
from the 20" minimum Performance Residential Development periphery setback requirement
per Section 3.1.3.D(1)(a) of the New Hanover County Unified Development Ordinance. The
property is zoned R-15, Residential District and is located at 6900 Persimmon Place.

Case BOA-960 — Palm Investment, Inc., applicant and property owner, is requesting a variance of
10’ from the 20’ minimum Performance Residential Development periphery setback
requirement per Section 3.1.3.D(1)(a) of the New Hanover County Unified Development
Ordinance. The property is zoned R-15, Residential District and is located at 502 Pilots Ridge
Road.

Case BOA-961 — Oxford House Showman, applicant, on behalf of Javarah and Mary Joseph,
property owners, is requesting a reasonable accommodation under the Federal Fair Housing Act
per Section 10.3.13 of the Unified Development Ordinance to allow up to 8 residents in a group
home. The property is zoned R-15, Residential District and is located at 314 Silva Terra Drive.

Case BOA-962 — Jeffrey Serens, applicant, on behalf of Ted Meehan, property owner, is
requesting a variance of 10’ from the 20’ minimum Performance Residential Development
periphery setback requirement per Section 3.1.3.D(1)(a) of the New Hanover County Unified
Development Ordinance. The property is zoned R-15, Residential District and is located at 1140
Lt. Congleton Road.

IV. Other Business
V. Adjourn



MINUTES

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

The New Hanover County Zoning Board of Adjustment held a regular and duly advertised meeting at 5:30 P.M. at the New
Hanover County Government Center Complex, 230 Government Center Drive, in the Lucie Harrell Conference Room,
Wilmington, NC, on Tuesday, March 23, 2021.

Members Present Members Absent
Cameron Moore, Chairman Hank Adams
Kristin Freeman, Vice-Chair Pete DeVita

Luke Waddell Michael Keenan
Maverick Pate Richard Kern

Ex Officio Members Present

Ken Vafier, Executive Secretary

Sharon Huffman, County Attorney

Rebekah Roth, Planning & Land Use Director
Marty Little, Long Range Planner

Denise Brown, Zoning Admin Technician

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 P.M. by the Chairman, Mr. Cameron Moore.

Mr. Moore stated the Board of Adjustment is a quasi-judicial board appointed by the Board of Commissioners to consider
ordinance variances from residents in New Hanover County where special conditions would create unnecessary hardships.
The Board of Adjustment also hears appeals of the County’s interpretation in enforcement of the Unified Development
Ordinance. The appellants have thirty days in which to appeal any decision made by the Board to Superior Court.

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS

Mr. Maverick Pate made a motion to adopt the minutes from the February 23, 2021 meeting. Vice-Chair Freeman second
the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

Sharon Huffman gave overview that four board members present at today’s hearing is a quorum for decisions on the
agenda’s cases. However, all four members must agree to grant variances to be approved. The two applicants for the
cases on the agenda agreed to move forward with the case hearings.

The Chairman then swore in County staff Ken Vafier.

CASE ZBA-956

Mr. Vafier presented an overview of the case stating the petitioner, Kenneth Haynes, applicant, on behalf of Jeffrey and
Jeane Finucan, property owners, is requesting a variance of 8.33’ from the 20’ minimum rear yard setback requirement
per Section 3.2.9.D of the New Hanover County Unified Development Ordinance. The property is zoned R-10, Residential

District and is located at 4504 Barnards Landing Road.

Mr. Vafier stated the applicant intends to construct a 1,128-sf pool enclosure on the subject property. The subject
property is located on a 0.27-acre lot, and currently contains an existing 384 sf shed adjacent to an in-ground pool. The



applicant applied for a screened-in enclosure to cover the in-ground pool, but a re-submittal was required as the total
area of the accessory structure would require that it meets the principal setbacks for the R-10 district.

The UDO defines an accessory structure subordinate to a principal structure and use, the use of which is customarily
found in association with and is clearly incidental to the use of the principal structure of the land and which is not attached
by any part of a common wall or roof to the principle structure. The UDO allows for two different types of subdivision
designs, Performance Residential and Conventional Residential Developments.

The subject site is in the Huntington Forest subdivision which was recorded in 1994. The site is listed as conventional
development and subject to the required rear yard setback in the R-10 district of 20’ as specified in Section 3.2.9 of the
uDO.

The new enclosure will be attached to the existing shed and will total 1,512 sf. The structure would require to meet the
20’ rear yard setback. The applicant is requesting to locate the enclosure over the existing concrete pool deck, which
would be set back 11’ 8” from the rear property line for an encroachment of 8.33’ into the required setback.

Mr. Vafier stated the applicant contends that they began the project under the impression the enclosure could encroach
up to 5’ from the property line, and the pool and surrounding deck has already been installed and cannot be altered at
this time.

Mr. Vafier stated the applicants are requesting variance from the minimum rear yard setback requirement of 20’ in order
to construct a 1,128-sf pool enclosure on the site over the existing pool and deck. The applicant states this enclosure will

provide security to the pool and protection from surrounding wildlife.

Mr. Vafier presented an aerial photo of the subject site displaying the in-ground pool, the shed and the rear of the
property line.

Mr. Waddell asked what type of screening will be around the pool.

Mr. Vafier stated the applicant provided a site plan displaying an aluminum type frame with exterior screen for the pool.
Chairman Moore asked if anything over the 600 sf would require the rear 20 ft setback back.

Mr. Vafier stated structures over 600 sf would require a 20 ft rear setback.

Vice-Chair Freeman asked how close the shed to the property line is.

Mr. Vafier stated the shed currently sits 5’ from property line per initial site plan. The applicant submitted plans for permit
approval however the plan was denied due to not meeting the required rear setback requirements.

Mr. Pate asked why the setback changes with structures over 600 sf.
Mr. Vafier stated with larger structures additional setbacks are needed.
Chairman Moore asked if the shed was conforming.

Mr. Vafier stated the shed would not be considered non-conforming; with a variance approval it would apply to the rear
setback encroachment primarily.

Chairman Moore then swore in Mr. Jeff Finucan and Mr. Kenneth Haynes.



Mr. Jeffrey Finucan - Mr. Finucan presented as owner of the subject site and requested that Mr. Kenneth Haynes speak
on behalf of the variance request.

Mr. Kenneth Haynes- Mr. Haynes stated that the applicant reached out to him requesting a pool enclosure to comply
with fencing requirements in having a pool, in addition wanted to keep younger members out of the pool unless they
were supervised. Mr. Haynes stated the applicant has family members with allergies and requested the pool enclosure to
have a screen.

Mr. Haynes stated the enclosure is totally aluminum with screen walls and roof. Mr. Haynes stated he was told the setback
was 5’ by the property owner. As they were applying for permits with a structure over 600 sf the setback was informed

to be 20 ft from the rear. Mr. Haynes stated the hardship a shed was previously constructed to the rear of the pool.

The piping for the pool has been placed in the ground with concrete outlining it. Mr. Haynes stated the pool and concrete
cannot be removed. Mr. Haynes stated he was not aware of the setback requirements.

Vice-Chair Freeman asked about the framing, particularly how far past the pool the structure is to be placed.

Mr. Haynes stated the enclosure will be around the structure. The height will be about 10 ft tall.

Mr. Pate asked about the safety of the enclosure.

Mr. Haynes stated the screened is see thru and does not block adjacent neighbor views. In addition, the enclosures provide
a safety net for smaller members of the household in entering the pool unsupervised. The enclosure is free standing from
the primary residence.

Chairman Moore asked if there is a limit on accessory structures.

Mr. Waddell asked if there is an HOA in the community.

Mr. Haynes stated the residence is not associated with an HOA. There is a fence surrounding the residence, however it
does not comply with pool requirements.

Mr. Vafier stated per the county Building Safety department permitted the pool site plan as submitted.

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED

BOARD DISCUSSION

The Board discussed the applicant’s proposal of constructing a pool enclosure to provide safety and security in addition
to the plans as submitted. The Board agreed the applicant presents with an unnecessary hardship as the pool has been
placed in the ground and with concrete surrounding it, and that the applicant was not clear of the regulated rear setback
prior to pool placement. The Board talked about the shed to the rear of the property already being in place.

The Board generally discussed the building code, setbacks, and hardship this circumstance presents for the applicant.

BOARD DECISION

On a motion by Mr. Maverick Pate and seconded by Mr. Luke Waddell, the board voted 4-0 to grant the variance at 4504
Barnards Landing Road, Wilmington NC.



The Board's decision was based on the following conclusions and findings of fact:

1. Itis the Board's conclusion that, if the applicant complies with the literal terms of the ordinance, specifically a
variance of 8.33’ from the 20’ minimum rear yard setback requirement per Section 3.2.9.D of the New Hanover
County Unified Development Ordinance, that an unnecessary hardship would result. This conclusion is based on
the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

e The installation of the enclosure is a method that will comply with fencing requirements per the NC Building
Code.

2. Itis the Board's conclusion that the hardship of which the applicant complains results from unique circumstances
related to the subject property, such as location, size, or topography. This conclusion is based on the following
FINDINGS OF FACT:

o With the existing shed, the size of the lot provides limitations on the room to place the enclosure on an R-10
lot.

3. It is the Board’s conclusion that the hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property
owner. This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

e The UDO does allow for accessory structures and pools, with a requirement that fencing be placed around a
pool.
e The property owner did not take any action to cause the hardship.

4. Itis the Board’s conclusion that, if granted, the variance will be consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of
the ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved. This conclusion is based on
the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

e The installation of the enclosure will enhance public safety, is required to satisfy NC Building Code
requirements regarding pool security fencing.
e Asascreened in enclosure, the enclosure will still be “see-through” and will not provide a large visual barrier.

CASE ZBA-957

Mr. Vafier presented an overview of the case stating the petitioner, Martha Estela Vicente Andrade, applicant and
property owner, is requesting a variance of 1.2 ft from the 20 ft minimum side yard setback requirement per Section
3.2.5.D of the New Hanover County Unified Development Ordinance. The property is zoned AR, Airport Residential
District and is located at 1514 Roane Drive.

The subject parcel is a part of the Glynwood Subdivision, which was recorded in 1974 as a conventional development. The
required side yard setbacks in the AR district are 20 ft as specified in the dimensional standards in Section 3.2.5 of the
uDO.

Mr. Vafier stated that Ms. Andrade is a requesting a variance from the side yard setback to place a 1,792-sf mobile home
on the subject property. The applicant is proposing to relocate the 64’ x 28’ mobile home on the parcel, which consists of
0.34 acres and has width of 101.62’. The placement of the home would result in both side yards having an 18.8 ft setback.

Mr. Vafier stated the applicate contends the variance is necessary in order to place the mobile home on the lot with the
accommodation of the required septic system location, and that it is a replacement of a previous home with similar side
yard dimensions.



Mr. Vafier stated a previous home existed on the lot with an approximate 14 ft side yard setback on the southern property
line and would have been considered a legal non-conforming situation as the AR district requirements were adopted in
1976. The previous home was removed in 2019 and continued utilization of this side yard dimension is not permitted as
the situation has been discontinued for over 180 days.

Mr. Vafier presented photos of the lot from various angles. Currently there is not a home on the site.

Mr. Vafier concluded that the applicate is requesting the variance to place the mobile home on the property utilizing the
dimension of 18.8 ft. on each side.

Chairman Moore asked if the subject site is non-conforming.

Mr. Vafier stated the site is non-conforming due to the lot size.

Vice-Chair asked if the previous home had a similar dimension.

Mr. Vafier stated that the previous home per the applicant had a side yard set of 14 ft from the southern property line.
Chairman Moore then swore in Martha Andrade and Stella Azamar.

Ms. Azamar stated that the applicant requests the variance to place the home at the requested dimensions to obtain
septic and well services on the lot. Ms. Azamar stated there is a nearby mobile home that has a home placed with
dimension of 11 sf to the side yard setback.

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED

BOARD DECISION

The Board stated that without the relief to the required dimensions the applicant would not be able to place the mobile
home at the subject site. The Board stated that the lot requirements are challenging, the lot is less than an acre size. The
Board stated the subject site is a non-conforming use. The Board discussed the hardship that presents in placing a home
on the lot.

The Board discussed the property’s size and location and that the current status of the property was not created by the
owner. The applicant purchased the property as is without knowledge of prior restrictions to setback regulations due to
previous structures were at dimensions prior to current zoning. The Board agreed that granting the variance approval

would be consistent and substantial justice is achieved.

On a motion by Mr. Luke Waddell and seconded by Mr. Maverick Pate, the board voted 4-0 to grant the variance at 1514
Roane Drive, Wilmington NC.

The Board's decision was based on the following conclusions and findings of fact:

1. Itis the Board's conclusion that, if the applicant complies with the literal terms of the ordinance, specifically a
variance of 1.2’ from the 20’ minimum side yard setback requirement per Section 3.2.5.D New Hanover County
Unified Development Ordinance, that an unnecessary hardship would result. This conclusion is based on the
following FINDINGS OF FACT:

e Without issuance of the variance, the applicant would not be able to locate the mobile home on the property
as the lot is non-conforming with respect to the minimum lot area requirements for the AR district.



2. Itis the Board's conclusion that the hardship of which the applicant complains results from unique circumstances
related to the subject property, such as location, size, or topography. This conclusion is based on the following
FINDINGS OF FACT:

e The property is on an older lot with a smaller lot size than currently required in zoning.

e The septic location restricts relocation options.

3. Itis the Board's conclusion that the hardship of which the applicant complains results from unique circumstances
related to the subject property, such as location, size, or topography. This conclusion is based on the following
FINDINGS OF FACT:

e The owner of the property bought the lot as is without the knowledge of current restrictive setbacks due to
the previous structure not meeting them prior to zoning.

4. It is the Board’s conclusion that, if granted, the variance will be consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of
the ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved. This conclusion is based on
the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

e The Board finds that the requested variance is consistent with the spirit and intent of the UDO.

OTHER BUSINESS

Mr. Marty Little, Long Range Planner- Mr. Little presented the Development Code Update to the Board members
regarding State Law updates and Ongoing Maintenance.

Mr. Little stated that a proposed amendment to align the UDO with NC General Statues Chapter 160D, a new state law
for planning and development regulations, will be moving forward to the Planning Board and Board of Commissioners in
the coming months.

These changes will take effect on July 1, 2021. Mr. Little then overviewed five ways the amendment impacts the Board
of Adjustment, which include:

e BOA to hear decided variances to subdivision regulations

e Ordinance to clarify current practice of requiring 4/5 majority vote for Reasonable Accommodations
e Applicant must provide written consent to all conditions of approval placed on variances

e New Rules for Permit Choice

e Update BOA rules of procedure to reflect new conflict of interest standards

There being no further business before the board, it was properly moved by Mr. Luke Waddell and seconded by Vice-
Chair Freeman to adjourn the meeting. All ayes.



MEETING ADJOURNED.

Please note the minutes are not a verbatim record of the proceedings.

Executive Secretary Chairman

Date:




VARIANCE REQUEST
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
April 27, 2021

CASE: BOA-958
PETITIONER: Sean McDonough, applicant, on behalf of Brett and Christy Tanner, property owners.

REQUEST: Variance of 8.8’ from the 15’ minimum side yard setback requirement per Section 3.2.6.D
of the New Hanover County Unified Development Ordinance.

LOCATION: 8020 Bald Eagle Lane
PID: R0O7020-010-011-000

ZONING: R-20S, Residential District
ACREAGE: 0.57 Acres
BACKGROUND AND ORDINANCE CONSIDERATIONS:

Sean McDonough of NCA Builders, Inc., on behalf of Brett and Christy Tanner, property owners, is
requesting a variance from the minimum side yard setback requirement of 15’ in the R-20S district in order
to construct a 12’ x 22’ addition (264 sf) to an existing 28’ x 22’ (616 sf) detached garage on the subject

property.

The detached garage is located on a 0.57-acre lot which is ancillary to a single-family residence
constructed in 1996. The property owners recently purchased the lot and are in the process of renovating
the main residence to complete structural repairs and electrical and plumbing upgrades. During the
renovation, it was discovered that the garage has sustained water damage resulting from inadequate
surface water runoff on this portion of the lot. The applicant is proposing to construct the garage addition
with a 2’ tall masonry foundation wall in addition to other surface water mitigation measures to provide
adequate stormwater controls on the lot.

Detached garages on single-family residential lots are considered accessory structures, which the UDO
defines an accessory structure as follows:

ACCESSORY STRUCTURE - A structure subordinate to a principal structure and use, the use of which is
customarily found in association with and is clearly incidental to the use of the principal structure of the
land and which is not attached by any part of a common wall or roof to the principal structure. (When
a specific structure is identified in this Ordinance as accessory to another use or structure, the structure
need not be customarily incidental to, or ordinarily found in association with, the principal use to qualify
as an accessory structure.)

The 264 sf addition to the existing garage would maintain a total area over 600 square feet. Section
4.4.4 of the UDOQO requires that accessory structures in excess of 600 sf meet the minimum required setbacks
for a principal structure in their respective zoning district:

4.4.4 STANDARDS FOR SPECIFIED ACCESSORY USES AND STRUCTURES

B. Accessory Structure

Accessory structures shall comply with the following standards:

BOA-958 Page 1 0of 4



1. No accessory structure shall be erected in any required yard nor within five feet
of any other building, except that accessory buildings not exceeding 600
square feet may be permitted in the required side and rear yards provided such
accessory buildings are at least five feet from the property line and do not
encroach into any required easements.

The UDO allows for two different types of subdivision design: Performance Residential Developments and
Conventional Residential Developments. In a performance development, individual lots are not subject to
the specific yard requirements of a zoning district provided that the density for the zoning district is not
exceeded. In a conventional development, the UDO requires that the dimensional standards for each
zoning district be met. The subject parcel is legally described as being part of Section D of Porters Neck
Plantation, which was recorded in 1951, before there was an option to utilize the standards of a
performance development. Although not recorded specifically as a conventional development, the parcel
is subject to the required 15’ side yard setback in the R-20S district as specified in the dimensional
standards in Section 3.2.6 of the UDO:

3.2.6. RESIDENTIAL 20S (R-20S)

A. Purpose

The purpose of the R-20S Residential (R-20S) District is provide lands to accommodate primarily very
low density single-family development. The intent of the district regulations are to allow development
that is compatible with the preservation of the district's very low density single-family character, while
accommodating residential opportunities for those who desire an exurban, low-density lifestyle.
District residents should be willing to assume the costs of providing many of their own services and
amenities while maximizing the protection of resources and the conservation of open space.

B. Concept

C. Use Standards

Allowed uses and use-specific standards for principal, accessory, and temporary uses are established
in Article 4: Uses and Use-Specific Standards.

D. District Dimensional Standards [11-16-2020)

Standard All Uses
Lot area, minimum (square feet) 20,000
1 Lot width, minimum (feet) 90
2 Front setback (feet) 30
3 Side setback, street (feet) 25
4 Side setback, interior (feet) 15
5 Rear setback (feet) 25
Building height, maximum (feet)* 40
* Structures elevated on open foundations consisting of plers, posts, columns or piles shall have a maximum
height of 44 feet.

BOA-958 Page 2 of 4



The existing garage was constructed with a side yard setback of 6.2’, which does not meet the minimum
side yard setback requirement of 15’ in the R-20S district. Research as to how the garage was able to
encroach into the side yard has proven inconclusive, and staff is not able to determine that this dimension
is a legal non-conformity. County records indicate that the area along Bald Eagle Lane, including the
subject property, was rezoned from R-20 to R-20S in 1983, and an accessory building exceeding 600 sf
would have been subject to the 15’ side yard setback at the time the lot was developed in the mid
1990’'s. Thus, in order to complete the proposed addition, a variance is required.

The proposed addition will result in the detached garage having a total area of 880 sf. Applying the
language from Section 4.4.4.B.1 would require that the structure meet the 15’ side yard setback. The
applicant is proposing to maintain the existing 6.2’ setback on the northern side yard as shown on the
proposed site plan, and the addition would not be an increase to the degree of the dimensional non-
conformity.

%, - Dt AN NEKL

P HARNETT TOWNSHIP NEW HANOVER

LOT 16 SECTION D
PORTERS NECK PLANTA
FENCE CORNER IS 1.0° DATE: FEE‘EUARY 10, 2

NORTHWEST OF E.LP.
‘“f”’”—“‘w’u T ,_:f*';(/“fl,ﬂ

12%22 FROPEED ERzdeE ub\m
V/ﬂﬂ\_,_,f" L ]'5 \ fk_

8024 Bald
Eagle

Proposed 264 SF
Garage Addition
# - 6.2’ from Side
e Property Line BULKHEAD
woop
DECK
23249 SF R E-L.P.
~ Existing 616 SF \\
S . Garage "i'?\,\
N SCREENED %
~
M 8016 Bald
) BY D.M.D. METHOD N Fagle
? ARE HORIZONTAL .
. SEE D.B. 1667 PG. 27 . EAPSS_
G IRON PIFE " et 2 4

Figure 2: Proposed Site Plan with Staff Markups

The applicant contends that the variance is necessary in order to provide additional protected parking and
storage for the new property owners, as well as to provide necessary mitigation for the stormwater surface
runoff and mitigate water intrusion into the garage.

BOA-958 Page 3 of 4



In summary, the applicants are requesting a variance from the minimum side yard setback requirement of
15’ in order to construct a 264 sf addition to the existing detached garage on the subject property, which
will maintain the existing 6.2’ side yard setback.

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT POWER AND DUTY:

The Board of Adjustment has the authority to authorize variances from the terms of the Unified Development
Ordinance where, due to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the regulations would result in
unnecessary hardship. In granting any variance, the Board may prescribe appropriate conditions and
safeguards in conformity with the Unified Development Ordinance. A concurring vote of four-fifths (4/5)
of the voting members of the Board shall be necessary to grant a variance. A variance shall not be granted
by the Board unless and until the following findings are made:

1. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the ordinance. It shall not be
necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of
the property.

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or
topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from
conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for
granting a variance.

3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of
purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a
variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such that
public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.

ACTION NEEDED (Choose one):

1. Motion to approve the variance request based on the findings of fact (with or without
conditions)

2. Motion to table the item in order to receive additional information or documentation
(Specify).

3. Motion to deny the variance request based on specific negative findings in any of the 4

categories above.

BOA-958 Page 4 of 4



i i 250

N |l | Feet

Case: BOA-958

Address: 8020 Bald Eagle Ln
Variance from Side Yard Setback Requirements

Applicant: Sean McDonough

New Hanover County Board of Adjustment

Vicinity Map

April 27, 2021



Case: BOA-958

Address: 8020 Bald Eagle Ln
Variance from Side Yard Setback Requirements

Applicant: Sean McDonough

New Hanover County Board of Adjustment

Zoning Map

April 27, 2021




Case: BOA-958

Address: 8020 Bald Eagle Ln
Variance from Side Yard Setback Requirements

Applicant: Sean McDonough

New Hanover County Board of Adjustment

Aerial Map

April 27, 2021




NEW HANOVER COUNTY
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

230 Government Center Drive, Lucie Harrell Conference Room, Wilmington, NC 28403
Members of the Board
Cameron Moore, Chair | Kristin Freeman, Vice-Chair
Henry “Hank” Adams | Maverick Pate | Luke Waddell
Board Alternates
Pete DeVita | Richard Kern | Michael Keenan, Sr.

Rebekah Roth, Director of Planning & Land Use | Sharon Huffman, Deputy County Attorney

ORDER TO GRANT A VARIANCE - Case BOA-958

The Board of Adjustment for New Hanover County, having held a public hearing on April 27, 2021 to
consider application number BOA-958, submitted by Sean McDonough, applicant, on behalf of Brett and
Christy Tanner, property owners, a request for a variance of 8.8’ from the 15’ minimum side yard setback
requirement per Section 3.2.6.D of the New Hanover County Unified Development Ordinance to use the
property located at 8020 Bald Eagle Lane in a manner not permissible under the literal terms of the
ordinance and having heard all the evidence and arguments presented at the hearing, makes the following
FINDINGS OF FACT and draws the following CONCLUSIONS:

1.

3.

Itis the Board’s conclusion that, if the applicant complies with the literal terms of the ordinance,
specifically a variance of 8.8’ from the 15’ minimum side yard setback requirement per Section
3.2.6.D of the New Hanover County Unified Development Ordinance, that an unnecessary
hardship would/would not result. (It shall not be necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence
of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property.) This conclusion is based on
the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

It is the Board’s conclusion that the hardship of which the applicant complains results/does not
result from unique circumstances related to the subject property, such as location, size, or
topography. (Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting
from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the
basis for granting a variance.) This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

It is the Board’s conclusion that the hardship did/did not result from actions taken by the
applicant or the property owner. (The act of purchasing property with knowledge that



circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-
created hardship.) This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

4. It is the Board’s conclusion that, if granted, the variance will/will not be consistent with the
spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial
justice is achieved. This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

THEREFORE, on the basis of all the foregoing, IT IS ORDERED that the application for a VARIANCE from
New Hanover County Unified Development Ordinance to allow a variance of 8.8’ from the 15" minimum
side yard setback requirement per Section 3.2.6.D of the UDO be GRANTED/DENIED, subject to the
following conditions, if any:

ORDERED this 27" day of April, 2021.

Cameron Moore, Chairman

Attest:

Kenneth Vafier, Executive Secretary to the Board



NEW HANOVER COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & LAND USE
230 Government Center Drive, Suvite 110
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403

Telephone (910) 798-7165

FAX (910) 798-7053
planningdevelopment.nhcgov.com

ZONING & SUBDIVISION VARIANCE APPLICATION

This application form must be completed as part of a request for a zoning and/or subdivision variance. The application
submitted through the county’s online COAST portal. The main procedural steps in the submittal and review of
applications for a variance are outlined in the flowchart below. More specific submittal and review requirements, as
well as the standards to be applied in reviewing the application, are set out in Section 10.3.11 of the Unified

Development Ordinance.

(@ptionan | (Optional) 1

Application

||.¢1-I_Illhl_-l€;l]_ll';._-
AnioEmaan
L ARa T |

Sobmittal &
Arcaptance

Public
Hearing
Procedures

2 3

Planning Publie Hoaring
Dirsctor Review | Scheduling &
& Staff Report NotiTheation

Board of
Adjustrment!

Post:Caaiskon
Limiationsand
Actllohs

Planning Board
Haaring &
Crociaion

1. Applicant and Property Owner Information

Applicant/Agent Name
Sean McDonough

Owner Name (if different from Applicant/Agent}
Brett Tanner

827 Bayshore Drive

!
L

Company Company/Owner Name 2
NCA Builders Inc. Christy Tanner
Address Address

8020 Bald Eagle Lane

City, State, Zip
Wilmington, NC 28411

City, State, Zip
Wilminglon, NC 28411

i ncabuildersinc@gmail.com

Phone Phone
910-443-1667 210-617-1729
Email Email

btanner@pinnacletraiiers.com

2. Subject Property Information

! Address/Location
8020 Bald Eagle Lane
Wilmington, NC 28411

; Parcel Identification Number(s)

Lot 16 Section D — Porters Neck Plantation, R03720-
001-007-000

Total Parcel(s) Acreage
.534 acres

Existing Zoning and Use(s)

R-205 | sr (T4
N/

Page 1 of 5
Variance Application — Updated 02-2020




3. Proposed Variance Narrative

Subject Zoning Regulation, Chapter and Section 4Y7.6.D [_u,\ @

In the space below, please provide a narrative of the application (atiach uddiiionull pages if necessary).

We are in the process of a renovation of the main house at 8020 Bald Eagles lane, with which includes
structural repairs, Electric and plumbing upgrades. While renovating the main house it came to are attention that
the existing (2) garage had water damage do to surface run off coming from Bald Eagle Lane, (not hurricane or
storm damage) The original detached garage did not aclually address surface water intrusion, resulting in water
damage to garage interior walls. The remedy would be 1o install a masonry retaining wall as part new addition
and install proper water proofing, French drains and other grading applications to stem future water intrusion.

Please see aftach survey

CRITERIA REQUIRED FOR APPROVAL OF A VARIANCE

The Board of Adjustment may grant a variance if it finds that strict application of the ordinance results in

an vnnecessary hardship for the applicant, and if the variance is consisfent with the spirit, purpose, and

intent of the ordinance. The applicant must explain, with reference to attached plans (where applicable),
how the proposed use meets these required findings (attach additional pages if necessary).

1. Unnecessary hardship would result from strict application of the erdinance. It shall not be necessary to
demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property.

We Propose to extend existing garage by 12' and consiruct a 24" tall masonry foundation wall, to help
divert and control surface water coming from adjacent planter area and run off form Bald Eagle Lane.

Failure to control run off in this area could lead to further damage to struciure.

Existing Garage was built at set 5’-6' back as depicted in current survey, in order to serve the needs of Mr.
and Mrs. Tanner and their family, the extension of existing garage at the current set back of 5'-6' would

L

Mitigate water intrusion

Maintain the integrity of existing homes Architectural lines

Enhance and or maintain the value of their home consistent with neighbering properties
Increase on site protecting parking

Increase storge for heameowners

Page 2 of 5
Yariance Application — Updated 02-2020



2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size or topography.

Hardship resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from conditions that area common
to the neighborhood or general public, may not be the basis for granting o variance.

As it relates 1o “Hardship™ and the rights of a property owner, to enhance said property, we believe our request
for this variance is consisient with the existing structure setbacks, the continuity of the adjacent properties and

would have no adverse effects of adjacent property owners. Failure to grant variance would deny homeowners
right fo both protect and enhance their property

3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of purchasing

property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be
regorded as o self-created hardship.

This home was purchased less than 4 months ago, with understanding that the home would need

improvements, repairs and enhancements. So, it's fair to say that could include additions that consistent
with existing strueture setbacks.

Page 3 of 5
Variance Application — Updated 02-2020




4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of the ordinance, such that public
safety is secured, and subsiantial justice is achieved.

As previously siated, the proposed addition is consistent with both the spirit and of the rights of any property
owner fo preserve the value and integrity of their investment.

Thank you very much for your considerafion in this matter

Sincerely

Sean McDonough
Sr Project Manager
NCA Builders inc.

Staff will use the foliowing checklist to determine the completeness of your application. Please verify all of the
listed items are included and confirm by initialing under “Applicant Initial”. Applications determined to be
incomplete must be corrected in order to be processed for further review.

Application Checklist Applicont Iniial

This application form, completed and signed

Application fee: $400 per application

Site pton or sketch Tllustrating the requested variance

One (1) hard copy of ALL documents

One (1) PDF copy of ALL documents

Acknowledgement and Signatures

By my signature below, | understand and accept all of the conditiens, limitations, and obligations of the variance
application for which | am applying. | understand that | have the burden of proving why this application meets
the required findings necessary for granting o variance. | certify that this application is complete and that all
Information presented in this application is accurate to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief.

If applicable, | also appoint the applicant/agent as listed on this application to represent me and make decisions
on my behalf regarding this application during the review process. The applicant/agent is hereby authorized on

my behalf to:
1. Submit an application including ail required supplemental information and materials;
2. Appear at public hearings to give representation and comments; and

3. Act on my behalf without limitations with regard to any and all things directly or indirectly connected with
or arising out of this application.

Page 4 of 5
VYaoriance Application — Updated 02-2020



/g'wf)( /Q/MA

Print Name(s)

Soan M /@Mw&é/

Print Name

Note: This form must be signed by the owner(s) of record. If there are multiple property owners, a signature is
required for each owner of record.

® The land owner or their attorney must be present for the case at the public hearing

Page 5 of 5
Yariance Application — Updated 02-2020



“— J/MB. 5 PG. 45

N LOT 17
N
NOTES A
1. AREA COMPUTED BY D. M. D. METHOD N
2. ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL .
3. FOR REFERENCE SEE D.B. 1667 PG. 27 N
4. EILP. = EXISTING IRON PIPE «
5. RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BALD EAGLE LANE

WAS ESTABLISHED FROM EXISTING EVIDENCE

THIS PLAT REPRESENTS AN ACTUAL SURVEY THAT MEETS OR EXCEEDS
THE REQUIREMENTS OF A CLASS B SURVEY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
STANDARDS OF PRACTICE FOR LAND SURVEYING IN NORTH CAROL INA.

FENCE CORNER IS 1.0° DATE: -FEB?UARY 10, 2000

/ ~ ELP.
o/ E MAP FOR

R ZN o
<,/ - BzevT TawNer
P HARNETT TOWNSHIP NEW HANOVER NORTH CAROLINA
9 o LOT 16 SECTION D

PORTERS NECK PLANTATION

NORTHWEST OF E.LP.

_ /7
_ o:} | \ //
o5, N )
W3- § y ‘tx
q" & \ - // (’
0 RO : L9
S N ‘o
7 N AN
N
R BULKHEAD AN
TWO STORY M\ WOOD S
III' DECK s
| / ¥ ?’
W 47 23249 SF - r&

SCREENED
PORCH

FLOATING DOCK

60

30

LOCA

WOOD DOCK

SCALE IN FEE’
1




VARIANCE REQUEST
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
April 27, 2021

CASE: BOA-959
PETITIONER: Ketih Williams, applicant and property owner.

REQUEST: Variance of 10’ from the 20’ minimum Performance Residential periphery setback
requirement per Section 3.1.3.D of the New Hanover County Unified Development
Ordinance.

LOCATION: 6900 Persimmon Place
PID: RO7919-010-018-000

ZONING: R-15, Residential District
ACREAGE: 0.58 Acres
BACKGROUND AND ORDINANCE CONSIDERATIONS:

Keith Williams, applicant and property owner, is requesting a variance from the minimum Performance
Residential Subdivision periphery setback requirement of 20’ in order to construct a 41’ x 30’ (1,230 sf)
accessory structure on the subject property.

The subject property consists of a 0.58-acre lot, and currently contains a single-family residence constructed
in 1989. The UDO defines an accessory structure as follows:

ACCESSORY STRUCTURE - A structure subordinate to a principal structure and use, the use of which is
customarily found in association with and is clearly incidental to the use of the principal structure of the
land and which is not attached by any part of a common wall or roof to the principal structure. (When
a specific structure is identified in this Ordinance as accessory to another use or structure, the structure
need not be customarily incidental to, or ordinarily found in association with, the principal use to qualify
as an accessory structure.)

Section 4.4.4 of the UDO requires that accessory structures in excess of 600 sf meet the minimum required
setbacks for a principal structure in their respective zoning district:

4.4.4 STANDARDS FOR SPECIFIED ACCESSORY USES AND STRUCTURES
B. Accessory Structure
Accessory structures shall comply with the following standards:
1. No accessory structure shall be erected in any required yard nor within five feet
of any other building, except that accessory buildings not exceeding 600
square feet may be permitted in the required side and rear yards provided such

accessory buildings are at least five feet from the property line and do not
encroach into any required easements.

BOA-959 1of4



The UDO allows for two different types of subdivision design: Performance Residential Developments and
Conventional Residential Developments. In a performance development, individual lots are not subject to
the specific yard requirements of a zoning district provided that the density for the zoning district is not
exceeded. In a conventional development, the UDO requires that the dimensional standards for each

zoning district be met. The subject parcel is a part of Grove Point, Section 1, which was recorded in 1987
as a performance subdivision.

Section 3.1.3 of the UDO contains provisions governing Performance Subdivisions, which generally address
design parameters and other approval requirements. Although the conventional front, side, and rear yard

requirements are not mandated on a performance residential lot, this section still requires a 20’ setback on
the periphery of the subdivision:

3.1.3. SUPERSEDING DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS
D. Performance Residential Development

Performance Residential Developments are not subject to the minimum lot size, minimum lot
width, and front, rear, and side setback requirements in the zoning district where they are
located. Performance Residential Developments shall comply with the standards in this section
and with all other applicable standards in this Ordinance.

1. Setbacks and Spacing

a. Buildings on the periphery of a Performance Residential Development shall be
setback a minimum of 20 feet from the adjoining property line.

The subject property’s rear yard lies on the periphery of Section 1 of Grove Point, as shown on the
record plat recorded in MB 28, Page 98 of the New Hanover County Register of Deeds:

e T S5 F T F I EEr]
e e
LOCATION MAP Py
fe. i f | | wes jaas Golden Road Division s den o ‘_.",'ﬂ;fw ” - | '|I
| e . | o sty | TR aew | ST LR L
| e | : el | : A B3, B | T | || e caesLm o
| s i AR W SR kSRR E | & & oa i E iy ] i’ 220" i le— X EARTiTE.
Py " R B - edow  Jaoad s om0 ||I O T
2 .

[
&

Subject Parcel

e T 0 — M4
il
fgs

L

@ 3
g |5 [
S Ty |
20’ Grove Point ‘ Ii
Periphery Setback
on Subject Property

T ..l,,

S

vl

FTRTLE  ada

sl e FrosmETIESs
SR s B JEaE

B iyt

devedaat A RO A T
FER T Xard
Y T .

EREE [REk

TEET R EAsT
-] ivEL rETa T

TR -
1 — e ] oy |

Figure 1: Inset from recorded plat of Grove Point Section 1 with staff markups showing approximate location of required periphery setback on
subject property.

BOA-959 20of4



The applicant contends that the application of the 20’ periphery setback would result in the garage
encroaching info the septic drain line area and would result in the removal of two mature Hickory and Oak
trees, which the applicant intends to retain. While the applicant was performing due diligence into the
project, county staff did not make the applicant aware of the 20’ periphery setback, thus the garage was
sized, planned, and purchased with the assumption that a 10’ setback could be utilized.

20’ Grove Point
Periphery Setback

Proposed 41’ x
30’ SF Garage,
10’ from Rear
Property Line

6901
Persimmon
Place

6902
Persimmon
Place

a
b

0774 \/

Persimmon Place

14483

\
I
47.05 1 /

40ft

Figure 2: Proposed site plan with staff markups

In summary, the applicant is requesting a variance from the 20’ Performance Subdivision periphery setback
requirement of 10’ in order to construct a 1,230 sf detached garage on the subject property, which will be
set back 10’ from the periphery of Grove Point.

BOA-959 3of4



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT POWER AND DUTY:

The Board of Adjustment has the authority to authorize variances from the terms of the Unified Development
Ordinance where, due to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the regulations would result in
unnecessary hardship. In granting any variance, the Board may prescribe appropriate conditions and
safeguards in conformity with the Unified Development Ordinance. A concurring vote of four-fifths (4/5)
of the voting members of the Board shall be necessary to grant a variance. A variance shall not be granted
by the Board unless and until the following findings are made:

1.

Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the ordinance. It shall not be
necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of
the property.

The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or
topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from
conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for
granting a variance.

The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of
purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a
variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.

The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such that
public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.

ACTION NEEDED (Choose one):

2.

Motion to approve the variance request based on the findings of fact (with or without
conditions)

Motion to table the item in order to receive additional information or documentation
(Specify).

Motion to deny the variance request based on specific negative findings in any of the 4
categories above.

BOA-959 4 of 4



L]

T wrove A

\

Case: BOA-959 Vicinity Map
Address: 6900 Persimmon PI

Variance from Performance Subdivision Periphery Setback Requirements
Applicant: Keith Williams

New Hanover County Board of Adjustment April 27, 2021



Case: BOA-959 Zoning Map

Address: 6900 Persimmon PI
Variance from Performance Subdivision Periphery Setback Requirements

Applicant: Keith Williams

New Hanover County Board of Adjustment April 27, 2021




Case: BOA-959 Aerial Map

Address: 6900 Persimmon PI
Variance from Performance Subdivision Periphery Setback Requirements

Applicant: Keith Williams

New Hanover County Board of Adjustment April 27, 2021




NEW HANOVER COUNTY
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

230 Government Center Drive, Lucie Harrell Conference Room, Wilmington, NC 28403

Members of the Board
Cameron Moore, Chair | Kristin Freeman, Vice-Chair
Henry “Hank” Adams | Maverick Pate | Luke Waddell

Board Alternates
Pete DeVita | Richard Kern | Michael Keenan, Sr.

Rebekah Roth, Director of Planning & Land Use | Sharon Huffman, Deputy County Attorney

ORDER TO GRANT A VARIANCE - Case BOA-959

The Board of Adjustment for New Hanover County, having held a public hearing on April 27, 2021 to
consider application number BOA-959, submitted by Keith Williams, applicant and property owner, a
request for a variance of 10’ from the 20’ minimum Performance Residential Development periphery
setback requirement per Section 3.1.3.D(1)(a) of the New Hanover County Unified Development
Ordinance to use the property located at 6900 Persimmon Place in a manner not permissible under the
literal terms of the ordinance and having heard all the evidence and arguments presented at the hearing,
makes the following FINDINGS OF FACT and draws the following CONCLUSIONS:

1.

3.

Itis the Board’s conclusion that, if the applicant complies with the literal terms of the ordinance,
specifically a variance of 10’ from the 20’ minimum Performance Residential Development
periphery setback requirement per Section 3.1.3.D(1)(a) of the New Hanover County Unified
Development Ordinance, that an unnecessary hardship would/would not result. (It shall not be
necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made
of the property.) This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

It is the Board’s conclusion that the hardship of which the applicant complains results/does not
result from unique circumstances related to the subject property, such as location, size, or
topography. (Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting
from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the
basis for granting a variance.) This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

It is the Board’s conclusion that the hardship did/did not result from actions taken by the
applicant or the property owner. (The act of purchasing property with knowledge that



circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-
created hardship.) This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

4. It is the Board’s conclusion that, if granted, the variance will/will not be consistent with the
spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial
justice is achieved. This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

THEREFORE, on the basis of all the foregoing, IT IS ORDERED that the application for a VARIANCE from
New Hanover County Unified Development Ordinance to allow a variance of 10 from the 20’ minimum
Performance Residential Development periphery setback requirement per Section 3.1.3.D(1)(a) of the
UDO be GRANTED/DENIED, subject to the following conditions, if any:

ORDERED this 27" day of April, 2021.

Cameron Moore, Chairman

Attest:

Kenneth Vafier, Executive Secretary to the Board



NEW HANOVER COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & LAND USE
230 Governmerit Center Drive, Suite 110
Wilmington, North Caroling

Telephone (210) 798-7165

FAX (910) 798-7053
planningdevelopment.nhcgov.com

VARIANCE

Application

Applicani/Agent Information

- Property Owner(s) :
If different than Applicant/Agent

Name _ . Owner Name
Kedh 569# //(/f//f ams
Company Owner Name 2
Address Addracs
L988 Forsimmon Place
City, State, Zip City, State, Zip
Wrimi n9 /mﬂ NC L8487
Phone v Phone
90 Yy-sREE

Email Ervial
Cheatrfive @ gmai {.com

Subject Property Information

Addressflocation

6988  Frsipmen Place A/z/m:rfjlm Ve Zx989

Parcel Identification Number(s) .

R&+919-Q10—-R1g-000

Total Parcel(s) Acreage

.98

Existing Zoning and Use(s)
RIS

Application Tracking Information

Case Number

ﬁ'oﬁ g O\gﬂ\

{Staff Only)

Date/Time received:

Y \‘L"\\ 2\ 0 ann

Received by:

",

Page 3 of 6
Variance Application — Updated 3/2017



- PROPOSED VARIANCE NARRATIVE

NPC Zonina Ordinante , A(NiCE Y, Eehion 51, -2~
Subject Zoning Regulation, Chapler and Section: Mﬁg}g&m@m&%ﬁhd& 2.0.%

In the below space, please provide o narrative of the application. (Additional pages may be attached to the
application if necessary)

Poposal Yo 0 VNE he seHmol of the ek | eriphecy

omoeyu \ivie  of (0900 PerSimwion Ployee o\ﬂancgd fon °
ap 8ot setonel dp 10 foot SN0k By e onSirvchion

ok _a. wwehe) ?bm%(, \am\d.m,f\l .

CRITERIA REQUIRED FOR APPROVAL OF A VARIANCE

The Zoning Board of Adjustment may grant o variance if it finds that strict application of the ordinance results in an
unnecessary hardship for the applicant, and if the variance Is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the
ordinance. The applicant must explain, with reference to attached plans {where applicable}, how the proposed use

meets these required findings (please use additional pages if necessary).

1. Unnecessary hardship would result from stricl application of the ordinance. !f sholl not be necessary to
demonsirate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonuble use con be made of the property.

Shousd e 20 oot eefbock 2 adviefed Yo, there wauld Y giqndjeouc
hadiship , yotin -P\nanoialh ¥ msrmmmm_mw

Page 4 of &
Variance Application — Updated 3/2017



2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size or
topography. Hardship resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resuiting from conditions thaf
are common lo the neighborhood or general public, may not be the basis for graniing o variance.

The SVage of o ooty & one Yhad wakes i diiedt 4o bkl
—anriy in AW \pot. ekt Side of e pmpertu, Hoving @ 100t
oA @ Jo oin Wil reaus of the, aoute anqle
. (ordinued en ot A

3. The hardship did not result from actions token by the applicant or the property owner. The ocf of
purchasing property with knowledge that circumsfances exist thot may justify the granting of o variance sholl not
be regorded as o self-created hardship.

tomplete nashie on Jiachment A

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such that public
safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.

Wowd VoY Yz, an st g5 A ¥
e VLot 4ehoack o ox\ﬂias

Page 5 of 6
Varjance Application — Updated 3/2017




~ APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

Staff will use the following checklist to determine the completeness of your application. Please verify all of the listed
items are included and confirm by initialing under “Applicant Initial”. Staff will not process an apgplication for further
review until it is determined to be complete.

Applicant | Staff

Required Information Initial | Initial -

Complete Variance application P
Application fee = $400 — T~ 2 1D
Site plan or sketch illustrating requested variance

1 hard copy of ALL documents &ﬁf—— v

Al by —

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND SIGNATURES -

By my signature below, [ understand and accept all of the conditions, limitations and obligatiens of the varionce
application for which | am applying. | understand that | have the burden of proving why this application meets the
require findings necessary for granting a variance. 1 certify that this application is complete ond that all infermation
presented in this applicafion Is accurate to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief.

| also appoint the applicant/agent as listed on this application te represent me and make decisions on my behalf
regarding this application during the review process. The applicant/agent is hereby authorized on my behalf to:

1. Submit an application including all required supplemental infermation and materials;

2. Appear at public hearings to give representation and commitments; and

3. Act on my behalf without limitations with regard to any and all things directly or indirectly connected with or arising
out of this application.

W ’ ek S \Willizims

Signature-of-Property Owner(s) Print Name(s)

Signalure of Applicani/Agent Print Name(s)

NOTE: Form must be sighed by the owner(s) of record. If there are multiple property owners « signature is required for each
owner of recerd.

*The land owner or their attorney must be present for the case at the public hearing.

Itcls_r Staff Gnly
Application Commenis

Page 6 of &
Variance Application — Updated 3/2017



Attachment A

Criteria Narrative Continued...

1

2

Unnecessary hardship would result from strict application of the ordinance:

In location 2, (also displayed on Attachment B) we would have to move the septic drain lines to
the repair field. Based on our research, this would cost over $10,000. In location 2, we would
also have to cut down established trees (seen in pictures on Attachment C), These trees are over
50 years old and provide shade to the property. helping our home to be energy efficient, as well

as providing the neighborhood with overall appealing aesthetics. The cost we were guoted to

have the trees removed was $4277.56 {attachment D), With the many trees constantly being
cut down in Wilmington, we would like to do our part to save these established trees if possible.

The hardship results from conditions that ar peculiar to the property, such as location, size or
topography.

I¥ we had to adhere to the 20 foot setback on the back property {ine, it would result in so much
unused space in the backyard {attachment E). This would also cause somewhat of an “eyesore”
to the neighborhood having to move it closer to the main house and not hidden by the
established trees that would need to be removed.

The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act
of purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may Justify the granting
of a varlance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.

Prior to initiating building design and permit, we did our due diligence and contacted the
Planning and Land Use department asking what the particular setbacks were for our property,
so we could adhere to the county’s zoning regulations. The property address was given to the
Zoning Compliance Official for Zoning and Setbacks to make sure we were obtaining the correct
set backs. Per the Zoning Compliance Official, we were told the setback for our property address
was 10 feet (see Attachment F). With this information, we mapped out the area in order to
know what building dimensions could be put in the area. We contacted the building company,
mage our non-refundable deposit of $5,6750 (Attachment G) to obtain a site plan, and
submitted the information for a permit, Had we been told the setback was 20 feet on the back
property line, we would not have moved forward with plans. But, since we did, we now have a
$5,6750 non-refundable deposit at stake. This loss would cause a significant hardship {as well as
the above stated hardships) on our family, and we feel this hardship is based on the incorrect
information we were given while we were being proactive, from the Zoning office.



e Aoghmert~® ey 152
P A Mo peal An Inegractive Web bap o Now Henousr County, HC

i =2

i
ex. 123 Market St Q }1 L

{
& 228744

S
404
246,05
(o
1
&
o
i 4597 t
g 4433 1
]
i
l
!
50R & 1,{
i 4551 t
\ |
e—————1 ]
20

2,337 427 238 131,352,143 wA/PDdAW B ?q’% ‘ abz

All righre rracrved

hitps:/inhcgov.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.htm!?id=06539105dee84883bed6bcd Tbe3256ad

LA



3/26/2021 AH&&(\‘NMamelb QQ%, Lok 7.

-:'; i’;;: A :3: 3‘:';“‘ An Intaractive Web Meap of Neow Haoover County, NC
' ' N J 22874 §
ex. 123 Market St Q, }’ b g '

'E
\ 1
2 337,045 452 131,251.27% F;MMWM % W 7€ 2.

Al righis reserves

pe—————————
401

hitps://nhcgov.maps.arcgis.com/appsiwebappviewer/index.himl7id=06539105desB4683bed6bc4 Tbe3256ad

1M



Attachment C page 1 of 3

Unused area would be much greater than this current display.

- o L Fa
[

E
-

—
h* __.'_
._,M q

P ek ! Location 1

—..v4. Front view of location 1



Attachment C page 2 of 3

Location 1 with established trees shown




Attachment C page 3 of 3

Tree 1, 8 foot circumference

07 Tree 2, 7 foot circumference




ﬁi\*}adl\m&lﬂf D

Tree Removal

Landscapes Unlimited
Client Name: Williams, Keith
Project Name: Tree Removal
Jobsite Address: 4900 Persimmon Place Wilmington, Norih Biling Address: 4900 Persimmon Flace Wilmington,
Carolina 28409 North Cargling 28409
Estimate ID: EST2373208
Date: Mar 22, 2021
Tree Removal SN $4.27156

Labor, equipment, and disposal costs to remove (1) large Hickory and {1) large Oak in the event building needs to be shifted inward from
property lines. Includes excavating stumps.

Subtotai $4,277.56
Taxes $0.00
Esfimate Tolal $4,277.56

Estimate authorized by Estimate approved by:

Company Representative Customer Representalive
Signature Date: Sianature Date:

P.O. Box 944 p. 910-791-0350 www.golandscapezunimifed.com
Wrightsville Beach, Nerth Carolina 28480 email: info@golandscapesuniimited.com

Tree Removal [EST2373208] Page 1 of 1



312612021 W\W E Find A Parcel fﬂ%& Vo€ Z

e bR D ‘_':;32 An Interactive Web Map of Kaw Hanovar County, NC
1 Lis 1
ex. 123 Market St

Q 1% iy 228.?41:

16684 %

44331
i
144831 \
SOR K |
I 4651 1
{
:
e
40f

2,337 667 A52 131, 351.075 Fow

&l righas naserved
hﬂpsiﬂnhcgov.rnaps.arcgis.comlappsM'ebappviewerlindex.html?id=065391 05deef4683bed6hed7be3256ad

1M



Attachment E

Unused area would be much greater than this current display.




312672021 Mail - Keith Willlams - Outlook

% Replyall ~ i Delete  Junk Block - H'HOLOVIW F-

Fwd: Zoning Setbacks Inquiry

April Stephens <als4122@acl.com>
<
Fri 3/26/2021 10:06 AM & S © %

To: Keith Williams

** CAUTION: External Email **
Do not click links or attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is

safe.

—-—Original Message-

From: Temple, Sheighla <stemple@nhcgov.com>

To: April Stephens <als4122@aol.com>

Sent: Wed, Aug 26, 2020 10:37 am %
Subject: RE: Zoning Setbacks inquiry

The address in guestion is in a performance subdivision meaning that all structures have a
minimum setback requirement of 10" between structures on all sides, unless the structure is
ungder 600 sgft, then it is required to be &' off the property line on the sides and rear. | hope this
information was helpful and please feel free to follow up with further questions, thank you for
your time, and have a wonderful day.

Respectfully,

Sheighla Tempie | Zoning Compliance Official
Planning & Land Use - Planning & Zoning

New Hanover County

230 Government Center Drive, Suite 110
Wilmington, NC 28403

{810) 798-7521 p | (010) 798-7053
www.nhcgov.com

From: April Stephens <als4122@aol.com>
Sent: Wednesday, August 26, 2020 10:34 AM
To: Temple, Sheighla <stemple@nhcgov.com>
Subject: Re: Zoning Setbacks Inquiry

Sure...the address is 6200 Persimmon Place —*

—Criginal Message-—
From: Temple, Sheighla <stemple/@nhcgov.com>

To: als4122@aol.com < : >
Sent; Wed, Aug 26, 2020 10:32 am

Subject: Zoning Setbacks Inquiry

Hello Mrs. April,
Could you please provide an address in regard to your inquiry in cder to provide accurate information?
Respectfully, Sheighla Temple

Sheighla Temple | Zoning Compliance Official
Planning & Land Use - Planning & Zoning

htips://outlook.office.com/mail/deeplink?popouty2=1&version=20210315003.15

10



1183 S NC 471 & 117 Hwy Installe:. Date:
Beulaville, NC 28518 . MN BEUILDING
Office (910) 298-3774 3691 & SUPERIOR CONTRACT

sales@superiormsc.com Ml Structures & Conorete, 11O 2021.01
Beukaville, NC
Date: = (9 o A2) .

Customer Name: Kl!'l H\ 5 hJ;‘l’: hm <

Address: ﬁQL&.&mmnn } 74 e
| M_lml_ﬂﬁiaﬂ__ State:_M/L Zip Code: _Z_M? ;

' Phone Number: #1 #2 Emall: ——
STRUCTURE SIZE: FACING THE BULDING
Width .ZQ' Length__ &/’ Height__ /0" 3 |°1“°
. A-Frame: Building _~~ Carport Combo, Barn Other $ /’ﬂ’“u@
Roof Lean-To: Drop Down Lean-To: ) F‘ i
O Besic Dressed O Yes O No Opening_sD Yes DO No Qiy/Size .': o
CARPORT ONLY: "’i'}f.’m* ‘
: Gable_— ClosedSides__ ClosedEnds__ \O{Iﬂ‘
A
ROOfW IIS'_L@hLﬂg;_*Tnm 1 #f ﬂhn 2 4 !
Color Screws: es O Ne Two-Tone Height_ n ‘
e Right S&]
Roef: Vertical__e" Horizontal______ walls: Vertical Horizontal_w—"_ \1"1‘5 b
Roli-Up Doors: Oty/Size _a;LQX_ﬁ__]d_L Insulated @ Fes O No ol
Panel Dosrs: QOty/Size ingulated Oves ONo  §
! walk-inDoor: Basic__ 1 Cottage Other $ R Sde
’ Windows: Basic___ Metal Grid__ Insu]ated 1 8 side Entry: X F for Aellay $
' insulation: Roof (Ful) RA__ Ry k1 0aetf cLosure m $
Building Zone: 3'0OC 40C_v 50C Other_ {May Change by Couaty] 3
i @ Engineered-Certified (Plns) D Basic Certified  ©) Non-Certified
. MISC. Options: s Back
| ;gusn::, ORGP e
PadSize:_ 30 X YO XY*’ 2 Footers @ o Lean-Te: Foaters: Yes No $
Fiber:e¥No PSI-B8500 Other. Grading L$7.5.D,Oanhr No
CUSTOMER IS RESPORSIELE FOR THE COST OF ANY GRADING DIONE BY SMSAC, LLE A3 FCOT i DIRT NEEDED TO LEVEL GROUND. IF CUSTOMER COMPLETES GRADING CUSTOMER !
15 RESPONSIBLE FOR ADDITIONAL CONERETE AT $265 PER YARD. IF CUSYOMER rnmmmmmnwk mc.mms:ms‘ruulﬁmmmmn.\ﬁml CONTRACT ANCOLLECY 1§

. KLY UNPAID DEBTS, IF THERE 1S NO ACCESS TO THE SITE CUSTOMER I RESPOMSIBLE FOR ALL IPENSES TO ACCESS THE SITE (EX. CONCRETE BUGGY/PUMP). THERE IS A $500 TRIF FEE FOR ANY |
JHNECESSANRY TRIES 70 YOUR PROJECT. CUSTOMER 55 RESPO . YOW, UL IF COMCRETE TRUCK GETS. STICK, b
= — = - ——— SUBTOTAL ,

$_21,,J'-65_ = /\\&
\'

YSIELE FOR PERMITS, DAMAGE TO UNDER GROUND WATER LINES, YARD, ETC. NOT RESPONSIELE FOR ANY OTHER D.MﬁAGE TAX
1 CAIJSED BY OTHER CONTRACTRSAVEHICLES. SMS&C, LLG SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY INJURY TO ANY PET OR TO ANY PERSON $
1 ENTERING THE PREM'ISES ‘OR THE STRUCTURE DURING CONSTRUCTION. SMSRC, LLC RESERVES THE RIGHT TO CORRECT ANY
J EALANCE ERRORS OR TO REFQSSESS ANY STRUCTURE NOT PAID FOR IN FULL UPON.INSTALLATION, IT ALSO RESERVES THE RIGHT TOTAL &
-4 TO REFUSE ANY CRDERS. SMS&.C, LL _I:EOVIDES LIMITED WARRANTY. MANUFACTURER WARRANTS THE FRAMING ELEMENTS FOR Zi !é 5 "
$20 YRS AND ROOFING MATERIAL FOR 40 YEARS ONLY AGAINST RUST THROUGH FROM INSTALLATION, ASSUMING NORMAL CARE

|BY THEFT, FIRE, ACTS OF GOD(NATURAL DISASTERS, BAD WEATHER) AND OR ANY OTHER CAUSES OR ANY ALTERATION OR ABUSE  ° |- -
 ©F THE STRUCTURE SHALL VOID ALL SUCH LIMITED WARRANTIES. WE DON'T GUARANTEE CONCRETE \WILL NOT CRACK PRICE MAY 1 22y o1 Conarete Pour : 5 .

{ CHANGE IF ENGINEER CALLS FOR 2’ OR 3' CENTERS/LARGER FODTER DEPENDING ON YOUR COUNTY. All bissic T4gauge tubing [ INAL PYMT (20%1—5-4-3—

snd all 295usge sheeting. Any upgrodes is additional cost, BASIC CERTIFIED MAY NQT MEET YOUR COUNTY CERTIFICATION,  Dve day of Bulding Inswslf

INCLEMENT WEATHER MAY EXTEND STRUCTURE COMPLEYION. $35 FEE FOR BOUNCED CHECKS.

t HAVE READ AW—MD APPROVE THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE BUILDING.
CUSTOMER SIGNATLIRE: DATE: Z{%ZZ@ {

SALES SIG: ﬁ'ﬁ@j PRINT XoSre Seuther . DATE. -G <202
PROJECT TIMéRAME: a2 wks CONCRETE snd _9’_-5_ whs STRUCTURE Mmﬂs IS ELECTRICITY AVA!ML@O




Find A Parcel

A ™ T . " . P vwnp
i Andataracdve Wab Lizp of Naws Hanover Soundy, MO

W sk bk

1451451
2413t d
)
p <
¢ =
o =
ey =Y | & AT &

9,337,002 717 131,386.018 Tomt

ALt egte re.s -t
it G NEE JLEDTVIn

https:f/inhcgov.rmaps.arcgis.com/appsivebappviewerfindac htmi ?id=08538105dee 84683he4bbed The3256ad 1M



VARIANCE REQUEST
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
April 27, 2021

CASE: BOA-960
PETITIONER: Palm Investment, Inc., applicant and property owner.

REQUEST: Variance of 10’ from the 20’ minimum Performance Residential periphery setback
requirement per Section 3.1.3.D of the New Hanover County Unified Development
Ordinance.

LOCATION: 502 Pilots Ridge Road
PID: RO7900-001-484-000

ZONING: R-15, Residential District
ACREAGE: 0.50 Acres
BACKGROUND AND ORDINANCE CONSIDERATIONS:

Palm Investment, Inc.,, applicant and property owner, is requesting a variance from the minimum
Performance Residential Subdivision periphery setback requirement of 20’ in order to construct a single-
family residence and an aircraft hangar on the subject property. The parcel is located within Pilots Ridge,
a community in southern New Hanover County platted in 2006 which provides residents with access to a
private runway. Many of the residences in Pilots Ridge have personal aircraft which are stored in hangars
on individual lots.

The subject property is located on a 0.50-acre undeveloped lot on the far western extent of Pilots Ridge.
The individual aircraft hangars in Pilots Ridge would be considered as accessory structures, which the UDO
defines as follows:

ACCESSORY STRUCTURE - A structure subordinate to a principal structure and use, the use of which is
customarily found in association with and is clearly incidental to the use of the principal structure of the
land and which is not attached by any part of a common wall or roof to the principal structure. (When
a specific structure is identified in this Ordinance as accessory to another use or structure, the structure
need not be customarily incidental to, or ordinarily found in association with, the principal use to qualify
as an accessory structure.)

Section 4.4.4 of the UDO requires that accessory structures in excess of 600 sf meet the minimum required
setbacks for a principal structure in their respective zoning district:

4.4.4 STANDARDS FOR SPECIFIED ACCESSORY USES AND STRUCTURES
B. Accessory Structure
Accessory structures shall comply with the following standards:
1. No accessory structure shall be erected in any required yard nor within five feet

of any other building, except that accessory buildings not exceeding 600
square feet may be permitted in the required side and rear yards provided such

BOA-960 1lof3



accessory buildings are at least five feet from the property line and do not
encroach into any required easements.

The UDO allows for two different types of subdivision design: Performance Residential Developments and
Conventional Residential Developments. In a performance development, individual lots are not subject to
the specific yard requirements of a zoning district provided that the density for the zoning district is not
exceeded. In a conventional development, the UDO requires that the dimensional standards for each
zoning district be met. The subject parcel is a part of Pilots Ridge, which was recorded as a performance
subdivision.

Section 3.1.3 of the UDO contains provisions governing Performance Subdivisions, which generally address
design parameters and other approval requirements. Although the conventional front, side, and rear yard
requirements are not mandated on a performance residential lot, this section still requires a 20’ setback on
the periphery of the subdivision:

3.1.3. SUPERSEDING DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS
D. Performance Residential Development
Performance Residential Developments are not subject to the minimum lot size, minimum lot
width, and front, rear, and side setback requirements in the zoning district where they are
located. Performance Residential Developments shall comply with the standards in this section
and with all other applicable standards in this Ordinance.
1. Setbacks and Spacing

a. Buildings on the periphery of a Performance Residential Development shall be
setback a minimum of 20 feet from the adjoining property line.

The subject property’s side yard lies on the periphery of Pilots Ridge, as shown on the plat recorded in
MB 50, Page 275 of the New Hanover County Register of Deeds:

h . SECTION 3
| ! Subject Parcel KIRKWOOD AT ARRONDALE

MAF BOOFK 43 PAGE | 07

FILOTS RIDGE ROAD

(FRIVATE RIGHT OF 'WAY.mckh vanes)

20’ Pilots Ridge E RIDGE HOA ' S ' N

Periphery Setback 296, PG, 472 S f lLC_?TS RIDGE RUN_W_AT I

on Subject Property PILOTS RIDGE HOA 9
. — DB, 1580, FG. 166 | f

Figure 1: Inset from recorded plat of Pilots Ridge with staff markups showing approximate location of required periphery setback on subject
property.

BOA-960 20f3



The applicant contends that the variance is necessary in order to provide flexibility in the site design for
the lot, which contains a drainage easement on the south side which limits the ability to access the runway
in a similar design to other lots in Pilots Ridge.

In summary, the applicant is requesting a variance from the 20’ Performance Subdivision periphery setback
requirement of 10’ in order to construct a future single family residence and aircraft hangar on the subject
property, which will be set back 10’ from the periphery of Pilots Ridge.

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT POWER AND DUTY:

The Board of Adjustment has the authority to authorize variances from the terms of the Unified Development
Ordinance where, due to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the regulations would result in
unnecessary hardship. In granting any variance, the Board may prescribe appropriate conditions and
safeguards in conformity with the Unified Development Ordinance. A concurring vote of four-fifths (4/5)
of the voting members of the Board shall be necessary to grant a variance. A variance shall not be granted
by the Board unless and until the following findings are made:

1. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the ordinance. It shall not be
necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of
the property.

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or
topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from
conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for
granting a variance.

3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of
purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a
variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such that
public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.

ACTION NEEDED (Choose one):

1. Motion to approve the variance request based on the findings of fact (with or without
conditions)

2. Motion to table the item in order to receive additional information or documentation
(Specify).

3. Motion to deny the variance request based on specific negative findings in any of the 4

categories above.

BOA-960 30f3



ﬂ

210

| Feet

Case: BOA-959

Address: 502 Pilots Ridge
Variance from Performance Subdivision Periphery Setback

Applicant/Owner: Palm Investment, Inc.

New Hanover County Board of Adjustment

Vicinity Map

April 27, 2021



[~ Laveen Way — |

R-10

100

| Feet

Case: BOA-959

Address: 502 Pilots Ridge

Variance from Performance Subdivision Periphery Setback
Applicant/Owner: Palm Investment, Inc.

New Hanover County Board of Adjustment

Zoning Map

April 27, 2021




Case: BOA-959 Aerial Map

Address: 502 Pilots Ridge
Variance from Performance Subdivision Periphery Setback

Applicant/Owner: Palm Investment, Inc.

New Hanover County Board of Adjustment April 27, 2021




NEW HANOVER COUNTY
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

230 Government Center Drive, Lucie Harrell Conference Room, Wilmington, NC 28403
Members of the Board
Cameron Moore, Chair | Kristin Freeman, Vice-Chair
Henry “Hank” Adams | Maverick Pate | Luke Waddell
Board Alternates
Pete DeVita | Richard Kern | Michael Keenan, Sr.

Rebekah Roth, Director of Planning & Land Use | Sharon Huffman, Deputy County Attorney

ORDER TO GRANT A VARIANCE - Case BOA-960

The Board of Adjustment for New Hanover County, having held a public hearing on April 27, 2021 to
consider application number BOA-960, submitted by Palm Investment, Inc., applicant and property owner,
a request for a variance of 10’ from the 20’ minimum Performance Residential Development periphery
setback requirement per Section 3.1.3.D(1)(a) of the New Hanover County Unified Development
Ordinance to use the property located at 502 Pilots Ridge Road in a manner not permissible under the
literal terms of the ordinance and having heard all the evidence and arguments presented at the hearing,
makes the following FINDINGS OF FACT and draws the following CONCLUSIONS:

1.

3.

Itis the Board’s conclusion that, if the applicant complies with the literal terms of the ordinance,
specifically a variance of 10’ from the 20’ minimum Performance Residential Development
periphery setback requirement per Section 3.1.3.D(1)(a) of the New Hanover County Unified
Development Ordinance, that an unnecessary hardship would/would not result. (It shall not be
necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made
of the property.) This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

It is the Board’s conclusion that the hardship of which the applicant complains results/does not
result from unique circumstances related to the subject property, such as location, size, or
topography. (Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting
from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the
basis for granting a variance.) This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

It is the Board’s conclusion that the hardship did/did not result from actions taken by the
applicant or the property owner. (The act of purchasing property with knowledge that



circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-
created hardship.) This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

4. It is the Board’s conclusion that, if granted, the variance will/will not be consistent with the
spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial
justice is achieved. This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

THEREFORE, on the basis of all the foregoing, IT IS ORDERED that the application for a VARIANCE from
New Hanover County Unified Development Ordinance to allow a variance of 10 from the 20’ minimum
Performance Residential Development periphery setback requirement per Section 3.1.3.D(1)(a) of the
UDO be GRANTED/DENIED, subject to the following conditions, if any:

ORDERED this 27" day of April, 2021.

Cameron Moore, Chairman

Attest:

Kenneth Vafier, Executive Secretary to the Board



NEW HANOVER COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & LAND USE
230 Government Center Drive, Suite 110
Wilmingten, North Carolina 28403

Telephone (210} 798-7165

FAX (910) 798-7053
planningdevelopment.nhcgov.com

ZONING & SUBDIVISION VARIANCE APPLICATION

This application form must be completed as part of o request for a zoning and/or subdivision variance. The application
submitted through the county’s online COAST portal. The main procedural steps in the submittal and review of
applications for a variance are outlined in the flowchart below. More specific submittal and review requirements, as
well as the standards to be applied in reviewing the application, are set out in Section 10.3.11 of the Unified
Development Ordinance.

Public
Hearing
Procedures

1 2 3 4 5

Appllcatibn Planfing Puhlic Hearing Bpard of Powl-Diocizson
Submittal & PBirector Review  Schadiling & Adjestment!.  Limitstlons aod

AcoEptante & Stafi Repont Motiflcation Planining Board Actions
' Homring &
Dogiskon

1. Applicant and Property Owner Information

Applicant{Agenf Name Owner Name (if different from Applicant/Agent)
Palm Investment, Inc. Same as Applicant

Company Company/Owner Name 2

Address Address

701 N. Lake Park Bivd.

City, State, Zip City, State, Zip
Carolina Beach, N.C. 28428

Phone Phone
910-620-4072

Email Email

davidpiercejj@yahoo.com

Page 1 of 5
Variance Application — Updated 12-2020




2. Subject Property Information

Address/Location Parcel Identification Number(s)
502 Pilots Ridge Rd. R07900-001-484-000
Total Parcel(s) Acreage Existing Zoning and Use(s)
+ .5ac. R-15, vacant

3. Proposed Variance Narrative
Subject Zoning Regulation, Chapter and Section Sec. 3.1.3.D(1)(a)

In the space below, please provide a narrative of the application (attach additional pages if necessary).

Please see attached Exhibit “A”. (Variance Narrative).
Please see attached Exhibit “B” (Variance Site Plan).

Page 2 of §
Yariance Application — Updated 12-2020




CRITERIA REQUIRED FOR APPROVAL OF A VARIANCE

The Board of Adjusiment may grant a variance if it finds that sirict application of the ordinance results in

an unnecessary hardship for the applicant, and if the variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and

intent of the ordinance. The applicant must explain, with reference 1o attached plans (where applicable),
how the proposed use meets these required findings (aftach additional pages if necessary).

1. Unnecessary hardship would result from strict application of the ordinance. It shall not be necessary to
demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property.

Please see attached Exhibit “A”

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size or topography.
Hardship resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from conditions that area commen
to the neighborhood or general public, may not be the basis for granting a variance.

Please see attached Exhibit “A”

Page 3 of 5
Variance Application ~ Updated 12-2020



3. The hardship did not result from actions laken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of purchasing
property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of o variance shall not be
regarded as a self-created hardship.

Please see attached Exhibit “A”.

| 4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of fhe ordinance, such that public
safety is secured, and substaniial justice is achieved.

Please see attached Exhibit “A”.

Page 4 of 5
Variance Application ~ Updated 12-2020




Staff will use the following checklist to determine the completeness of your application. Please verify all of the
listed items are included and confirm by initialing under “Applicant Initial”. Applications determined to be
incomplete must be corrected in order to be processed for further review.

Application Checkist Applicant Initial

This application form, completed and signed

Application fee: $400 per application

Site plan or sketch illustrating the requested variance

One {1} hard copy of ALL documents

One (1) PDF copy of ALL documents

Acknowledgement and Signatures

By my signature below, | understand and accept all of the conditions, limitations, and obligations of the variance
application for which | am applying. | understand that | have the burden of proving why this application meets
the required findings necessary for granting a variance. | cerfify that this application is complete and that all
infermation presented in this application is accurate to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief.

If applicable, | also appoint the applicant/agent as listed on this application to represent me and make decisions
on my behalf regarding this application during the review process. The applicant/agent is hereby authorized on
my behalf to:

1. Submit an application including all required supplemental information and materials;

2. Appear at public hearings to give representation and comments; and

3. Act on my behalf without limitations with regard to any and all things directly or indirectly connected with
r arisi ut of this application.

- [y

David Pierce, President, Palm Investment, inc.

Signature o Print Name(s)

—

David Pierce, President, Palm Investment, Inc.

£
SignaMplicunI/Agﬁ!\ Print Name

Note: This form must be signed by the owner(s) of record., If there are multiple property owners, a signature is
required for each owner of record.

* The land owner or their attorney must be present for the case at the public hearing

Page 5of 5
Variance Application — Updated 12-2020



NEW HANOVER COUNTY 230 Government Center Drive
Suite 110
PLANNING & LAND USE Wilmington, NC 28403
910-798-7165 phone
AUTHORITY FOR 910-798-7053 fax
APPOINTMENT OF AGENT V- nhgoy.com

Please note that for quasi-judicial proceedings, either the land owner or an aitorney must be present for
the case at the public hearing,

The undersigned owner does hereby appoint an authorized the agent described herein as their exclusive agent for
the purpose of petitioning New Hanover County for a variance, special use permit, rezoning request, and/or an
appeal of Stafl decisions applicable to the property described in the attached petition. The Agent is hereby
authorized to, on behalf of the property owner:

1. Submit a proper petition and the required supplemental information and materials

2. Appeal at public meetings to give representation and commitments on behalf of the property owner

3. Act on the property owner's behalf without limitations with regard to any and all things directly or
indirectly connected with or arising out of any petition applicable to the New Hanover County Zoning

Ordinance.

Agent Information Property Owner(s) Subject Property
Name Owner Name Address

Matthew A. Nichols Palm Investment, Inc. 502 Pilots Ridge Rd.
Company Owner Name 2 City, State, Zip
Law Office of Matthew A. Nichols Wllmlngton NC 28412
Address Address Parcel ID
3205 Randall Pkwy, Suite 104 701 N. Lake Park Blvd. R07900-001-484-000
City, State, Zip City, State, Zip
Wilmington, NC 28403 Carolina Beach, N.C. 28428
Phone Phone

910-508-7476 910-620-4072
Email Email

matt@mattnicholslaw.com davidpiercejj@yahoo.com
Applivation Draching tnfornmtion T PR e R
Case Number Keference: ibate/Time received: Received by:

fon- Abe 3l e o W
This document was willfully executed on the 3 ! day of M Ar 0‘7 20_ "2 {

Palm Investment, Inc.

Owner 1 Signature Owner 2 Signature

By: David Pierce, President



EXHIBIT “A”
to

Application for Variance
502 Pilots Ridge Rd.

Project Narrative:

As illustrated below, the Subject Property is located within the Pilots Ridge Aero
Plantation neighborhood (“Pilots Ridge”) in the southern portion of New Hanover County.
Pilots Ridge is a very unique neighborhood, as it contains its own private airplane runway.
Each lot within the subdivision has an access for aircraft to the runway situated to the
south. The subdivision is alsc unique in that itis linear in a design that parallels the private
runway, which is the main feature of the subdivision and distinguishes the development
from all other residential developments within the County and the vast majority of
developments throughout the State. As illustrated below, the Subject Property is the last
lot at the western end of the line of residential lots within the subdivision.

ol

Many property owners within Pilots Ridge have private hangars for their personal
aircraft. The Applicant plans to build a single-family residential home with an aircraft
hangar on the Subject Property, similar to other lots within the subdivision.

Typically, under New Hanover County UDC Section 3.2.8, R-15 zoned residential
lots require a 10-foot side setback; however, Pilots Ridge was developed as a
Performance Residential neighborhood, and UDQ Sec. 3.1.3.D(1){a) states that
“[b]uildings on the periphery of a Performance Residential Development shall setback a
minimum of 20 feet from the adjoining property line.” Because of several unique factors
with respect to this lot, the Applicant is requesting a variance of 10 feet from the 20-foot
setback required under Sec. 3.1.3.D(1). In granting a 10-foot setback, the Subject
Property would still meet the standard 10-foot setback applicable to conventional
subdivision development under UDO Section 3.2.8.



1. Unnecessary hardship would result from strict application of the ordinance. It
shall not be necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no
reasonable use can he made of the property.

Due to the unique configuration of this lot at the end of the subdivision, the
application of a 20-foot side setback under Section 3.1.3.D(1) prevents the Applicant from
building a residence and hangar in the most efficient, most practical and safest
configuration. The Subject Property is identified as Lot 29, Pilots Ridge Aero Plantation,
Section 2, as shown on that map recorded on December 4, 2006, in Map Book 50 at Page
275, New Hanover County Registry (copy attached hereto as Exhibit “A-1"). A copy of
the Owner/Applicant’s deed recorded on November 30, 2018, in Book 6181 at Page 2774,
New Hanover County Registry, is attached hereto as Exhibit “A-2"). A copy of the Map
of Section 1, Pilots Ridge Aero Plantation, recorded on November 22, 1983, in Map Book
55 at Page 37, which shows the other portion of the airplane runway/landing strip and
Pilots Ridge Road (private), is attached hereto as Exhibit “A-3".

The requirement of a 20-foot side setback in this case creates an unnecessary
hardship on the design and layout of the Subject Property for its intended and unigue use
as an aircraft hangar lot residence along the private runway. The requested variance
would allow additional design flexibility and spacing with the construction of the hangar,
resulting in a better and safer site building design and configuration for operation of the
private aircraft.

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as
location, size or topography. Hardship resulting from personal circumstances, as
well as hardships resulting from conditions that area common to the neighborhood
or general public, may not be the basis for granting a variance.

The location of this particular lot within the subdivision, and the approved and
intended use of this lot as an airplane hangar residence, are very unique. Being the
westernmost periphery lot, the 20-foot side setback under Section 3.1.3.D(1) affects this
lot in manner different that the rest of the lots. Additionally, due to a drainage easement
located on this lot the airplane access to the runway is differently configured than most of
the lots in Pilots Ridge. (See aerial view below / on following page.) Rather than a straight
access to the south directly to the runway, the access is situated 90 degrees to the lot to
a semi-circular “driveway” that then connects to the runway.



= Access
L - connection
- ;_' ; to runway at

90° angle

2 . T
A = 1 onother lots

wirooghe”

| ¥ -1
el _
. E = - - .. "_"" - " x y B -
- E_r:;m:Et - N e Direct access
"m bl v > e = | tothe south
yln e “‘“ = % |

The other lots within the Pilots Ridge Aero Plantation subdivision are not impacted
in the same way that this lot is, namely, a periphery lot with a unique driveway approach
that is essentially perpendicular to the airplane driveway/taxiing area, which is further
impacted by the location of the drainage easement on the lot.

The requested variance will allow additional design flexibility with the residence
and airplane hangar and also make the site design more practical. Allowing the variance
will improve maneuvering the plane on the Subject Property and increase safety taxiing
the plane to and from the runway.

3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property
owner. The act of purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist
that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created
hardship.

The hardship did not result from actions taken by the Applicant/Property Owner.
The hardship is created by the location of the lot at the end of the subdivision and the
very unique nature of the lot and its intended and approved use. The hardship is also



created by the location of the drainage easement and its unique impact on this particular
lot and the access configuration to the runway.

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of the
ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.

The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of the
ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved. In
addition to the foregoing, it is significant to note that the Subject Property (Lot 29, Pilots
Ridge Aero Plantation, Section 2) abuts the adjacent subdivision (Kirkwood at Arrondale)
perpendicularly. More specifically, the side property line where the setback variance is
requested meets the rear property line of the adjacent Lots 317 through 320, and a portion
of Lot 321, in Section 8 of Kirkwood at Arrondale, as generally shown on that map
recorded in Map Book 47 at Pages 113-114 (copy attached hereto as Exhibit “A-4”).
Because Kirkwood at Arrondale is also a performance residential subdivision, the
adjacent Kirkwood at Arrondale lots to the west, all of which are developed with single-
family homes, already have a minimum 20-foot rear setback from the shared property line
with the Subject Property. Moreover, there will still be at least a 30-foot separation
between the nearest Kirkwood at Arrondale house and the proposed airplane hangar and
house on the Subject Property. It is also significant to note that Kirkwood at Arrondale is
zoned R-10, which requires only a 5-foot side setback, so allowing a variance to provide
for a 10-foot side setback on the Subject Property is entirely consistent with the general
development pattern in the vicinity.

Additionally, the other property owners within Pilots Ridge Aero Plantation have
already approved a 10-foot side setback for the Subject Property. See document titled
‘Amendment to: Amended and Restated Declaration Of Restricted Covenants for Pilots
Ridge Aero Plantation, July 31, 2012" recorded on May 27, 2020 in Book 6315 at Page
17 of the New Hanover County Registry. (Copy attached hereto as Exhibit “A-5")
(allowing reduced side setback from 15 feet to 10 feet under subdivision covenants).

This variance request, which has been approved by the other owners within Pilots
Ridge under their subdivision covenants, is consistent with the development pattern found
throughout the R-15 and R-10 development in this general vicinity, will not have a
negative impact to adjoining or nearby neighbors, and is consistent with conventional R-
15 side setbacks. Furthermore, allowing this variance will improve safety of airplane
taxiing and parking, and will allow a more efficient and safer use of the property consistent
with the intended design and use of this unique lot and subdivision.



B

118IHX3

WO SE VR 29 bty papaaTry hSMION0aT
WWICRAD MERON ALY WIACRL N BCRADE WO WL

Sut Hoy as g duyy

NOILVINVId Ouaadv 192drs Siold

€ NOUuoag

Ol "DAAZALTE GNVY

moisiug s =8
auoaNva I

L0 Jowa 3 003 AN
PRI T 0w 2R )

wINIALOTINAID FDNVINAIO T3

W) Doy s b d
T TR
SANUALIN Dbl Al A e iy

199) ‘94 '0@s) "4a “
YOH 3900 1O

AVAMINITE 39drd G1OTd

-
ROAD

aY #421

i 61

 HerW

u.S
7 T carouNABEACH
!
1

]
= S [ i
T 18181
: 1slg
B 1% E m__
o S R
H T T - ..“ /
......... 01 FNd E¥ %008 JYN STy
TVONOERY Lv Q00NN ; = 4]
R —— £ NOILD3S
Y TRCIMRT) T ALY O YIOREN CEONITM
—r e Ay %
va “&\Q bl 4
—FOHRL MW G130 PR iig!Eﬂﬁlﬁo’hﬁ
AL FIACR AN X REALOSEAT T T TORFIRE ST
CIGAONL RIRNE WORPN Ml LI WLl I AT
o VKRN gl KD RS
—.
P
o v sl s e i, T o v
»-rreef TS VoS o rad o Py et
el O e SRSl
ST LIV £ SOREL ANDG O oo P, o o s ALY
R s e T A e ot S o T T
%Eﬁﬂ:ﬁﬂﬂqn!ﬁ.ﬂggﬂﬂ T B P R Bt Y Ot
Y RG34 3 0 PIVD) Bl 309 | W A i G At vt i VLA 8 207 ) Y S YR AT EEMOPC LIS PO

—

[reramiymioinglory sl
—_————— primiep e et
T 2y G O U
"Gtk ALl He ce CLin dey €uh Suty
PRONREF. eyt ppemry el
T e o 7, s 13
Lom
24 "9d "I69F "2
VOH 29418 S10Md
VAN

i

@ Now3Is

3

D: f¥p:
€11 39vd L Y0O0Q Vi

FVANCHEY 1 QOOHON




TRAT EGISTER OF DEEDS
FOR REGLSTRATION REC N

0 §0:35:0 fn
BX:60 P5:275-276 FEE:$21.8

MAP INDEX IR §

P.\\D*i D\‘&Esg Beco QSQ-D&}&]QQ SecNinn o)

Name of Map
J
Owner's Name
Type of Map: \// Subdivision
Condo
Highway

Book ‘, 50O Page(s) 2N5

Number of Pages \

==

Recorded By:

Deputy/ Assistant.



REBECCA P. SMITH
REGISTER OF DEEDS, NEW HANOVER
216 NORTH SECOND STREET

WILMINGTON, NC 28401

Filed For Registration: 12/04/2006 10:35:44 AM
Book: PLAT 50 Page: 275-276

Document No.: 2006066634
PLAT 2PGS $21.00

Recorder: CRESWELL, ANDREA

State of North Carallna, County of New Hanover

YELLOW PROBATE SHEET IS A VITAL PART OF YOUR RECORDED DOCUMENT.
PLEASE RETAIN WITH ORIGINAL DOCUMENT AND SUBMIT FOR RE-RECORDING.

*2006066634*

2006066634



Book 6181 Page 2774 | EXHIBIT

AR

me oot [BAEAIMIRINNG
PG 2774-2778

2018036 N FEE $26.00
11-30-2018 NEWHAHOVERcounTY NC STATE OF NG
09:21:33 AM ummmm REAL ESTATE
w m.useu.es REGISTER OF DEEDS EXTX 5220.00

NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL WARRANTY DEED
Real Properly conveyed ismotthy primary residence:ofthe. Grantors.
Propared by: Naidl M, Beitiés, Attorfiy et Law
A3 Pleasnmrsland Piaza
. Carolina Beach, NC 28428
Refurn to:. Ned M. Barnes; Atforney at Law,

Excise.Tax: $220.00
Parcel ldanﬂﬂer' R07900-001-434:-0’00

List 28, Section:2, Pllots Ridga Aero ﬂ

THIS DEED mada this L) _ day of Novembssr, 2018, biyand bstwioen

GRANTOR GRANTEE
JOSEPH LOUIS CATELLI PALM INVESTMENT, INC., a l
and wife, Novth Carolina Gbrporaﬁon |
TRACIE GATELLI 701 Lake Park Blvd.N.
612-Greenwich Avenug ' Carolifg Beach, NC 28428
Warwick, Rhode Island 02886

The desigiation Grarter and Grantee as. used herein shall include sald parties; their
tislfs, 'successors, -and assigns, and shall Include:singular; plu:al, masculine; feminine: of
neuter as required by.context.



Book 6181 Page 2775

WITNESSETH, thist the Grantor, for-d valiiabla considerdtion paid by:the Giaritee, the
reicelpt of which ie-hereby acknowledged, has:nd tiy thase preserits does grant, bargain,
sell .and :convey: unto: the: Grantes in fee sknple, all that certsin lot or parce] of land.
stiuated in New Hanover Gounty, Northr Carofina and mors: particularly described as.
follows:

SEE EXHIBIT “A™ ATTACHED HERETO' AND INCORPORATED.

The. property herelnabove deserbed was atquired by Grantor by instrument recorded 1rs
Book 5588; Page 344.

A map showing the above-desciibed piopeity'is-recorded Th Map Beok 50 af Page 275.

TO HAVE AND. TO HOLL) the aforesaid Jots or parcels of iand and all pavileges and
Bppurtenances fisrefo helonging to'the:Grantee-In fee:simple.

Andthe Grantor:covenanis:with the Grantee; that Grantor is selzed of the. premises Infee.
simple, hag-the right 0 convey the saiie In fee-simple, tettitle is: marketahle.and free
afd clear-6f all encuiribednices, and that Gratior will walrant and defend fhe titte againist
the lawful slaiivs of all persons:wkomsoever except for the: excaptions hershiafter stated.

Title fo the property herelnabove deseribed is subject fo the following exceptions:

1, Rights of way ahd-odseirients oftacord, ifany,

2, Zoning andlorsabdivision ordinances ahd regulations, if any.
3. Resirictive covenants of recerd, ifany.

4. A valorem-taxes for: 2018 and subsequent years.



Book 6191 Page 2776

IN ‘WATNESS: WHEREOF, the Grantor has hereunto set his: hand and seal; or If
corporate; has caused this Insttument to be: sigried In iis -Corfporate nafne by its: dily
autfiorizéd 6fficérs. &Ad. S sSedl fo be hierauiite. afiixed by aithiorty -of its Board of
Dirsctors, thie day and yeur fisst:above written.

t‘:' Lo OIS CATELL!
Asaew LLU  (semy
TRACIE CATELLL

STATEOF b
COUNTY OF . ﬁé% E

! 7R , & Notaty Pubiic in-arid for
thé Colinty arid State, aforesaid do. hem‘%eemfy That JOSEBH LOUIS CATELL! and

TRAGIE CATELL), having provided satisfactory identification, personally appeared before
mia this day and acknowledged the ‘due.-execution of the-foregoing instrument and that
said act-was done voluntarily forthe purpose stated therein.

WITNESS iy idid and niotarial stamips: or sdal, thils _2( day of Novemiber,

20?%;““""".,
{

Al

’&‘*1“44"




Book 6181 Page 2777

EXHIBIT A

PBEING in the County of New Hanover and State of North
Carolina, and being described as follows:

All of Lot 29%in Pilots Ridge Aerd Plantation Subdivision,
Bectlon 2, & Parformance Development, as thé same 1s shown
on a map redorded in Map Book 50 at Page 275 ain the New
Hapnover County Registry, TOGETHER WITH AND SOUBJECT TO all
of the rights, ocovenants, easements, conditions and
restrictions contained in a declaration recorded in Book
1239 at Page 616 and following pages in said Registry, and
all' amendments and suppléments thersto, -and including an
eapsmant over and on the airport runway, taxiway and other
concomitant airport property and Pilots Ridge Road. as set
out 4in saxd declarations and shown on the aforesaid
subdivision map -and that map in Map Book 22 at Page 55,
excepting that 60’ Taxaway Easement between Iots 15 and 16
in Bection I} whiéh 4is shown on the plat of Segtion 1

recorded in Map Book 22 at Page 55.



Book 6181 Page 2778

TAMMY THEUSCH
BEASLEY New Hanover County

Register of Deeds Register Of Deeds

320 CHESTNUT ST SUITE 102 » WILMINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA 28401
Telephone 910-798-4530 * Fax 910-798-7716

drkhkhhdk bk bk hbddhhddd kbbb dhkhd bbb kbbb h b h b hddd bbbkt bbb h b AR R R d bbb kb d Rk h R dhrd bk ke kb

State of North Carolina, County of NEW HANOVER
Filed For Registration: 11/30/2018 09:21:33 AM
Book: RB 6181 Page: 2774-2778
5 PGS $246.00
Real Property $26.00
Excise Tax $220.00
Recorder: KELLIE GILES
Document No: 2018035837

o g e e o s e e ol ke e e e e e ok ok e ol e e o o ek e o ok o v e e e o e e e e e e el e e e e e ok o i e e e o o e e s ol o e ok e o Sl e i o e e ke ke ok ek e o ok

DO NOT REMOVE!
This certifioation sheet is a vital part of your recorded dooument. Please retain with original document and submit

whan re-racording.




LIIHX3

=l =

s DR

NOWLWY 10 O&3V 390 SLOId

y [, 4

ons
.éi%i.ﬂ.}&%
§ 4 Lot e
A0 SnSERITY MW ST o H
A A0 HISRS GINIVIDSYE BOTHNIG ual FUNSE 1IN0 53 SAPE0

y 4

ERER




77y

=

Crsasy oy

AT AP

BOHIE ¢ WU,

T L U M

ONG INMIU OJSVE NVINTTOOS
*u

\SSS\:_U". =273

wE

omt wan AL okivs R0

ag

e 5

PLYIRErL YA i T T TIROTE % =<1 TS
T s D LigIHX3 —
| [ f | i
3 N
s ! | |
naom s g j 2L —-
e e or)
azm.._.”...._.n SV DR MOd AN T e e e h e e oS B M0 I “1 ‘\ﬁk&l‘m‘mﬁi\.uwmltwmm.
SR,
Y
W I
| Domilif @ @
. |EHE%$E {sivamio uva (o) “ (e 7 a8 vr

£06Z 'z Inar 08 = L Flvss
YNIIOUYD HLLON ALNADD HIMONVH AIN AHZNIOL INIOS Trasads — IIL P——
- — L b
AMISIONE ALNNGD MIAONYM MIN 3HL 40 9Cr 39¥d '6ZBZ ¥Q0E G320 - ranpe SRS AN W S UGS ACINTENS SA1 MMM O31%01 ¥ om0 dine (NI Al S b, L s Totlrt
¥ 90z 3avd 'SZ{Z NCOM MII0 M QICHODTH S¥ S04 LYY o SLNanasYa L vAvHD OWE - vol TIV UG Sv S5 AlvAI Y40 = =¥ STy mw_ 55 BE v a
SO Ga SVIY MIMIG GNY FOVSE NOLYNMI- O Shvy B oh ATV S SPALE A Farn 3| ,m g R O &
SINIAITEAI0 IINYIIDIETS . R B e D N Nt o) ) @ e 7
FIVENCO SN OV ot Ariteinne i1 40 S 4G 310 Baw o) TV AN A e (3R . g o !
e WNGIO "LATHE D 40 ZLYNMINID TVE NPT TS T L H
2 =
dOOMNIY B T H
A AZD ORI T ¥ o
Foeeng, v B GO R ) F A5G TEE m @ “A'B S0 MM & oDl h o
v S, .ﬁﬁ 4, o W02 S @)
& NOLDIS " DTN WPETOT, © SRR :
o e e oc o i B ECY
__ et : 5
rranen G _
Ly .M ~I o e b LOwy
| & : _ P
_Ev.a.‘®_x‘®m & k@ g -
; g, @ e WL R PR R e R R B P g
i i B B ek men W mmy R H.:m o e : &
) ¥ O I
z Y BlY s B Eea._m 8 ! o =
ES % o ey 3 .

o1 gy s i S ES EE o TR e T e e
i ? H J . ol¥ r awma, o PR o &
VLITONYD N R -t m:.m 4 H o i P A u Glg Fows H

LE ST 4 egr |8 el uiﬁ!\ [ o S o El g
sk A S 3] gmy | gera | amn B T s e et §
3 T - AT i L A ouon
g1 e g . R i R i
k] m El= o “m_ M” e R T e LRI _ = — e, e o N“mz ﬁg ,-.:;w,audwnw - RRACATH P
s B o V¥ Onm)s F3AY = :;,im(u LALES H -
2y S o e SIS L R r e S i HOR @)
- L s P Por meem e ELNE2 AT i3 = wrou 2 o[ T o : -
PRI T R SR o5l Bk £ b s il e (T By Gui¥ i g gy R
T GIG vl aivs wo Rudes £187 Wl S i wran 53] 2 h 5IF 45 eraw a1 FI ~—
LA e e i Mg g B i @ T a3l i H & 35 S5 f e s 1 ; @i@n@® § ¥ ™
UAMINUPAY AIIT ONY RLN e i & @ B st B2 B SR 2" . ' Sl
o s wans o TSSO S oo EEE @ Yo P H B R I
o, i o & B w2 e}
8y 533 ooz ouEB =14
F LS T 2l af .MF Pl L)) . @ B @ Ll - W v EOL T - 4
LIS S0 SRS Mm 2 @ . - m. T .nqk - oa) hﬂ.f: u.!...nsz k St frsssiin ..,.L .
DA LMD NYIL SO ANITUNYAIG ¥ MY RO o g1 SEEy B [ i [ g 5¢ @D e - T o A I pat: evzs i) * - ] ) iy
EPE e o e b el et my 3 - LY e = Fi 8 e "
B0k ok BEC SHE 9% BiE BLOT WD ¥EUY CRIVAE 5 = g PEn b -4 288 18 w:m
WS SML NG TUYIOT SOV vor an T # ST . ; . iz wm. ]
e o o i i oo M _ e I &
TN AL VDD WY SAYA I NYEASNT GG P -
S A A e T I sl 8 o @ @ 5® & R &
0L 5H_4GT3Y 43, T OT NI OALYIO) S At M T 5R @& yma s I 2 .
WMGHE ISMuTH, - SSTINN 4 A R m v gl ra e B Rk | (€]
SAWM—JO-AHOIM LFTAIS TIV ONOTY 1} TRIEYS 1 . T e st R | ==
AN 0L ¥ O LO3NERS WY X107 TV Z Bnﬂ =) PR Bk pimreintet ity E T 1
. A Y £ i . iamea airuf 7 3onena d - e
73 o s e ki Rk # @ = oi-divcioml JHTS | arivn | cume ] S L L ﬁ "
7 b A gy ¥ . e e 7%
5 8 L g nm.wmx mﬁw&, By e e Y AT divi (xS g i @
ki N vl S Ll © e T o o) A FNILS ? o .mmalflm-.hw Eod _m..n 3 6
& w230 - T w1y i )
) r ¢ D :—u GI0F HY 00575 i Fov g
iy § R s Lo | TATOFR IR AR ek g ) T ) o b e R e SR
. 3 53 I | gen ey
] u;..ﬁ ml e mww nm el i [ v o Wukm [ m mm .w,n b
O i F B oy v | P 5 i 2-£ i —
n”u o Sl aid 3 e g L, 3oy aip v ao pf TIVUTE L pos fwad Ad ™ g 18
R e e ﬁ\ﬂ\ﬁw\ﬂ\ﬂu\n}\ﬁ, s 4 @ @ % 4 ml,mzm e rhgzmma:;: @ q® : 1T @ @gs
= I K i 1 R s
3 | -
L S R RS . @& @ Paot ®m i ‘ ‘ <5
A A g e N0 G @@ ) B E T 3 -
v » N 20T ] z T ﬁ ; ) “_
_ _HE.HQ(Q%& k i . P Y. I | s ww & _ —
( e ..‘m..lr,, . ‘ ‘e ﬁ ooy P, YTy WTLTNT] H i H _r - NI _ nmmu g Im.l
e - _— o e L £ i T o WA CTOMaNY gri
) . W Lan | G | @ | &) | & | P v | Voo gy 1 G | TR e : .
El D a @R ER T @ @ | 2. o) GH
y /A _ ! b4 I (D ‘_ G | @ @ @ Pl | | | 1]
I .tmmu - —— A
el | { | | A e B VR SO B
= fo g ft R e L T mma
LIV NOLLYOOT - i ST B B, S T a0 A = o)
S . . . T B oL 20 SaseTIYLS NALIPMENGD N P e :
L4/ 3BAe 05 i - T - (NI TORLYGI) TN N a.w..a..w QUL SQNTENAE KoLIn - 7 .L.m%aﬁllllrl.
oed YHIORYD o IS = O ol 2 NouTUBGAR. el S Y etaa LSt
e ! _ anrviwow SBHIEE R o i, %, i | | Lo _ (&)
) P el el :
F 5oy _ e _ FRERE Ly s o R H¥3 S i!H | 1
§ gl . i - o R P B _ -
. El -
w8 , — RGP | @y VY
PoB b i ONToTT o
;3 % K ; _ o v 2 STTLST SIS Sma oy S
. % r ) T \%Wﬂ.\.ﬁl\ ~ oot e T B PR TR R W e T »
g x| 7 "3 e e sV Ungade frmneri >
13 TS ONY 38k N O Vs vs e 1wl A ERE1 ] O - £
_—_ — i =L . MPILETEME L YO DG
! — AT e Snvors hil 3 -
= oo 18 | e — 96 J ey g A o G I R O Ty v iy EF 38 et 1 caquaas <10 o
' ) : Pam oudmisa crer SREias Eunvesd e oL PSSR TR A st AR Som T ST LR M o N h T HE o A e 3 N VAL 1ok wad QL
= i _ U, A4MATD AOHH VTGS LSO R ¥, owvD Hison Rty —
|- Im I ]
—




Al S — e ey

2 a0 s ame E

ofF o g ER

. \Seul/

LAV N DS
DN HINAAL OJAVE NYINTISOL

s

ant ViR WAC
g B

: I TN A

= beiss 58 U Mo el
- 39000 AON AV U VS NG |
a PoAOaRY AP 430N

SLNNSGTIATE FOK NI A - . e lag| eer . ;3 : ® AUBenn yITS ANy URIER B e T Bve ke
FTYANO Y ’ : e
a¥
o Wil v %=
@ NOLDIS
I
. P
T - Et\\_\\J\ana L e S ~. . L
: ' B [ Ty -
| ' ! ! i 1 5 ! ! & . N
| , | . ' | i | : t ! K g
. [ . SEIE AW £ J
: i it ! [ ' | i = ’
AL TN CWCLIEELON . : .
e | : ' | : . . : | g o
' | - i N : i . . - -
"/ﬁrllr - S NN Sy .. O E NS N NN
| A vian (VY BB 0] GV 4 0t SO
T T- H
| [ 1
| 1 1
1 1 i
i i i
r MouIE B
ol B s | ol BB | o B o | oo P
S T T T T TR T T T T rREE T T T T T T
L N E i : | ! [
; 5 ! . : 3
AR~ I o | .m‘_
R : 3 | | %}
B !
- b3 I B
» ,
% _
P tproy ow ovmme,
% T sig ‘w. 0w ) S i3
L R ”u
el g0 SEIdYd FTVNL AFHL 3TNYMIOHD
, s s ST 40 kG Yy
B e PR LB TIR 4R 1T
Ty

s o T GYC 0T 0,
oy v oD% P APENLERERN ST, Bl
Sgart. s sr gdive i Py ROKE I 0 bu vy 4
Sp A I W inved SE oSO ] Ll

vy HpgoN ALNTIGL HIAOSHS 3N

I A —

| i : . A e T ] s S ; . "4

N e . ™ < E Y T %3t

R Tl ] B _!\_, . w. ', \ V __Jmm;
> E 5 | P || .

- ]

/
e T T R T T AT i

VIV N YI0T

o o

i 5 - I
N S

HOY3E J\.izjoqqu .
—la . , i o , g ;
= L , O R, By \f Lo saigion
= oy s o3 N » .. el - - P = T E:
Lx L RN ¢ B P - il 8 N e
L - T b= ml . \Os .
| = = : : - - B e W+ I o=
k) i - i Co 3
~ f = s

SLEEP T S WOLYOL A3
HONVH MIN JO A0

VMIDEYD HLEON

AMTHLHYAE SNMNELD AINNDE HFIGNYH ATH
L0 IeACHdY A ZLVOLALEED




FOR REGISTRAT
REBEGGﬁ lONcEGIﬁ'ER OF DEEDS
HANOVER € OUNTY NC

2 0EC 29 03:48:57 Pw
B:47 PG:113-115 FEE :$42.00

MAP INDEX

ISTRENT 4 200406803

dud bt 2429 puge 43,
ame of Map

Owner's Name

Type of Map: l/ Subdivision

Condo

Highway

Book 47 Pages(s) LA -118

A

—

Number of Pages

Recorded b ‘ i
Deputy/Assistant/Register of Deeds




REBECCA T. CHRISTIAN
REGISTER OF DEEDS, NEW HANOVER
216 NORTH SECOND STREET

WILMINGTON, NC 28401

Filed For Registration: 12/29/2004 03:48:57 PM
Book: PLAT 47 Page: 113118
Document No.: 2004068236
PLAT 3PGS $42.00

Recorder: MARVIS ANN STORER

State of North Caroiina, County of New Hanover

REBECCAT. GHRISTIAN , REGISTER OF DEEDS

B,fmwanwém&w/

Deputy/AssiatantRegister of Deeds

YELLOW PROBATE SHEET IS A VITAL PART OF YOUR RECORDED DOCUMENT.
PLEASE RETAIN WITH ORIGINAL DOCUMENT AND SUBMIT FOR RE-RECORDING.

*2004068236*

2004068236



Beook 6315 Page 17

axrocrs | [UNONAREAE

: 1
05272020 NEW mnoveag%’ol;m ne  CrEEs:00
12:29:16 PM TANMY THEUSCH BEASLEY
BY: SAMANTHA SPEAKER

DEPLTY REGISTER OF DEEDS
EXHIBIT

State of North Carollna
County of New Hanover

Amendment to:,

Amended and Restated Declaration

Of Restricted Covenants for:

Pilots Ridge Aero Plantation

July 31, 2012

Whereas, thers have previously baen recorded for Pilots Ridge Aero Plantation
subdivision (*Pilots Ridge®) a Declaration and amendments in Book 1239, Page 616; Book
1279, Page 647; Book 1309, Page 65; Book 1320, Page 480; Book 4800, Page 2119, which
replaces all prior versions; Book 5113, Page 239; Book 6859, Page 2038, which replaces all
[Q:rlor xlons’; Book 5773, Page 1289; Book RB 5948, Page 2484; and Book RB 6101, Page

10;

Whereas, page 5 of the Restricted Covenants of the Declaration, Section 7, Sethack
Lines, states that “No building or structure of any nature shall be located closer than fifteen (15)
feet to the side property lines ....".

Whereas, the Owner of.Lot 29 requested a variance for a modified setback for both the
east and west side property lines of ten (10) feet, consistent with New Hanover County Zoning.

Whereas, the sald Declaration provides in Section 23 “Modifications and Amendments®,
that it may be amended by a vote of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the interests of all owners;
and

Whereas, a notice to all members was provided on the 4th day.of June, 2019, the notice
of which contained a full statement of the proposed amsndment; a!':d :

Whereas, on June 30, 2019 more than 2/3 of all the members voted in favor of the
amendment and &l of the Board of Directors are in favor of the amendment,



Book 6315 Page 18

Whereas, as a result of the votes of mors than 2/3 of the members, and the affirmative
approval of the Directors, the Amended and Restated Declaration of Restrictive Covenants for
Pliots Ridge Aero Plantation, dated July 31, 2012 is approved to be amended.

Now Therefore, the holders of interests comprising more than two-thirds of the lot
owners of a certain Subdivision in New Hanover County, North Carolina, known as “Pllots
Ridge Aero Plantation” as shown on plats titled “Section 1, Pilots Ridge Aero Plantation”
recorded in Map Book 22 at Page 55, and "Section 2, Pilots Rldge Aero. Plantation” recorded
on Map Book 80 at Page 275, each in the office of the Register of Deeds of New Hanover
County, have approved this Amendment in accordance with the provisions of Section 23 of the
Deolaration regarding Amendments.

Further therefore, this amendment hereby grants an exception of the Restrictive
Covenants, Section 7, Setback Lines, with regard to Lot 29, Therefore, the setback
reqwremenisfoantZQarewaived,andthemqueshedEastandwwsidepmpertyllne
seﬂ:ackoften(m)feet consistentwithNewHaamerCounty Zoning is hereby approved.

In witness whereof, the Assoclation has caused this instrument to be signed In its name
and do hereby oertlfyﬂ'\atﬂ&ds or more of the lot owners have approved this instrument as
evidenced by written and signed ballots on file with the Secretary/Treasurer.

This_ZZ,_dayof Moy , 2020,

T
PILOTS RIDGE AERO PLANTATION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION. By:

Gregoty Dunn, Vice President

2.5

Bill Sansone, Secretary/Treasurar

vmmeesmyhandamotaﬁalsealtﬁs_ZLdayof_Mmg} , 2020
g,

O ﬂucg,./z ,,
f %
s, RY =
S $ 1" <= Notary Public ,

G

oy 65: My commission expires: Wiy 2Q.

) ;’duovﬁ%"‘%‘
ity



Boock 6315 Page 19

TAMMY THEUSCH
BEASLEY . New Hanover County

Register of Deeds Register of DeEdS

320 CHESTNUT ST SUITE 102 * WILMINGTON, NORTH CAROLINA 28401
Telephone 910-798-4530 * Fax 910-798-7716

s v o e e o e oo e s el e 00 ol o o el i ok vk el ol e e o ol o ol o e ool el ol ol e ol oo ool e o o ol o el e o ol e S ol ol ool o o o e ol e o o ol e e i o o o e ok e e e

State of North Carolina, County of NEW HANOVER
Filed For Registration: 05/27/2020 12:29:16 PM
Book: RB 6315 Page: 17-19
3 PGS $26.00

Real Property $26.00
Recorder: SAMANTHA SPEAKER
Document No: 2020019071

drddk ki ddd kb kb hkhrdd bk bbbk hdhd bbbk bbb bbbk h R b h RN A R R R NN R R R R d ok bk kb bbb ek ol kel

DO NOT REMOVE!
This caertification sheat is s vital part of your recorded dotument. Please ratain with original document and submit

when re-recoxding.




Yy g

L119IHX3

EEOEE W
NYd HLUS ANVNIRTRNG

EY Elpain SL0TK - @8 O

HVONVH 30daNd

o ALMIIGWE

VHTITONYS HMULEGR M & LSRR

NOWNLYLRY T O

18
Mot
P-ior

.
2
Do

PRI T

oA S0 315
5 % o
S e
R et et e
5 %4 AR
fiogescscs

baaetate!
$500¢

‘-L;Vg.a.-aoo;-vo.;oo-oo
Rooi sttt iasetote o
: e
el e Tat et ot T T B R h s e s R ..
B e AR
s
st




REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION REQUEST
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
April 27, 2021

CASE: BOA-961

PETITIONER: Oxford House Showman, applicant, on behalf of Javarah and Mary Joseph, property
owners.

REQUEST: Reasonable accommodation request under the Federal Fair Housing Act per Section 10.3.13
of the Unified Development Ordinance to allow up to 8 disabled persons residing together

in a group home.

LOCATION: 314 Silva Terra Drive
PID: RO7020-010-011-000

ZONING: R-15, Residential District
BACKGROUND AND ORDINANCE CONSIDERATIONS:
The applicant intends to permit a group home run by the Oxford House at the subject property. The New

Hanover County UDO allows up to six disabled persons to reside in a group home by-right in the R-15
zoning district per the Principal Use Table in Section 4.2.1:

Table 4.2.1: Principal Use Table

Key: P = Permitted by Right S = Special Use Permit Required  * = Specific Use Standards Apply in District

blank cell = not allowed

Zoning District "
. T
Use " - == x N s
RN HEHE R R MAE 3
“ 1 1 '_I 'T 1 1 T U — o
MEHEPIPIFIFPIFMTHEHEHHGEEHR IR R A R

Group Living
Group Home p/ P|P|P|P|P|P|P|P|P|P|P|P|P S S 4.3.2
* % % * * % * % * * * % * % * .2

Group Homes fall under the “Group Living” classification in the Principal Use Table and are defined in the
UDO as follows:

Group Home — A home in which more than three unrelated persons with a disability, as defined in the
U.S. Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. 3601 et seq., live together as a self-supporting and self-sufficient
household unit.

The Fair Housing Act defines persons with a disability to mean those individuals with mental or physical
impairments that substantially limit one or more maijor life activities. The term mental or physical impairment
may include conditions such as blindness, hearing impairment, mobility impairment, HIV infection, mental
retardation, alcoholism, drug addiction, chronic fatigue, learning disability, head injury, and mental illness.

ZBA-961
Page 1 0f4



Additional standards for group homes are detailed in Section 4.3.2.B.3 of the UDO and generally address
the number of occupants, required approvals and certifications, parking requirements, and separation from
other group homes:

4.3.2. RESIDENTIAL USES

B.
3.

Group Living
Group Home

Group homes shall comply with the following standards:

a.

b.

o

Group homes shall be limited to six disabled persons living together as a self-supporting and
self-sufficient household unit.
No group home shall be occupied or operated without zoning approval.

1. Group homes that are exempt from licensure pursuant to NCGS §122C-22 must
recertify their exemption status annually; and
2. Group homes for special needs persons must recertify qualification of all residents as

special needs persons annually.

Parking shall be provided in accordance with Section 5.1: Parking and Loading.

Group homes shall not be located closer than 2,000 feet to any other existing group home,
measured by a straight line from the nearest property lines, irrespective of jurisdictional
boundaries. The distance shall be reduced by the right-of-way of a major thoroughfare
exceeding 100 feet, major topographical features such as a major watercourse, or by major
nonresidential or public uses such as a park, school, or religious institution.

Reasonable accommodations shall be provided in accordance with Section 10.3.13, Reasonable
Accommodation.

This section also references a process located in Section 10.3.13 by which a group home provider may
petition for a reasonable accommodation under the Federal Fair Housing Act to vary any of the provisions
outlined in Section 4.3.2 B. Section 10.3.13 outlines the eligibility requirements for residents in a group
home as well as the application and review standards for a reasonable accommodation request. The
Board of Adjustment is authorized to grant such a request after holding a quasi-judicial hearing and finding
that the request meets the criteria below, particularly if it is found to be both “reasonable” and “necessary:”

10.3.13. REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION

ZBA-961

A. Applicability
1. General

This section provides a procedure for reasonable accommodation of eligible persons in
cases where the strict application of the standards of this Ordinance would deprive
them of their right to equal opportunity to use a dwelling under the federal Fair Housing
Act.

2. Eligible Persons

a. An eligible person is a person who meets the definition of a disabled
or handicapped person under federal law.

Page 2 of 4



b. A person recovering from substance abuse is considered a person with
a disability or handicap provided they are not currently engaging in
the illegal use of controlled substances.
(section B discusses the Reasonable Accommodation application and review procedures)

C. Reasonable Accommodation Review Standards

1. A reasonable accommodation application shall be approved on a finding the
proposed accommodation:

a. Will be used by an individual or individuals with a disability or handicap
protected under federal law;
b. Is the minimum needed to provide accommodation; and
c. Is reasonable and necessary.
2, For the purposes of this section, an accommodation is reasonable if it would

not undermine the legitimate purposes of this Ordinance, it does not constitute
a substantial alteration of this Ordinance or other County standard, and it will
not impose significant financial and administrative burdens upon the County.

3. For the purposes of this section, an accommodation is necessary if it would
provide direct or meaningful therapeutic amelioration of the effects of the
particular disability or handicap, and would afford handicapped or disabled
persons equal opportunity to use housing in residential districts in the County.

The specific request is to allow up to 8 disabled persons instead of up to 6 disabled persons to reside in a
proposed group home at 314 Silva Terra Drive. According to New Hanover County tax records, the home
lies on a 0.36-acre parcel and contains 1,915 square feet of living area. A copy of the property record
card is included as an addendum fto this staff report.

Included with the petitioner’s application is a statement of justification for the special exception request, as
well as the Oxford House Manual.

ZBA-961
Page 3 0of 4



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT POWER AND DUTY:

The Board of Adjustment is authorized to grant reasonable accommodations for the special circumstances
as set forth in 10.3.13 of the New Hanover County Unified Development Ordinance to allow for reasonable
accommodation under the Federal Fair Housing Act. The Board of Adjustment shall grant a request for
reasonable accommodation under the Federal Fair Housing Act if the Board finds by the greater weight of
the evidence that the proposed special exception will be used by an individual or individuals with a
disability or handicap protected under federal law, is the minimum needed to provide accommodation,
and is both “reasonable” and “necessary.”

1. "Reasonable" - An accommodation will be determined to be reasonable if it would not undermine
the legitimate purposes of this Ordinance, it does not constitute a substantial alteration of this
Ordinance or other County standard, and it will not impose significant financial and administrative
burdens upon the County; and

2. "Necessary" - An accommodation will be determined to be necessary if it would provide direct or
meaningful therapeutic amelioration of the effects of the particular disability or handicap, and
would afford handicapped or disabled persons equal opportunity to use housing in residential
districts in the County.

ACTION NEEDED (Choose one):

1. Motion to approve the special exception request based on the findings of fact (with or
without recommended conditions)

2. Motion to table the item in order to receive additional information or documentation
(Specify).

3. Motion to deny the special exception request based on specific negative findings in either

of the two categories above.

ZBA-961
Page 4 of 4



210
N |l | Feet \

Case: BOA-961 Vicinity Map
Address: 314 Silva Terra Dr
Reasonable Accommodation Request per Section 10.3.13 of the New Hanover County

Unified Development Ordinance
Applicant: Oxford House Showman

New Hanover County Board of Adjustment April 27, 2021



Case: BOA-961 Zoning Map
Address: 314 Silva Terra Dr

Reasonable Accommodation Request per Section 10.3.13 of the New Hanover County
Unified Development Ordinance
Applicant: Oxford House Showman

New Hanover County Board of Adjustment April 27, 2021




Case: BOA-961 Aerial Map
Address: 314 Silva Terra Dr

Reasonable Accommodation Request per Section 10.3.13 of the New Hanover County
Unified Development Ordinance

Applicant: Oxford House Showman

New Hanover County Board of Adjustment April 27, 2021




NEW HANOVER COUNTY
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

230 Government Center Drive, Lucie Harrell Conference Room, Wilmington, NC 28403
Members of the Board
Cameron Moore, Chair | Kristin Freeman, Vice-Chair
Henry “Hank"” Adams | Maverick Pate | Luke Waddell
Board Alternates
Pete DeVita | Richard Kern | Michael Keenan, Sr.

Rebekah Roth, Director of Planning & Land Use | Sharon Huffman, Deputy County Attorney

ORDER TO GRANT/DENY A REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION REQUEST — Case BOA-961

The Board of Adjustment for New Hanover County, having held a public hearing on April 27, 2021 to
consider application number BOA-961, submitted Oxford House Showman, applicant, on behalf of Javarah
and Mary Joseph, property owners, a request for reasonable accommodation under the Federal Fair
Housing Act to allow up to eight disabled persons to reside together in a group home located at 314 Silva
Terra Drive, and having heard all the evidence and arguments presented at the hearing, makes the

following FINDINGS OF FACT and draws the following CONCLUSIONS:

1. It is the Board’s conclusion that the request to deviate to eight from the limit of six disabled
persons living together in a group home at 314 Silva Terra Drive is/is not reasonable. Note: an
accommodation will be determined to be reasonable accommodation if it would not undermine
the legitimate purposes of this Ordinance, it does not constitute a substantial alteration of this
Ordinance or other County standard, and it will not impose significant financial and administrative
burdens upon the County. This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

2. It is the Board’s conclusion that the request to deviate to eight from the limit of six disabled
persons living together in a group home at 314 Silva Terra Drive is/is not necessary. Note: an
accommodation will be determined to be necessary if it would provide direct or meaningful
therapeutic amelioration of the effects of the particular disability or handicap, and would afford
handicapped or disabled persons equal opportunity to use housing in residential districts in the
County. This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:




THEREFORE, on the basis of all the foregoing, IT IS ORDERED that the application for a REASONABLE
ACCOMMODATION under the Federal Fair Housing Act per Section 10.3.13 of the New Hanover County
Unified Development Ordinance to allow up to 8 disabled persons to reside together in a group home
located at 314 Silva Terra Drive be GRANTED/DENIED.

ORDERED this 27" day of April, 2021.

Cameron Moore, Chairman

Attest:

Kenneth Vafier, Executive Secretary to the Board



NEW HANOVER COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & LAND USE
230 Govemment Center Drive, Suite 110
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403

Telephone (910) 798-7165

FAX (910) 798-7053
planningdevelopment.nhcgov.com

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION APPLICATION

This application form must be completed as part of an application to appeal an administrative decision submitted
through the county’s online COAST portal. The main procedural steps in the submittal and review of applications for
text amendments are outlined in the flowchart below. More specific submittal and review requirements, as well as the
standards fo be applied in reviewing the application, are set out in Section 10.3.13 of the Unified Development

Ordinance.

Application

Icceptance | & STaM Repor

el L Blannig.
gt Submittal®  NOfrecwocReviaw ] SEhatliling 5

Public
Hearing
Procedures

4

3

Bubiic Haokring |

Hotificatinn

1. Applicant and Property Owner Information

Applicant/Agent Nome
OXForD  HovsE SHowman

Owner Name (if different from Applicant/Agent)

JavacAd TosEPK

Company

Company/Owner Name 2

PMARy JoSgPH

Address Address
31y SILVA 7eqeq okive Po Box ¢lald
City, State, Zip City, State, Zip
WILMNs7on , NC , 2541 RALE/H, vC, Mbbl
Phone Phone
q410- VY¥2-928Y {A2-2a31-]00%
e SHowmau@ pxrordkouse. us - 0SLP\n . ENterprise®yvahop. con

Page 1 of 3
Reasonable Accommodation Application — Updated 12-2020



i
‘\‘f

—
: B Al e 7 "
\\n\.-j- fomm "

NEW HANOVER COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & LAND USE
230 Government Center Drive, Svite 110 - o
Wilmingten, North Carolina 28403 Tt
Telephone {$10) 798-7145

FAX (910) 798-7053

planningdevelopment.nhegov.com

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION APPLICATION

This application form must be completed as part of an application to appeal an administrative decision submitted
through the county's online COAST portal. The main procedural steps in the submittal and review of applications for
text amendments are outlined in the flowchart below. More specdific submittal and review requirements, as well as the

standards to be applied in reviewing the application, are set out in Section 10.3.13 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

Public
Hearing
Procedures

Boardnf
AdustriEAt

Applieation Fianning BublfciHearing

Sutbmittit & | OjrectarFevien ] Sdheauliig &

Actoptance [ EStatRepuet | Watificatinn.

Heea el &
Deiion

1. Applicant and Property Owner Information

Applicant/Agent Name Owner Name (if different from Applicant/Agent)
OxFoRe HovsE  SHowman JavarAH JosEPH
Company Company/Owner Name 2
MRy JoS£FH
Address Address
31y SILVA 7egeq orwe Po Box 6/a1d
City, State, Zip City, State, Zip
WiLMieren , NC , R%Y1a RALEI6H , e, nbbl
Phone Phone
| 9/0-1Y2-928Y %34 -231~]00%
Email Email
" SHowman@ pxtordhouse. us By 0SLP\. entererise(d)yvahop. con

Page 1 of 3
Reasonable Accommodation Application = Updated 12-2020



2. Subject Property Information

Address/Location Parcel Identification Number(s) v
3"" 5I~LUA TERKA oQfuwE Roe1e - sve -\ - poo
Total Parcel(s) Acreage W Summary of Special Exception Requested:

0.3 SEE  pgHuched  sradtmeat of JostFimtinn .

3. Request for Special Exception

In the space below, please describe the request for the reasonable accommodation, including the provisions of the
Unified Development Ordinance for which the accommodation is being requested. Applicants are advised to
demonstrate how the reasoncble accommodation request

* Wil be used by an individual or individuals with o disability or handicap protected under federal law;
¢ s the minimum needed to provide cccommodation; and
® Is reasonable and necessary.

Please ?uﬂoch additional pages if necessary.

i SEE  Addaihed Stakemeat of .\us-\—;-‘:;‘ck*tom*

Poge 2 of 3
Reasonable Accommedation Application — Updated 12-2020



Staff will use the following checklist to determine the completeness of your application. Please verify ali of the
listed items are included and confirm by initialing under *Applicant Initial”. Applications determined to be
incomplete must be corrected in order to be processed for further review.

Application Checkdist ApplicantAnitial

{3 This application form, completed and signed

[0 Any supporting documentation ﬁ{g
{J One hard copy of ALL documents. Additional hard copies may be required by staff

depending on the size of the document fsite plan g 2 é
O One digitol PDF copy of ALL documents.

4. Acknowledgement and Signatures

By my signature below, | understand and accept all of the conditions, limitations, and obligations of the
reasoncble accommodation for which | am applying. | certify that this application is complete and that alf
information presented in this application is accurate to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief.

If applicable, | alse appoint the applicant/agent as listed on this application to represent me and make decisions
on my behalf regarding this application during the review process. The applicant/agent is hereby authorized on
my behalf to:

1. Submit an application including all required supplemental information and materials;
2. Appear ot pyblic hearings to give representation and comments; and

3. Act on my behalf without fimitations with regard to any and all things directly or indirectly connected with
or arising out of this applicatipn.

Jowaoh

Print Name(s)

I ond1HAN (DO

Signature of Applicant/Agent Print Name

Page 3 of 3
Reasonable Accommedation Application — Updated 12-2020



DocuSign Envelope ID: 82A75C52-7TB8C-4E74-B21F-4ECF26C37EC2

NEW HANOVER COUNTY
PLANNING & INSPECTIONS

AUTHORITY FOR
APPOINTMENT OF AGENT

|, Cimm g
230 Government Center Drive
Suite 110
Wilmington, NC 28403
91{-798-7165 phone
910-798-7053 fax
www.nhcgov.com

Please note that for quasi-judicial proceedings, either the land owner or an attomey must be present for the case
at the public hearing.

The undersigned owner does hereby appoint an authorized the agent described berein as their exclusive agent
for the purpose of petitioning New Hanover County for a variance, special use permit, rezoning request, and/or
an appeal of Staff decisions applicable to the property described in the attached petition. The Agent is hereby
authorized to, on behalf of the property owner:

1. Submit a proper petition and the required supplemental information and materials

2. Appeal at public meetings to give representation and commitments on behalf of the property owner

3. Act on the property owner’s behalf without limitations with regard to any and all things directly or
indirectly connected with or arising out of any petition applicable to the New Hanover County Zoning

Ordinance.
Agent Information Property Owner(s) | Sabject Property
N Owaer Name Address
(;&gc- Heésener JAVARAK TosfgPH Y SiLh Teresd on
Company Owner Name 2 City, State, Zip
(?gﬁ oty Alaw HenSner FA|MARY JosePr/ b:me.l N
Jﬂ_mu;{gg pak_prive P> Box olY
City, State, City, State, Zip

Kalam N, 26!

‘il‘f q67 - 3§oo

%3 2371003

ISl

-Q'-S"\ FIVYN

_Un_‘sh\

DocuSigned by:

w/
This document was willfully executed on the day of , 20
DocuSigned by:
[ trmpluill-dosugle
wher | Signature 2/27/2021 #*8{gnature 272772071

04/14



STATEMENT OF JUSTIFICATION

Oxford House, Inc. requests a Special Exception from Section 63.11:1 of the County
Zoning Ordinance, which section limits the number of disabled persons that may live in a group
home to six.

Specifically, Oxford House requests that eight disabled men be allowed to live at the
Oxford House located at 314 Silva Terrra Drive in Wilmington. The house itselfis a single-family
detached home, 2088 square foot home, with 5 bedrooms and 2 full baths. The home has driveway
parking.

New Hanover County’s zoning ordinance defines Oxford Houses as a “group homes”
pursuant to the definition of same in the ordinance. Further, the residents of Oxford House are
defined as “disabled persons™ pursuant to the definition of same in the ordinance.

WHAT IS AN OXFORD HOUSE

Oxford Houses are homes for persons recovering from alcoholism and or drug addiction,
who are no longer using alcohol or drugs. Oxford House is a self-run, self-supported recovery
home concept and standardized system of operation that served as the model for the self-run, self-
supported group recovery homes authorized for start-up loans under the Federal Anti-Drug Abuse
Act of 1988. This legislation required each state to set aside $100,000 in a revolving loan fund to
make loans to recovering addicts and alcoholics to assist in the establishment of housing that is
financially self-supported, democratically run, and immediately expels anyone who relapses.

Many of over three thousand Oxford Houses in the United States were started with loans
pursuant to this Act through contracts with state governments, Most of the over three hundred

Oxford Houses in North Carolina were started with loans pursuant to this Act through an ongoing



contract with the State of North Carolina. Since 1990, the State of North Carolina, through the
Department of Health and Human Services, has entered into annual contracts with Oxford House,
Inc., the umbrella organization of the national network of Oxford Houses, to help establish and
assist in the maintenance of a statewide network of Oxford Houses.

Each Oxford House is chartered by Oxford House, Inc., a 501(c)(3) nonprofit umbrella
organization. Three basic conditions are required to obtain a charter: 1). The house must be
democratically self-run following the standard system of operation set forth in the Oxford House
Manual; 2). The house must be financially self-supporting by the individual residents paying equal
shares of household expenses in a timely manner, and; 3). The house must immediately expel any
resident who returns to using alcohol or drugs inside or outside of the house.

Oxford House, Inc.’s by-laws preclude it or its chartered houses from owning residential
property, thus all Oxford Houses are rented. A group wanting to start an Oxford House behaves
in the household rental market just like an ordinary family. It finds an available, suitable house
and rents it by paying the first month’s rent and security deposit to a willing landlord. Usually,
these funds come from the above referenced start-up loans. Oxford House residents are encouraged
to rent single family dwellings in good neighborhoods.

The houses operate autonomousty, but must follow the procedures in the Oxford House
Manual and adhere to the conditions of its charter. Each Oxford House has its own bank account.
There are no dues or fees to Oxford House, Inc. by individual houses, but having a charter gives
the houses technical assistance and support by Oxford House, Inc., including defense of the civil
rights of every Oxford House.

Oxford Houses are not substance abuse centers or halfway houses. No treatment,

counseling, therapy, or any kind of health care is provided. There is no house manager, paid staff,



FPalatine, 37 ¥.3d 1230 (7th Cir, 1994); United States (on behalf of Oxford House) v. Village of
Audubon, 797 F. Supp. 353, aff'd without opinion, 968 F.2d 14 (3d Cir. 1992); Oxford House, Inc.

v. Town of Babylon, 819 F. Supp. 1179 (E.D.N.Y. 1993); Oxford House v. T: ownship of Cherry
Hill, 799 F. Supp. 450 (D.N.J. 1992); Oxford House-Evergreen v. City of Plainfield, 769 F. Supp.

1197 (D.N.J. 1991), and; Tsombanidis, and Oxford House, Inc. v. City of West Haven, Connecticut,

180 F. Supp. 262 (Ct. 2001).

As members of a protected class under the FHA, Oxford Houses are protected against
discriminatory zoning practices. As such, the issue of whether an Oxford House is in violation of
local zoning ordinances is not relevant to the question of federal law. See United States (on behalf
of Oxford House) v. Village of Audubon, supra. The FHA prohibits discriminatory land use
decisions by local governments, even when such decisions are “ostensibly authorized by local
ordinance.” See Oxford House Evergreen v. City of Plainfield, supra; also 42 U.S.C. Section 3615
(“any law of a State, a political subdivision, or other jurisdiction that purports to require or permit
any action that would be a discriminatory housing practice under this subchapter shall to that extent
be invalid under the Fair Housing Act™).

The aforementioned prohibition under the FHA against zoning discrimination by local
governments includes the requirement that local governments make reasonable accommodations
in their zoning ordinances to allow the operation of Oxford Houses. Specifically, 42 U.S.C.
3604(f)(3XB), defines discrimination to include a “refusal to make reasonable accommodations in
rules, policies, practices, or services, when such accommodations may be necessary to afford such
handicapped person equal opportunity to use and enjoy a dwelling.” See Oxford House v. City of
St. Louis, supra; Oxford House v. City of Plainfield, supra; Oxford House v. T ownship of Cherry

Hill, supra, and; Oxford House, Inc. v. Town of Babylon, supra. The County’s zoning ordinance



is ostensibly a means for the County, through its BOA, to provide the required reasonable
accommodation.

The Section 63 of the County Zoning Ordinance follows federal law by requiring a
reasonable accommodation when the request is both reasonable and necessary as each is defined
in the law and set forth in Section 63.1 of the ordinance. Specifically, the ordinance defines
reasonable and necessary as follows:

1. “Reasonable”. An accommodation will be determined reasonable if it would not
undermine the legitimate purposes and effects of the existing zoning regulations,
and if it would not impose significant financial and administrative burdens upon
the County and/or constitute a substantial or fundamental alteration of the County’s
ordinance provisions; and

2. “Necessary”. An accommodation will be determined necessary if it would provide
direct or meaningful therapeutic amelioration of the effects of the particular
disability or handicap, and would afford handicapped or disabled persons equal
opportunity to enjoy and use housing in residential districts of the County.

Under Section 63.1 of the ordinance, upon the finding that the request by Oxford House is
reasonable and necessary as defined above, the BOA shall grant the requested exception to allow
8 persons to live at 314 Silva Terra Drive. The reasonableness and necessity as to Oxford House
at 314 Silva Terra Drive are set forth below.

REQUEST IS REASONABLE
No Burden
There is no evidence of any financial or administrative burden on the County by the

existence of the Oxford House. In fact, the Oxford House will provides a free benefit to the County



by providing housing and aiding in the recovery of those recovering from alcoholism and drug
addiction.

Zoning Scheme Not Undermined or Fundamentally Altered

The Oxford House does not undermine the purposes of the County’s zoning ordinance.
The ordinance expressly allows for this type of housing. The ordinance also allows for this type
of housing at this particular location. Further, the ordinance was recently amended to provide for
an exception or reasonable accommodation for the request made herein. The ordinance itself is
proof that the Oxford House does not undermine the County’s ordinance or fundamentally alter its
zoning scheme. There are other Oxford Houses in the County in similar zoning districts, and none
have undermined or fundamentally altered the County’s zoning scheme.
REQUEST IS NECESSARY

Therapeuticaily Beneficial

By its very nature the Oxford House model’s therapeutic benefit is derived solely from its
residents. As described above, in an Oxford House there are no counselors, managers, care
providers or outside personnel that provide any therapeutic services. Oxford Houses are not like
traditional group homes, halfway houses, or family care homes - all of which have managers and
provide some services to their residents. In such traditional homes a lesser number of residents
will not have any therapeutic impact. Not so in an Oxford House. The quality of the relationship
among the residents in an Oxford House is one of mutual support and bonding, providing an
ameltorative therapeutic benefit which aids each resident in their recovery from alcoholism or drug
addiction. As a result of this therapeutic benefit, those living in an Oxford House are more likely

to remain clean and sober than those living on their own.!

! DePaul University study that followed 897 residents in 219 Oxford Houses across the country for
27 months found that only 13% relapsed. A peer-reviewed published report of that study in Addictive

6



The average number of residents in an Oxford House in North Carolina is eight (8). The
average vacancy rate for Oxford Houses in North Carolina is one (1), meaning that with an allowed
maximum capacity of 8, the Oxford House at 314 Silva Terra Drive will usually have just 7
residents. If the house is not granted the requested exception, then it would be limited to 6
residents. With the average vacancy rate, a 6 person Oxford House would usually have only 5
residents. As set forth above the oxford House model requires a minimum of 6 residents at all
time to hold all required offices (president, vice president, secretary, treasurer, comptroller, and
coordinator). A house that falls below six residents on a regular basis can lose it charter from
Oxford House, Inc. Without the requested accommodation/exception, the Oxford House 314 Silva
Terra Drive would be put in jeopardy of failing for lack of enough residents. Failure of the house
means it would close, causing its residents to lose their home and support in their recovery.
Invariably some would relapse. Relapse could be permanent and fatal. The ameliorative
therapeutic benefit of the requested exception here is a threshold, make or break degree of
amelioration.

An Equal Opportunity to Use and Enjoy Housing of Their Choice

Finally, the Oxford House at 314 Silva Terra Drive will be home to its residents. The
requested accommodation/exception provides the residents an equat opportunity to use and enjoy

housing of their choice?.

Behaviors 32 (2007) can be downloaded at the Oxford House, Inc. website wunder
“Publications/Evaluations/DePaul.” In another study 150 individuals getting out of primary treatment were
divided into two groups of 75 each with one group going to Oxford Houses and the other group going to
normal living situations, each group was followed for two years after treatment and the Oxford House group
did substantially better in staying clean and sober — 66% v. 33%. American Journal of Public Health, Oct
2006; Vol. 96, pp1727-1729.

2 The County’s ordinance falls short of what federal law requires as to equal opportunity. The law
requires not just an equal opportunity to enjoy and nse housing “in residential districts in the County”, but
requires equal opportunity for disabled person to enjoy and using housing of their choice. Several courts

7



Without the requested accommodation the house would close as noted above. Closing of
the house cause some residents to relapse, with potentially fatal consequences as noted above.
Additionally, finding another house to rent to potentially relocate the Oxford House would be
extremely difficult. Finding landlords willing to rent to Oxford House is difficult because of the
stigma of alcoholism and drug addiction, the fear of zoning problems, neighbor ignorance and
opposition, and finally because Oxford House requires long-term leases into which many landlords

simply will not often enter.

have held the FHA protects the rights of disabled persons to use and enjoy the particular dwelling of their
choice. See, e.g., Hovson's, Inc. v. Township of Brick, 89 F.3d 1096, 1103-06 (3rd Cir. 1996); United
States v. City of Jackson, 318 F.Supp.2d 395, 416 (S.D. Miss. 2002) (FHA “guarantee[s] that the disabled
be afforded equal opportunity to live, not in some residence in the community, but rather in the residence
of their choice™); ARC of New Jersey, Inc. v. State of New Jersey, 950 F. Supp. 637, 645 (D. N.J. 1996)
(“Such ceiling quotas [imposed via group home spacing rules] improperly limit the ability of handicapped
persons ‘to live in the residence of their choice in the community,” House Report at 24, even if imposed in
the name of integration or ‘declustering’); Oxford House, Inc. v. Town of Babylon, 819 F. Supp. 1179,
1185 n.10 (E.D. N.Y. 1993) (FHA “dictates that a handicapped individual must be allowed to enjoy &
particular dwelling, not just some dwelling somewhere in the town™); Oxford House-Evergreen v. City of
Plainfield, 769 F. Supp. 1329, 1344 (D. N.J. 1991) (defense based on existence of alternative locations in
the city for group home held “without merit™).




Oxford House Manual®

An Idea Based On a Sound System
For Recovering Alcoholics and Drug Addicts to Help Themselves

I o s e e e ) e o o e e e o e o e e £ e e e e e e £ e o o e e e £ e o e e £ e o e e e e ) e o e e e e e )

HOUSING,
FELLOWSHIP,
SELF-RELIANCE,
SELF-RESPECT,

FOR RECOVERING INDIVIDUALS

Commemorative Edition

19" Oxford House World Convention
Oxford House™
"Unique*Time-Tested*Evidence-Based"
Marriott Renaissance
Washington, D.C.

August 31 — September 3, 2017

Oxford House, Inc., the umbrella organization o f the worldwide network of individual Oxford Houses,
is the non-profit corporation that provides charters to eligible groups of recovering alcoholics and drug addicts
who want to establish a new Oxford House™.

© September 2017



Introduction

This is the eighth edition of the Oxford House™ Manual® that has served thousands of Oxford
House members since 1975. The theme of the 2017 Annual World Convention in Dallas —
“Oxford House:Unique ¢ Time-tested ® Evidence-based ” — focuses on the characteristics and
practices identified in this manual and are still applicable.

On November 18, 1988 President Ronald Reagan signed P.L..100-690, the Anti-Drug Abuse Act
of 1988, which established a nationwide program to encourage the mass replication of recovery
houses based upon the Oxford House™ concept. At the request of Congress, Oxford House™
worked with them in crafting a simple, but workable, start-up loan program in each state.
Originally the start-up loan program was mandatory but now it is permissive.! Some states have
start-up revolving loan funds and some do not.

Expansion of Oxford Houses began in June 1989. Within five years the number of Oxford
Houses had grown from 18, primarily in and around Washington, D.C., to more than 500 located
in 39 states.”> Year after year, the number of Oxford Houses has continued to increase. More
than 450,000 individuals recovering from alcoholism, drug addiction and co-occurring mental
illness have found that Oxford House living has contributed to their long-term recovery. The
time, peer support and disciplined participatory democracy that underlies Oxford House™ gave
each of them time to re-invent personal behavior from a life of chaos into comfortable long-term
recovery without relapse.

The foundation or blueprint for that transformation continues to be the Oxford House Manual®.
As with the previous seven editions of the original 1975 manual, this edition is also dedicated to
Jim S. — the first member voted into Oxford House in 1975. On August 19, 1987, Jim died — at
far too young an age but with over 12 years of remarkable sobriety. He touched hundreds of
recovering alcoholics with his dedicated program of joyful sobriety. For two and a half years
he lived in Oxford House™ , keeping everyone's spirits up and proving that Oxford House™
worked, and then rejoined his wife and two children. As a "graduate of Oxford House™ " Jim
kept coming back to bring "newcomers" in and help "old-timers" out. Jim taught us all that
you don't need to drink or use drugs to have a good time living in an Oxford House™ .

The only significant change in this edition of the manual is a reminder that bills must be paid on
time for an Oxford House to retain its charter. Simply stated, that means that if a house is short
of funds to pay the landlord’s rent or any other bill on time, then those living in the house at that
time must dig into their own pockets and come up with the necessary money on an equal share
basis. The reputation of Oxford House™ is too important to let it be damaged by deadbeats.

The Oxford House Manual® is a blueprint for running a successful Oxford House™ . Learn what
it says and follow its time-tested practices and procedures.

! See the Oxford House website: www.oxfordhouse.org under “About Us/History” for the text of the current law.

*The number of Oxford Houses reached 2,200 early in the third quarter of 2017 just prior to the 19" Oxford House
World Convention in Washington, DC. The total number includes houses in 44 states, Canada, England, Australia
and Ghana.



The Oxford House™ Story

In October 1975, the first Oxford House™ was opened in Silver Spring, Maryland, by a
group of recovering alcoholics and drug addicts, who had been living in a county government-
run halfway house. Each of them had been clean and sober for but a short period of time
when they learned that the halfway house was to be closed. Each of them was fearful that he
would return to alcoholic drinking or drug use without the support of living in a group
committed to staying sober and clean.

When the news reached them that the halfway house was going to be closed, their first reaction
was one of anger, resentment and panic. They had known that the halfway house had a
"six month rule" which required an individual to move out after six months to make room for a
newcomer. As a matter of fact, during their tenure in the halfway house, they had watched 12
men move out at the end of six months. Eleven of the 12 had returned to drinking or using
drugs within a month. That fact only added to the fears and insecurity they felt upon learning
that the house they lived in would be closed and they all would have to move within thirty
days.

A private individual, a member of Alcoholics Anonymous, held the lease on the house the
county was closing. Several of the men faced with eviction approached him to see if there was
some way the county could be convinced to change its decision. He felt such a change of heart
was impossible. It was a matter of economics. County halfway houses cost a lot of money to
run. The county budget was tight and Alpha I, as the halfway house was named, would
definitely be closed. He then asked if the men had given any thought to taking over the house
themselves.

Over the next several days, hope began to replace the despair shared by the men but a
number of obstacles stood between the ideas of taking over the house themselves and the
reality of being able to do it. Where would they get the money? All of them had drunk
themselves out of good jobs and few of them had done more than day work since getting
sober. How could they pay for the rent, the utilities, the food and a counselor to manage a
halfway house? Who could they find to run the house, even if they could come up with the
money? Day and night they discussed the possibilities among themselves and went to a lot of
AA meetings in order to get the advice of AA members. Time and again AA members gave
them encouragement. "Just don't drink," they heard over and over again. "Keep it simple" and
"Remember—a day at a time," were offered as advice almost as frequently.

Slowly an idea began to form that maybe it could be done. The first task involved studying the
costs of the halfway house to determine how much money was needed. The largest single cost
was the paid manager, cook and counselor attached to the house. Someone suggested maybe
they could live without a paid manager or cook or counselor. But who would be the supervisor
or manager if they did not have a paid manager who lived in the house? Of all the men to live
in the new house, only one had gained six months of sobriety.

The men decided that the cost of a manager, cook and counselor was too great. If there were
going to be any chance of maintaining the house, a way would have to be found to learn how
to stay sober and manage a house without a paid staff.

One man recalled that he had lived in a college fraternity with sixteen men that did not have
a paid manager. Of course there had been no requirement of not drinking in that house. As the
men talked about the fraternity house concept, fear of being able to enforce sobriety without



the presence of a paid authority figure became the heart of the matter. They had been without
real responsibility for so long there was considerable doubt about whether or not they could act
responsibly as a group.

As discussions centered on whether or not they could run a house themselves, talk would
inevitably drift into complaints about the halfway house way of life. There were a lot of rules.
Lights out at eleven o'clock at night. Everybody up at six in the morning. Breakfast at exactly
seven o'clock. Table setting, dishwashing, vacuuming, trash removal, bed making — all
specific assignments to be done at a specific time and in a particular way. Any suggested
changes to the rigid routine were dismissed with a lecture and a warning to shape up or ship
out. As much as the residents of the halfway house resented the arbitrary rules, the fear of
having no place to live was even greater.

After days and days of discussions an organizational plan began to evolve which gave the group
the confidence they needed to give it a try. Their experiences in the halfway house — both
positive and negative — helped them develop an organization to carry the responsibilities for
which the manager, cook and counselor had been responsible for in the county halfway
house. And so, the Oxford House concept began to take form.

On the positive side of the ledger of halfway house experience was the re-enforcement of
sobriety that was gained by knowing that immediate eviction followed taking the first drink.
From the start, the founders recognized that there had to be an absolute rule against any
alcohol or drug use by members of the house. The problem for a self-run group house was how
to develop procedures to make sure that any resident who drank or took drugs would be
thrown out. It was finally decided that the only way it could be done would be to call a meeting
of the house members and discuss the situation. If a member had taken drugs or a drink, there
would have to be a vote to expel him from the house. If a majority of the members agreed that
the member had in fact taken a drink or drugs, he would automatically be out.?

Before the first relapse occurred there was considerable debate among the members about how
one could tell if an individual has in fact returned to drinking or taking drugs. Some members
thought that the house should purchase a breathalyzer to test everybody to guard against the
"secret drinker" among us. Others suggested the election of an official "sniffer" (as a less
expensive safeguard). New houses today will probably go through the same kinds of concern.
The fact of the matter is that no member of a house is able to fool other members for very
long. We are all professional alcoholics and/or drug addicts who would have done anything to
drink and take drugs. We really do know all the tricks of the trade and a relapse cannot be
covered up by any one of us for very long.

Unfortunately, relapses can occur. Some members of an Oxford House™ will return to their
addiction. When they do, it is important for the other members of the house to act promptly.
The worse mistake any house can make is to let a slip or relapse by one member slide.
That slip endangers the sobriety of every other member of a house and can quickly ruin the
house for everyone. Every Oxford House™ resident knows before moving in that the use of

2 The first Oxford House™ tried a system that distinguished drinking or taking drugs in the house from drinking or taking drugs outside the house.
In the former case expulsion from the house was automatic; in the latter case expulsion was likely but if the membership felt it was warranted a
member who had relapsed away from the house could be given probation. This was done in four cases and it did not work in any of them. In each
case the member with the relapse had relapsed again within a period of a few days or weeks. Experience showed that probation did not work.
Therefore any slip or relapse now results in automatic expulsion. The vote taken by the house membership is solely to judge if in fact a relapse has
taken place. The third condition of a house’s charter absolutely requires immediate expulsion and no house wants to lose its charter.



alcohol or drugs will result in getting kicked out. Oxford House™ members have the
responsibility to use "tough love" and promptly expel the slipper — for his welfare, their own
welfare and the welfare of the entire house?

Once a member has been expelled from a house because he has returned to drinking or taking
drugs, he cannot be readmitted unless there is a clear demonstration that he has returned to solid
sobriety. Each house develops certain rules of thumb for determining a return to solid sobriety.
Some accept successful completion of a 28-day rehabilitation program as a return to solid
sobriety. Most generally require strong evidence of no drinking or taking of drugs and regular

attendance at AA and/or NA as a minimum requirement for re-acceptance into an
Oxford House™.

The founders of Oxford House™ developed a democratic way of operation. They had to —
they could not afford to pay a house manager or supervisor to take responsibility for them.
The early history of Oxford House™ showed that the Oxford House residents could run a
house on their own. Today, Oxford House™ is still self-run and it still works.

Within six months of its beginning, the first Oxford House™ had helped finance and start the
second Oxford House™. Soon those two houses started a third and the three houses then
started a fourth. Over its first thirteen years Oxford House™ grew from one house to more
than twenty houses and the expansion of a good idea had just begun.

In October 1987, an Oxford House™ for men was started in Bethlehem, Pennsylvania — far away
from the cluster of houses in the Washington, D.C. area. It worked and the eleven men in that
Oxford House™ followed the pattern begun the Washington area thirteen years earlier by finding
another house to rent to start a second house in the Bethlehem area.

Early in 1988, all the members of the individual Oxford Houses decided to establish a full-time
central services office to provide other individuals recovering from alcoholism and drug
addiction the technical assistance necessary for them to start Oxford Houses in their
communities. There was a strong belief that Oxford House could work anywhere. As Oxford
Houses open around the country, the first Oxford House in a particular area will follow the
tradition set by the original Oxford House of helping other houses get started. Between
1989 and 2016, the growth of Oxford Houses has been phenomenal — more than 2,060 individual
Oxford Houses have been started in 45 states, Australia, Canada, England and Ghana.

Foundations, businesses, churches, individual and government agencies have helped fund
technical assistance to help get the first few Oxford Houses established in an area. However,
expansion of the movement continues to rely primarily upon the volunteer efforts of individuals
living in existing Oxford Houses working with newly-formed groups. Throughout the country

3 It is seldom easy to take action against the relapsing member but every Oxford House™ does. The first case is always the most difficult because
all members in a house become friends and no one likes to have to throw a friend out. Nevertheless, principles must come before personalities and
the member who has relapsed must leave the house right away. Otherwise the sobriety of every member of the house is threatened. More
importantly, the good reputation of Oxford House™ is threatened. The first Oxford House™ used to be the subject of bets by outsiders about how
soon it would fail. There was a genuine belief by many that a group house of recovering alcoholics and addicts could not work without a manager or
counselor to enforce the edict against drinking or taking drugs. Those doubters all lost their bets because the members of Oxford House™ proved
that they could act responsibly. The first responsibility of any Oxford House™ is to enforce sobriety.

4 Once several Oxford Houses have opened a geographic area, each house keeps in touch with the other houses so that a relapsing member does not
simply move from one house to another. On the other hand, once a relapsing member regains sobriety, it may be advisable for him to "start over" in
another house in the area if it has room. The group conscience of those for whom Oxford House™ is working generally has no trouble in guiding
the recovered relapser into the house that can give the most support.



clusters of Oxford Houses have organized themselves into mutually supportive chapters working
together to expand the number of houses so that every recovering alcoholic and drug addict can
gain the support of living in an Oxford House™.

Each Oxford House™ has its own history but all Oxford Houses share a common history of
operating in a democratic fashion on a self-supporting basis. That common history is the key
to why Oxford House™ works. The System of Operations and the Oxford House Traditions
contain the blueprint for any Oxford House™ to work well by following a tried and true path
for success.

The System of Operations and Oxford House Traditions, which follow, are taken directly from
the original Oxford House Manual® with very minor changes, duly noted through footnotes.

- The key Oxford House™ organization is listed below. Direct any correspondence, telephone
calls or e-mail to it. Its purpose is to be of help.

Oxford House, Inc.
1010 Wayne Avenue, Suite 300
Silver Spring, Maryland 20910

Telephone: 1-(301) 587-2916
Facsimile: 1-(301) 589-0302
Internet: www.oxfordhouse.org
E-Mail: Info@oxfordhouse.org

(Oxford House, Inc. is incorporated in Delaware and is a 501(c)(3) non-profit corporation.)

The following standard forms and others — time-tested to be helpful in running an Oxford House™ — are
printed at the end of this manual and can be download from the website www.oxfordhouse.org as can new
versions of the forms.

Membership Application

The standard form used by Oxford Houses to help evaluate the eligibility of applicants applying for membership in an
Oxford House™.

Weekly Meeting Report
A form to record the minutes of the weekly meeting of the Oxford House™ family members so that the House has an on-
going record of the democratic decisions made by the group.

Weekly Financial Report

A form to report who have paid their share of expenses, a list of expenses paid during the previous week, the amount of funds
available to the house and a list of regular or unexpected expenses coming due with the next few weeks.

Oxford System Checklist

A checklist used by some Oxford Houses to remind members of the Oxford House™ family about the basic steps that have
to be taken to make the house run on a financially sound basis.




Oxford House™ System of Operations

There is a frequent saying among Oxford House™ members that "Oxford House™ has no rules
except "Don't drink." For the most part, that saying is true. However, it does overstate the facts.

While rules at Oxford House™ are kept at a minimum, there are nevertheless rules.
Unfortunately, it is impossible for any organization to function without having some system or
procedures. The basic rule for all Oxford Houses is that they must operate on a democratic
basis. Each member of the House has one vote. A majority rules except in the case of
accepting a new recovering alcoholic or drug addict for membership when 80% of the current
membership must vote its approval.

The following discussion spells out the Oxford House System of Operations. It draws upon
the experience of the existing Oxford Houses and tells any recovering alcoholic or drug addict
who is interested: (1) how to start an Oxford House™; (2) how to make an Oxford House™ run
smoothly; and (3) how to manage money in an Oxford House™.

Oxford House, Inc., is the umbrella organization for all Oxford Houses. Any group of
recovering alcoholics that wants to form an Oxford House™ must obtain a charter from
Oxford House, Inc. The charter confers on the particular Oxford House™ the benefits of
being part of a non-profit corporation that offers the experience and guidance necessary for
making an Oxford House™ work.

Any group of recovering alcoholics and/or drug addicts can apply for an Oxford House™
charter. Oxford House, Inc., has no hard and fast rules as to the length of sobriety required
of applicants who want to charter a new house. As a general rule, however, several members
of any charter group should have several months of solid sobriety.

Obtaining a Charter

Two or more recovering alcoholics can apply for a charter from Oxford House, Inc., by
completing an application for a charter> or simply writing a letter containing the pertinent
information to Oxford House World Services. Pertinent information would include answers to
the following questions:

1. Names of proposed charter members.
2. Length of sobriety for each proposed charter member.
3. The plans that the charter group has for renting or leasing a house.
4. The number of beds contemplated for use in the proposed new Oxford House™ .
5. The anticipated charge per person per week that would be
needed to make the House self-supporting.

5 One can get a form to apply for a charter by writing to Oxford House, Inc., 1010 Wayne Avenue, Suite 300, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910 or
by downloading a charter application form from the web site www.oxfordhouse.org by clicking “applications” under “Houses”.

6 To receive a charter the proposed house must be for a minimum of six residents. The largest Oxford House™ group to date has been
eighteen. The best size group seems to be made up of eight to twelve members. Charters are only granted for single-sex houses. There are
no “co-ed” Oxford Houses. Leases with landlords should make clear that no smoking within the house is permitted and that the
use of decorative candles, incense or other items that represent fire hazards should be prohibited. Group safety is important.



Once Oxford House World Services has reviewed the application or letter from the prospective
charter members, they will either issue a charter or suggest additional steps for the prospective
members to take in order to obtain a charter. A charter will be issued if, in the judgment of
Oxford House World Services, the proposed new Oxford House™ would have a reasonable
chance of success.” All charters are issued conditionally. This means that the new group once
started must demonstrate that it has learned the Oxford House system of operation sufficiently to
be awarded a permanent charter.

In rare cases, Oxford House World Services will issue a charter prior to the actual acquisition of
housing by the applicants. In such cases, the charter will be issued upon the condition that the
charter members obtain a suitable house within a specific period of time.8

Obtaining a House

The Oxford House™ philosophy is one that relies on expanding capacity rather than limiting the
length of time that a member can live in a House. To achieve sufficient capacity for
providing enough rooms for all recovering alcoholics and drug addicts who want to live in an
Oxford House™, it has been the custom for an established Oxford House™ to look for an
additional house once it has become full and has applications that it is unable to accept because
of lack of space.

The size, location and cost of a suitable house depends more on what is available than
any specific criteria. The charter members who are looking for a suitable house should
make certain that any prospective house can be occupied without violating local zoning or
health and safety laws. In practice any Oxford House™ is no different from an ordinary family
— except no one in an Oxford House™ drinks or takes mood- changing drugs.

As a matter of fact, most jurisdictions in the country do not have specific ordinances that relate
directly to an Oxford House™-type situation. Most group housing ordinances, if they exist at all,
are geared to highly institutionalized situations. Most commercial zoning ordinances, i.e..,
rooming houses, apartments, or hotels or motels, are inappropriate for the Oxford House™
situation. Under the Federal Fair Housing Act local governments are required to make a
reasonable accommodation for recovering alcoholics and drug addicts to live in the supportive
Oxford House™ living environment.’

If the charter members have any doubt as to how their particular jurisdiction will view an
Oxford House"™, they should face the matter directly and clear their occupancy with the local
zoning authorities. Oxford House, Inc., is willing to provide any assistance it can for the

7 The Board of Directors has delegated the decision-making authority to approve charter applications to Oxford House World Services.

8 This situation is more likely to occur when Oxford House™ is new to a geographic area. In those geographic areas where there is already an
Oxford House™, those wanting to start a new House are more likely to find the available house first and then apply for a Charter. Following the
tradition of early Oxford Houses each house tries to match supply of Oxford House™ recovery beds with the number of applicants wanting to
live in an Oxford House™. Houses in an area always work through the chapter to make sure supply and demand stay in balance.

9 The United States Supreme Court on May 15, 1995 issued a decision in City of Edmonds, WA v. Oxford House, Inc. (514 U.S. 725) which
confirms that recovering alcoholics and drug addicts living in an Oxford House™ are “handicapped” and therefore a protected class within the
meaning of the Federal Fair Housing Act, as amended, and local jurisdictions must make a reasonable accommodation to afford them living
arrangements supportive of recovery. A number of subsequent federal cases have affirmed that Oxford Houses are not commercial institutions
and should be treated as single families for purposes of zoning.



purpose of persuading local authorities to treat Oxford House™ the same as it would treat any
other single-family residential property within its jurisdiction.!?

Common sense should be used in selecting any house, to be used as an Oxford House™. It
should have adequate plumbing, adequate kitchen facilities, adequate laundry facilities, a
sufficient number of bedrooms, and a pleasant common living space. In addition, the area should
be carefully examined to determine if parking of automobiles might cause a problem.

The amount of rent that a new group can afford depends on the number of beds that the house
can hold. More than one bed should be put in larger rooms. New members moving into a
house can be made to feel at home more easily if they share a room. Most Houses use a system
of seniority for bed selection. "Old-timers" generally move into single rooms as new
members move into the house. The single rooms are usually the smaller rooms in a house.

There are three reasons Oxford House™ encourages more than one to a room. First, newcomers
maintain recovery better with a roommate. Loneliness continues to be a threat to sobriety and
loneliness can be a problem for the newcomer adjusting to a new place to live. Second, the
number of people living in a House directly affects the economics of an Oxford House™. The
more people who live in a House the less each member has to pay for the House to be self-
supporting. Third, roommates discourage having non-house members spending the night at an
Oxford House™.

The size of the house has a direct relationship to the amount of rent a new group can afford to
pay. In most areas the monthly rent will be the largest single cost for the members of a House to
meet. For example, the very first Oxford House™ (Oxford House-Silver Spring)!'!, held 13
members. The monthly rent was $700; utilities ran about $300 a month; staples about $250 a
month.'> The charge per member had been set at $30 a week. Since the House quickly
became full and stayed full, income exceeded expenses.!3 As a matter of fact, after six months of
operation the House had nearly $2,000 in the bank. It used $1,200 of that money to start a
new Oxford House™ so that some of the recovering alcoholics who had applied to live in an
Oxford House™ could live in one. Even today, most Oxford Houses have a backlog of
applications. The tradition of some house members of an existing house helping to start a new
Oxford House™ in an area continues.

As a general rule, it is easy to acquire furniture for a new House at little or no expense. Letting
friends, family, and church groups know you are looking for furnishings can be very effective.
Every community tends to be willing to help. Sometimes, however, it may be difficult to get
beds and chests of drawers donated. Since beds are essential, members in a new house might
want to buy twin-size mattress and box springs sets. New twin-size mattresses and box springs

10 In Bethlehem, Pennsylvania for example, Oxford House™ received a ruling from the Chief of the Bureau of Inspections that it is within the
definition of "Family" as defined in the City Zoning Code. As a practical matter most jurisdictions so appreciate the useful service provided by
an Oxford House™ that it is considered to have a "family" classification.

1 Oxford House-Silver Spring was opened October 25, 1975 and continued to be an Oxford House™ until the end of 1984. It was located at
1219 Fiddler Lane, Silver Spring, Maryland. The building was razed to make way for another building in 1986.

12 The first Oxford House™ and most subsequent Houses have bought milk, potatoes, spices, flour, coffee, bread, eggs and bacon on a group
basis. Individual members get their own meals — either individually or as groups — but use the "staples" as needed. Note also that the figures
used above are 1975 dollars or about one-half comparable 1987 dollars or one-third 2000 dollars.

13 By late spring a surplus of nearly $2,000 was in the House treasury. The members met to decide whether to lower their weekly payment or to

use the surplus to open a new House. They chose to open a new House in Washington, DC in May 1976.



cost between $90 to $120 per unit. Thrift stores, Goodwill or Salvation Army stores often have
chests of drawers at a reasonable price. The first and most effective way to get furniture,
however, is to ask for it from AA members. Often they are up-grading their own furnishing
and are pleased to give their old furniture to an Oxford House™.

Other start-up costs include a month's rent in advance and a security deposit equal to one
month's rent. New Houses often get a loan from AA members or other Oxford Houses in
order to meet this expense. Whenever a loan is obtained, the members of the new House
should agree to pay it back according to a definite schedule — at least $100 a month until it is
repaid.'4 The good name of Oxford House™ is at stake whenever any House has a loan
outstanding. Therefore, it is important to make payments on the loan on a regular basis.

Membership

The charter members of a new Oxford House™ constitute a basic core of membership for the
House. Once the House has started, the charter members will want to bring in enough new
members to fill all available beds. The higher the occupancy rate, the lower the rent that must be
paid by each Oxford House™ member.

One of the requirements of an Oxford House™ charter is that new members must be approved by
80% of the existing members in a particular House. An approval by 80% of the existing
members is required because it is extremely important for all of the members living in an Oxford
House™ to feel comfortable with any newcomer. As a practical matter, existing Oxford
Houses have denied membership to very few individuals. Most members of Oxford House™
keep their memory green and few applicants are excluded from membership. Those who are
excluded are generally excluded because there are no beds available!>. A waiting list is
maintained, but it is of little value after a period of time because, when a person needs a
room, he or she needs it immediately. On the other hand, the waiting list can be a useful
resource for getting new members to help form another House.!® The waiting list also is a
ready resource for filling vacancies as members move out to live elsewhere in the community or
are evicted because of a relapse to drinking or taking drugs.

Oxford House™ works well for men and for women. However, it has been the experience of
Oxford House™ that it does not work well with men and women in the same House.!”
Relationships are bound to develop and will unnecessarily complicate the comfortable operation
of an Oxford House™.

14 This is also true of loans received from a state revolving loan fund. Repayments on time is a must because it allows other groups to start houses and
helps expand the opportunities for recovering individuals to stay clean and sober without relapse. State loans are usually $4,000 and are repaid at $170
a month for 24 months.

15 Not everyone is suited for living in an Oxford House but the existing members should never exclude anyone simply because of race, creed or a
disability co-occurring with addiction to alcohol or other addictive drugs unless such disability would make it difficult for an individual to function in
an Oxford House. For example, being HIV positive does not — in and of itself — preclude successful Oxford House membership because, absent
unprotected sex or needle sharing, HIV or AIDS is not contagious and hundreds of recovering individuals afflicted by HIV or AIDS are and have
been successful Oxford House residents. Also, hundreds of recovering individuals with co-occurring mental illnesses or physical disabilities have
been — and are — successful Oxford House residents. In considering whether an applicant will make a suitable Oxford House resident, the group
conscience should always err on the side of providing a recovering individual a chance to benefit from Oxford House living. In other words, if the
group believes the individual has exhibited a sincere desire to develop sobriety comfortable enough to avoid relapse, pay an equal share of household
expenses and help others in recovery, the applicant should be accepted if space is available.

16 Once an Oxford House™ has been established for a few months, there will soon be more applicants than there are beds available. The situation
soon causes the members living in the House to start looking for an additional house to rent.

17 In 1978, Oxford House™ opened a House intended for women but started with a core group of four men from an existing Oxford House™. After
eight women moved into the House, the four men moved out with the expectation that their spaces would be filled by the womenaccepting four

additional women. Instead the women accepted four additional men as replacements and the House began to have problems. A number of
relationships evolved between the men and women and soon a number of the members had returned to drinking. Oxford House, Inc. closed the House
and reopened it as a House for men. It was clear then and continues to be clear today that men and women living in the same house operating under
the self-support system of Oxford House™ create unnecessary additional stress to group living. Women’s Oxford Houses work well; men’s Oxford
Houses work well; however, Houses with both men and women do not work and will not be granted a charter by Oxford House, Inc.

9



When a new Oxford House™ is established, the charter members of the House should make
themselves known to quarterway houses, halfway houses, detoxification units, drug courts,
rehabilitation facilities, AA groups and NA groups within the area. Included among those items
which should be stressed are that the House is democratically run; it is self- supporting; drinking
or the taking of drugs is not permitted; and that both the new and not-so-new recovering
alcoholics are welcome to come and live at the House as long as they do not drink or take drugs
and pay their equal share of household expenses. Oxford House™ is not in competition with any
of these groups. It is a resource for them to use in the common goal of helping the alcoholic
avoid relapses. Many of these groups will become supporters of Oxford House™ and will refer
new members to the House. Remember to explain that a new member must file an application,
be interviewed and approved by 80% of the members living in Oxford House™ .

Once an Oxford House™ has been established for a few months, applications for membership
will exceed the space available. At that point in time, consideration should be given to opening a
new Oxford House™ using some of the current members as a core group for the new House.!8
Generally, a few members in a House will begin thinking about opening another House in
response to a House's inability to accept all the deserving applicants. They will discuss the
matter at a House meeting and everyone will begin to look for a suitable additional house to rent.
When such a house is found several existing members will volunteer to become the core group
for a new House. The existing House begins to figure out ways to come up with the
necessary money for starting the new House and checks with applicants to see if they
would be willing to live in the new House. This is the way that Oxford House™ is able to
comfortably exist with the principle of letting members live in an Oxford House™ for as long
as they want provided they do not drink or use drugs and pay their rent.

Rules

Alcoholics and drug addicts by nature seem to dislike rules. There is only one rule applicable to
all Oxford Houses; i.e. membership is conditioned on not drinking. It is impossible for a house of
recovering alcoholics to stay sober if even one person is permitted to drink or take drugs. The
presence of a practicing alcoholic among those who are trying to stay sober invites other
relapses. As a matter of self-preservation it is necessary for the membership of an Oxford
House™ to confront the relapsing member immediately. A meeting of the House should be held
and if a majority of the members believe that a member is drinking or taking drugs that member
should be asked to leave.

The rule relating to the use of alcohol or drugs grows out of common sense. That rule is the
only rule considered mandatory once a group of recovering alcoholics has received an Oxford
House™ charter. Other rules will tend to evolve from the membership of the House itself.
Those rules should come into being only if they are absolutely necessary. The fewer the rules,
the more likely it will be that a house will be successful. Different Houses will often tend to

18

In the first Oxford House™ — Oxford House - Silver Spring — members felt confident enough after six months to start another House.
Theystarted the first house in Washington, DC by having four of the thirteen members in the original house move to form a core membership for
the new House.

10



have different rules. For example, one Oxford House™ has a rule that requires unanimous
consent before any pet can be brought onto the premises. Another Oxford House™ has two
cats and a dog and would probably require unanimous consent before either the cat or the dog
could be evicted.

In many alcohol rehabilitation units, there are rules covering a multitude of activities. Those rules
include curfew hours; clean-up details; mandatory attendance at AA or NA meetings; and other
rules almost inherent in institutional living. Oxford House™ is not an institution. It is more
analogous to a family. However, certain rules may be required to assure an equitable
distribution of the work in keeping the house clean and at times there may be the need for rules to
keep some individuals from disrupting other individuals.!®

Since the success of an Oxford House™ depends on having enough income to meet expenses, it is
important that members pay their equal share of household expenses in a timely manner.
Rules may be required that force the eviction of members who do not keep their equal share of
household expenses up to date. All members should be encouraged to pay their share of
household expenses at least one week in advance. The weekly house meeting becomes the
ideal time to discuss this issue particularly if a resident is not up-to-date in paying the equal share
of household expenses. It helps neither the individual resident nor the house group to let anyone
get behind.

Officers

For an Oxford House™ to run successfully on a democratic basis, it must have certain elected
officers. It is part of the Oxford House tradition to make sure that officers do not become so
entrenched that other members of the house do not have an equal voice in its management.
Therefore, it is an Oxford House tradition that no officer shall serve longer than six months in the
same office for one continuous period of time.20 All officers are but trusted servants of the
entire membership. The number of officers may vary from House to House but all Houses
generally have the following elected officers:

U President
U Treasurer
U Secretary
U Comptroller
U Coordinator

The election of both a treasurer and comptroller emphasizes the importance each Oxford
House™ places on money management. The two officers are able to divide rent collection and
help each other with the payment of bills. Houses elect a "Coordinator" to help schedule daily
and weekly work details to keep the house clean — inside and outside.

The election of officers is necessary because they provide the leadership for the House to work
well. The officers can serve continuously for only six months in any particular office, i.e. after
an intervening six-month period an individual can be re-elected to an office in which he or she
has already served. The duties of the various officers are designed to keep Oxford House™

19 For example, if a resident’s non-attendance at AA or NA meetings is causing problems — for the individual or the house — the residents may vote
at a meeting to require meeting attendance as a condition of living in the house. In this situation the “group conscience” should be the determining
factor. It is guided by the fact that the welfare of the house must always come first. Long-term recovery is the primary reason for the house to exist.

20
See Tradition Two

1"



running smoothly by conduct regular weekly meetings of the House membership, assure that
the Oxford House Traditions are followed, and keep the finances of the House in good order.

Meetings

It is important to have a House meeting at least once a week. After some experimenting,
an Oxford House™ will find the particular hour or half-hour, which is the most convenient for
most of its members. A meeting should be used to:

» report on the current financial status of the House;

» consider new applications for membership;

» resolve any problem affecting members in the House;

» resolve general complaints about maintenance of the House; and
» consider proposals or projects to be undertaken by the House

A special meeting should be called, just as soon as possible, whenever there is any suspicion that
a member is drinking or taking drugs. Such meeting are the most difficult of any held in an
Oxford House™. Some Houses have decided to use three of the elected officers as a screening
committee for determining if an individual has violated the rule against drinking or taking drugs.
In such cases, the screening committee makes its report to the full membership of the House for
their consideration. The individual suspected of violating the rule against drinking or taking
drugs should be directly confronted with the facts leading to the suspicion. The membership of
the House then must vote on whether or not the facts support the conclusion that a member has
violated the rule.

The decision by the House membership should be viewed simply as a factual determination. If
a majority of the House membership attending the special meeting believes that the individual
did in fact drink or take drugs, expulsion of that member is automatic.

The Secretary should take notes about what takes place at each House meeting. The notes of
the previous meeting should be read at the beginning of the next meeting so that all the members
can agree with the record of what the House had previously determined. If the Secretary has
made a mistake in recording what had happened, it should be corrected. The approved minutes
of a meeting should be made a permanent record of the House. The Secretary should also
verify that vacancy updates have been made.?! The next item of business should be the report
on House finances by the Treasurer. That report should include: (a) the amount of the bills
outstanding, (b) the cash on hand, (c) members’ rent paid in advance, and (d) members’ rent
due. To the extent possible the Treasurer should project what the House finances are likely to be
over the next month and take into account the expectation of any large utility bills or unusual
expenses.

The House meeting should then take up new applications and listen to each member who
has met or talked to the applicant. A vote should be taken on each applicant whether or not
space is available. If the applicant is rejected, he or she should be told right after the meeting and
encouraged to apply to another Oxford House. If the applicant is accepted, and space isavailable,
he or she should be informed as to when to move in, who current officers are, money due to

move in and given a copy of the manual — — so as to understand how Oxford House™

21 Keeping vacancies accurate on the website is essential if a house is to have any creditability with treatment providers, drug court judges or the
recovery community. The newcomer relies upon accurate vacancy data and every house should make sure that the Secretary updates the vacancy
website by text at least once a week and that a current cell phone in the house is available for weekly vacancy verification.

12



works. If the applicant is accepted, but no space is immediately available, he or she should be
put on a waiting list and told his or her prospects of getting in. Each new member should be
told that the completed application constitutes agreement to follow the rules of the House.

Meetings also include discussion of the wide range of decisions facing an Oxford House™ from
purchases of wastebaskets to plans for opening a new House. The House meeting is the place to
resolve any conflicts that arise from living together as a group. It is also a good place to pass on
information about new AA or NA meetings or up-coming AA/NA related events. Staying sober
and enjoying life is at the heart of Oxford House™ living.

Money

Oxford House™ is built on the principle of self-help. When it comes to money matters, this
simply means that any House must be self-supporting and operate without debt — other than the
start up loan that should be repaid on a regular basis. There may be exceptions when a House is
first getting started. After a few weeks or months, a new Oxford House™ should be able to
pay all of its operating expenses out of its equal share of household expenses.

Some expenses associated with an Oxford House™ are fixed. For example, the monthly rental
payment will be a fixed amount. In addition, utilities (electric, gas or oil, telephone and often
water) will be relatively fixed expenses. One area where expenses are controllable involves the
purchase of food and supplies. All expenses, whether fixed or controllable, must be carefully
watched so that any member at any time can know the exact financial condition of the House.
Particular attention must be paid to cable TV expenses. If one or two members get a pay for
view, they should reimburse the house. Usually the Comptroller is responsible to see that the
members pay their share of the cable bill promptly so that the House is not faced with an
unwanted and unwarranted expense.22

The President, the Treasurer, and Comptroller all have a responsibility for making certain
that accurate records are maintained showing expenses and income of the House. Every
Oxford House™ should have its own checking account and make certain to run all income and
outgo through the checking account as the main control point for keeping track of money flow.
The very first thing a new Oxford House™ does is to establish a checking account. At
least three officers of the House should be authorized to sign checks with two signatures
required on each check in order for it to be valid. Promptly deposit member's rent in the
checking account and pay all bills by check.23 That is the easiest and safest way to assure
good record-keeping. Do not use electronic payment except for start-up loan repayment and
contributions to Oxford House World Services.

Each Oxford House™ should maintain (1) a membership ledger; (2) a cash receipts journal and
(3) a cash expenses journal. The Treasurer is responsible for keeping these records and for
posting the "Weekly Financial Status Report".

22 As a general rule an Oxford House™ gets cable TV with limited access to pay for view. However, if that is not possible the house should
carefully monitor any “extra” expense over the basic system.

23 Sometimes petty cash is useful for buying the staples the House will use. Usually petty cash is less than $100 and can be run through the
checking account by making out a check for "cash". Receipts should then be kept for purchases made out of petty cash and on a weekly basis the
Treasurer should balance the cash against the receipts in the petty cash fund. The Treasurer is usually the person who has control over the petty
cash and pays individual members who make the purchases of staples for the House. A separate little book for petty cash is useful to maintain
showing income and outgo. A small amount of petty cash is a good idea because checks for only a few dollars can become expensive when the
bank charges for checks written.

13



The "Weekly Financial Status Report" lets everyone in the House know exactly the current
financial condition of the House. It shows:

money on hand the prior week;

money on hand that week;

bills paid during the last week;

bills due during the current week;

bills due by the end of the current month;
members’ rent paid in advance (total dollars);
members’ rent behind (total dollars) and

status of individual members’ payment history
(paid in advance, up-to-date and behind) listed by
member.24

VVVVVVYYY

The Treasurer and Comptroller are the two officers primarily responsible for assuring
sound financial management for an Oxford House™. Together with the President, they
should continually check and crosscheck the books so as to assure the true financial status of the
House. At each weekly meeting, a report should be made to the full membership of the
House for the membership to determine whether the equal share of household expenses is
accurate and to decide if a member is too delinquent in paying to continue in the house.

Oxford House, Inc.

Oxford House, Inc., serves as an umbrella, non-profit corporation for all the Oxford Houses that
have or will be given a charter. It is incorporated in the State of Delaware and is recognized as
qualifying under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The sole purpose of the
umbrella organization is to serve the Oxford House™ movement. Each Oxford House™ has an
equal voice in running Oxford House, Inc, consistent with the principle that each resident
has an equal voice in the running of an individual Oxford House™.

Oxford House, Inc. is authorized to provide charters for individual Oxford Houses and operates a
central services office to help existing houses stay on track and to help start new houses.

The World Council

Nine Oxford House™ residents are elected by vote of all of the Oxford Houses to serve
staggered three-year terms as members of the Oxford House World Council, an advisory Board
that recommends policies. Three alumni members of Oxford House™ are also elected to the 12-
member World Council. Elections for one-third of the members are held each year at the annual
Oxford House Convention. Meetings of the Oxford House World Council are held six times
a year. Various committees of the World Council are established to address policy areas
important to the worldwide network of Oxford Houses.The Chairperson of the World Council
serves as a member of the Oxford House Board of Directors to assure that the corporation’s
services are consistent with the policies of the individual houses reflected by actions of the World
Council.

The Board of Directors

The Oxford House Board of Directors oversees and governs Oxford House, Inc. — the umbrella
501(c)(3) nonprofit organization of the national network of individual Oxford Houses. One
quarter of the Board members are alumni or resident members of Oxford Houses. The Board
guides the external finances used for expansion and network maintenance.

24 There are no "secrets" in an Oxford House™. Members need to know whether the House is living on "borrowed money" (from rents paid in
advance) or whether members are falling behind in rent in order to know how much needs to be charged for a House to be financially sound.

14



Oxford House Nine Traditions ...

TRADITION ONE

Oxford House™ has as its primary goal the provision of housing and rehabilitative support
for the alcoholic and drug addict who wants to stop drinking or using drugs and stay
stopped.

By the time many of us had stopped drinking, we had lost jobs; we had lost families, and some of
us either had no place to live or no place to live which was not an invitation to start drinking
again. Oxford House™ was founded not only to put a roof over our head, but also to create a
home where the disease of alcoholism and drug addiction was understood and the need for the
alcoholic and drug addict to stay away from the first drink or drug fix was emphasized.

Oxford House™ is group housing. The bond that holds the group together is the desire to stop
drinking or using drugs and to stay stopped. Modest rooms and living facilities can become
luxurious suites when viewed from an environment of alcoholics and drug addicts working
together for comfortable sobriety.

When we stopped drinking or using drugs, we began to realize that in order to stay stopped, our
lives would need to change. Alcoholics Anonymous and Narcotics Anonymous provided a
framework for us to change physically, mentally, and spiritually. The degree to which we were
able to successfully change our lives had a direct relationship to Alcoholics Anonymous and
Narcotics Anonymous. Many of us soon learned, however, that living alone or living among
our old drinking companions made it more difficult to practice the principles necessary for
continued sobriety.

Some of us had lived for a time in alcoholic and drug rehabilitation facilities. Those facilities
provided us with shelter, food, and therapy for understanding alcoholism and addiction.
Initially, the structure and supervision of such facilities were acceptable because physically and
mentally, we were exhausted. Later, some of us were to move into halfway houses, which
provided shelter, food, and supervision. As our recovery progressed, the supervision and
dependency on a halfway house created dissatisfaction. The dissatisfaction was in part
the realization that we were shirking responsibility for our own lives and in part a resentment of
authority. The third factor affecting us both in the rehabilitation facilities and the halfway
houses was the realization that the duration of our stay must be limited because space must
be made for others in need of help.

Oxford House™ grew out of the need for many of us to begin a new life without fear of
backsliding because of loneliness leading to renewed dependency on former drinking companions
or drug dealers. Throughout its tradition, Oxford House™ has combined the concepts of self-
support and responsibility with a fellowship having the common purpose of continued and
comfortable sobriety. Oxford House™ must always have as its primary goal the provision of
housing and rehabilitative support for the alcoholic who wants to stop drinking and stay
stopped and the drug addict who wants to stop using drugs and stay stopped.

15



TRADITION TWO

All Oxford Houses are run on a democratic basis. Our officers are but
trusted servants serving continuous periods of no longer than six months
in any one office.

During the last days of our drinking or using drugs, most of us ceased to function as
responsible individuals. We were not only dependent upon alcohol and/or drugs, but were
also dependent on many others for continuing our alcoholic and/or drug addicted ways. When
we stopped drinking or using drugs, we began to realize just how dependent we had become.
For those of us who had been in institutions or halfway houses, resentments against
authority were common.

A major part of the Oxford House philosophy is that dependency is best overcome through an
acceptance of responsibility. In Oxford House™, each member equally shares the
responsibility for the running of the House and upholding the Oxford House tradition. All
aspects of Oxford House operations, from the acquisition of the house to the acceptance or
dismissal of members, are carried out under democratic procedures. Each member has one
vote and majority rule applies except that 80% of the members must agree in accepting new
persons for membership.

During our drinking and drug use years, and even before, many of us found it difficult to
accept authority. Many individuals in society are able to abide by the strict letter of any
rule, regulation, or law. Alcoholics and drug addicts seem to have a tendency to test and
retest the wvalidity of any real, potential, or imagined restriction on their behavior.
As alcoholics and drug addicts, we became experts at outwitting "the system." As
recovering alcoholics and recovering drug addicts, it has become important for us to learn
how to live without the use of alcohol or drugs, within society.

By running Oxford House™ on a democratic basis, members of Oxford House become able
to accept the authority of the group because the group is a peer group. Each member has
an equal voice in the group and each has an opportunity to relearn responsibility
and to accept decisions once they are made.

The opportunity for a house to democratically function requires periodic meetings within the
house — at least once a week. Such meetings should be used to resolve any operational or
personality problems facing the house.

Any group, in order to function effectively, needs leaders. Misguided leaders can create
dependency and usurp self-responsibility. Oxford House™ should rely on democratically
chosen leaders, but the leaders must always be but trusted servants. To discourage an
excessive dependence on leaders, it is a principle of Oxford House™ that no member should
serve in the same office for a continuous period of longer than six months.

16



TRADITION THREE

No member of an Oxford House™ is ever asked to leave without
cause — a dismissal vote by the membership because of drinking,
drug use, or disruptive behavior.

During early recovery for alcoholism and drug addiction, some members had to leave an
institution in order to make room for an alcoholic or drug addict just beginning the recovery
process. Other members were asked to leave halfway houses in order to make room for a
recovering alcoholic or recovering drug addict who was ready to move into a halfway house.
Only the very fortunate are able to make such a transition upon demand. Each individual
recovers from alcoholism or drug addiction at a different pace. All too often, an abrupt
transition from a protected environment to an environment that places considerable glamour on
the use of alcohol and drugs causes a return to alcoholic drinking or addictive drug use.

There is no reason to believe that society as a whole has the responsibility to provide long-term
housing within a protected environment for the alcoholic and drug addict. However, there is every
reason to believe that recovering alcoholics and drug addicts can do for themselves that which
society, as a whole, has no responsibility to do for them. Oxford House™ is built on the
premise of expanding in order to meet the needs of recovering alcoholics and drug addicts. This
principle contrasts sharply with the principle of providing the alcoholic or drug addict with
assistance for a limited time period in order to make room for a more recently recovering
alcoholic or drug addict.

One of the greatest threats to the sobriety of a recovering alcoholic or drug addict is loneliness.
At a time when we acquired a serious desire to stop drinking or using drugs, many of us had
lost our families and friends because of our alcoholism and/or drug addiction. Too often,
newly recovering alcoholics and drug addicts are faced with the necessity of living alone and of
relying solely on contacts with Alcoholics Anonymous and Narcotics Anonymous to stay sober.
Some are able to keep from drinking in spite of the loneliness. Others are not so fortunate.
The alcoholic or drug addict alone begins to compare himself to those members of Alcoholics
Anonymous and Narcotics Anonymous who still have family and friends. Loneliness and self-
pity soon lead such individuals back to alcoholic drinking or drug use. With Oxford House™
there is no need for a recovering individual to live in an environment dominated by loneliness.

The only members who will ever be asked to leave an Oxford House™ are those who return
to drinking, use drugs, or have disruptive behavior, including the nonpayment of an equal share of
household expenses. No Oxford House™ can tolerate the use of alcohol or drugs by one of its
members because that threatens the sobriety of all of the members. Neither can an Oxford
House™ function if some do not pay their fair share of the costs.

It is obvious why Oxford House™ must strongly protect the sobriety of its other members by
asking the drinking member or member using drugs to leave. The line between an Oxford
House™ of recovering alcoholics or drug addicts and an Oxford House™ of active alcoholics
or drug addicts is a thin one. A member's tenure is absolutely secure in an Oxford House™ as long
as he does not drink or use drug, keeps his share of household expenses up to date and is not
disruptive.

17



TRADITION FOUR

Oxford House™ is not affiliated with Alcoholics Anonymous and
Narcotics Anonymous, organizationally or financially, but Oxford
House members realize that only active participation in Alcoholics
Anonymous and/or Narcotics Anonymous offers assurance of
continued sobriety.

Every Oxford House member attributes his sobriety to Alcoholics Anonymous and/or
Narcotics Anonymous. Each Oxford House member, as an individual, considers himself
a member of AA and/or NA. Without that, sobriety would be short-lived.

As individual members of Alcoholics Anonymous, Oxford House members are keenly
aware of the Sixth Tradition of AA, which is:

An A.A. group ought never endorse, finance, or lend the A.A. name to any
related facility or outside enterprise, lest problems of money, property, and
prestige divert us from out primary purpose.

In deference to that tradition, Oxford House™ has never sought nor obtained sponsorship
from any AA or NA group. Oxford House members value the Sixth Tradition of Alcoholics
Anonymous (and Narcotics Anonymous) too greatly for themselves to try to get either
movement deeply involved in the organizing, financing, or sponsorship of any Oxford
House™. However, Oxford House members firmly believe that the Oxford House concept
can expand as an independent entity, while fully utilizing the benefits of Alcoholics
Anonymous and/or Narcotics Anonymous.

In fact, Oxford House™ creates an environment whereby each member can more fully
realize the benefits available from active AA or NA membership. A house full of
sober, recovering alcoholics and drug addicts invites informal AA or NA "meetings after
the meeting" and each day finds many informal AA or NA meetings before individual
members each go off to their regular AA or NA meeting.

An underlying principle of Oxford House™ is that each individual member has the ability
to be responsible for himself or herself. Living within an Oxford House™ provides both
the opportunity and motivation for all residents to regularly attend AA and/or NA meetings.
The example of Oxford House members going to AA or NA meetings on their own is
contagious. It has been the experience of Oxford House™ that participation in AA and
NA is extremely high in an environment where one individual can see another individual,
with the same disease, reaping great benefits from AA and/or NA participation.?

As an organization Oxford House™ is not part of AA or NA. However, the members of
Oxford House™ have found that only by being active in AA and/or NA have they found
comfortable, long-term sobriety — for themselves and the Oxford House™ in which they
live.

25 If a resident’s non-attendance at AA or NA meetings is causing problems — for the individual or the house — the residents may vote at a
meeting to make meeting attendance for a particular member a condition of living in the house. In this situation the “group conscience”
should be the determining factor. It is guided by the fact that the welfare of the house must always come first.

18



TRADITION FIVE

Each Oxford House™ should be autonomous except in matters affecting
other houses or Oxford House, Inc., as a whole.

Each Oxford House™ is self-supporting and self-run. The members of an Oxford
House™ assume full responsibility for the operation of the House. The members
themselves in a democratic fashion determine the equal share of household expenses that is
charged the members. The rules that govern the house are for the most part made by those
who live in a particular Oxford House™.2¢ Such autonomy is essential for the Oxford House
system to work.

The reason that each Oxford House™ is independent arises from the very practical
consideration that those who are closest to a situation are best able to manage it. If an
Oxford House™ follows the democratic principles and traditions of Oxford House, Inc., it
should have no difficulty in running smoothly. Those democratic principles will also
enable the members of a particular Oxford House™ to take pride in their newfound
responsibility.

The charter of each Oxford House™ requires that an Oxford House™ meet certain
minimum requirements of Oxford House, Inc. First, an Oxford House™ must be
democratically self-run following the Oxford House Manual®. Second, an Oxford House™
must, in essence be a good member of the community by obeying the laws and paying its
bills. Third, an Oxford House™ group must immediately expel any resident who returns to
drinking alcohol or using drugs.

Failure to adhere to any of these three requirements would bring the entire Oxford House
concept into question. Therefore, it is important that each Oxford House™ meet these
minimum responsibilities in order for its charter to be continued.?” Oxford Houses are
both autonomous and self-supporting. All Oxford Houses have been careful to avoid
undue dependence on government or other outside funds.

Each local Oxford House™ votes annually in convention to elect the national Oxford House
World Council. Nine members of the Oxford House World Council are elected by all the
individual Oxford Houses and must be a resident of an Oxford House when they are elected.
Three of the World Council members are alumni and are elected by the houses and the
alumni in attendance at the annual world convention. The organization was deliberately set
up to assure that each Oxford House™ is autonomous and that overall policy of the Oxford
House movement reflects the will of the majority of individual Oxford Houses.

26 Rules against anyone living in an Oxford House™ who uses alcohol or drugs are universal with all houses. For obvious reasons, an
individual house cannot establish different rules in this regard because such rules would run entirely counter to the primary purpose and

functions of the Oxford House System. On the other hand, while the "application for residency" is used by every house, other forms are
"suggested" for use — they generally make sense to use by every house, but are not mandatory.

27 At this point in the text the original Oxford House Traditions, which were written when the first Oxford House™ began in the Fall of
1975, stated: "At this time, it also appears that Oxford Houses can be totally self-supporting. By that, we mean that a minimum amount of
government support or private support may be accepted for start-up purposes." Some states have recovery house revolving loan funds to
help a new house get started. This grew out of §2036 of PL 100-690, the federal Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988, and has served as an
important catalyst for the expansion of Oxford Houses.

19



TRADITION SIX

Each Oxford House™ should be financially self-supporting although
financially secure houses may, with approval or encouragement of Oxford
House, Inc., provide new or financially needy houses a loan for a term not
to exceed one year.

Oxford House™ was built on the unique concept that its members should try to expand the
number of beds available — rather than turn existing members out of the house after a set period
of time. In carrying out that concept, Oxford House-Silver Spring, shortly after it started, put up
over $1,200 in order to start Oxford House-Washington. Later Oxford House-Washington did
the same for the start-up of another House. From the beginning, existing Oxford Houses helped
new ones get started. nce a new House gets on its feet, it pays back the older Houses, which had
loaned it money, and stands ready to help another new House.28

When an Oxford House™ first starts, it is generally necessary for the members to pay a slightly
higher rent than what they pay once the House is established. There are two reasons for this
pattern. First, there are start-up costs associated with the beginning of any new house such as
security deposits, supplies and furnishings.?® Second, when a House first starts it takes some
time to fill all the beds. As all the available beds in a House become full the members can decide
whether to lower the equal share of household expenses or begin to develop a small surplus. As a
practical matter, most houses choose to have a surplus of one month's expenses. Once having
obtained that surplus, it then decides whether to lower the weekly equal share of household
expenses or to accumulate money for the beginning of a new house — or to do both.

Starting new Houses through the mutual assistance of existing Oxford Houses is a tradition
because each House was started with the help of existing Houses and tends to pass on to others
that which they received. Once more applications are received than there are beds available, the
members of any Oxford House™ will begin to look around for another suitable house. When they
find such a house they will bring it up with the other existing Houses and if there is a consensus
they will attempt to find the start up money and members to fill the new house. Often several
members of an existing House will move into the new House to provide a core group of new
members who already know how an Oxford House™ works.

Oxford House, Inc. acts as the coordinating body for providing charters for the opening of new
Oxford Houses. It also acts as the coordinating body to help individual houses to organize
mutually supportive chapters. Through chapters individual houses are able to share their
experience, strength and hope with each other to assure compliance with the Oxford House
concept and its respected standardized system of operations.

28 Numerous Oxford Houses have been opened since 1975. Some operate for several years and then, because of expiration of a lease,
dissatisfaction with the facilities, or simply the finding of a better location, the members of a particular House will move into a new location. Other
Houses often help that type of move as well as the start up of new Oxford Houses. In both cases, financial assistance is in the form of a loan
having a pay back schedule, not to exceed one year, defined up front. (Since 1989, many new Oxford Houses have taken advantage of state
revolving loan programs. Repayment from those start-up loans assures the continuation of the revolving fund to enable other new houses to get
started — just as repayment of loans to chapters permits the same resources to be used again and again.)

2 For example, the landlord and phone company may require a security deposit and, while furnishings are generally donated, members will often
have to rent a truck in order to pick them up. There may also be a need to buy more "staples” such as flour, sugar, coffee, and cleaning supplies,
etc. when a new House starts up.

20



TRADITION SEVEN

Oxford House™ should remain forever non-professional, although
individual members may be encouraged to utilize outside professionals
whenever such utilization is likely to enhance recovery from
alcoholism and drug addiction.

It is inconsistent with the Oxford House system of democratic rule to have a professional
manager of Oxford House™. Likewise, it is inconsistent with the Oxford House concept to have
a requirement placed on members to utilize the services of psychiatrists, doctors, or even the
program of Alcoholics Anonymous or Narcotics Anonymous except in very special
circumstances.

Within an Oxford House group, it is not unusual to find some members who have problems that
cannot be dealt with by the group. In those situations, it is not uncommon for the Oxford House
members, at a meeting, to strongly suggest that a fellow member seek professional help. In those
situations where a member's behavior is disruptive to the group as a whole, the member may be
required to seek such professional help or attend more self-help meetings in order to avoid
being dismissed from Oxford House™.

One can only be dismissed from an Oxford House™ because of drinking, using drugs, non-
payment of rent, or disruptive behavior. Members should be careful not to abuse the dismissal
process. Every opportunity should be given to a member who needs professional help to see that
he obtains it.

Nearly all members of Oxford House™ utilize the AA and/or NA program in order to obtain and
keep a comfortable sobriety. However, an Oxford House™ relies primarily upon example for
assuring a high percentage of AA and/or NA attendance from its members. Formal AA or NA
meetings are not held in an Oxford House™. However, every member who has maintained
comfortable sobriety in an Oxford House™ makes it a practice to attend a lot of AA and/or NA
meetings on a regular basis.3? If a house member does not regularly attend AA or NA meetings,
the house may — as a group conscience — decide that an individual resident should attend a set
number of meetings each week for both the individual’s well-being and the well-being of others
who live in the house.

Individuals living in each of the Oxford Houses have also been responsible for starting many
new groups of Alcoholics Anonymous or Narcotics Anonymous with meetings near an Oxford
House™. This not only helps those individuals to become more involved in AA or NA, and
thereby reap greater individual benefits, but also helps to build strong bonds between local AA
and NA groups and Oxford House™.

30 The 1988 Spring Survey of Oxford House members showed that the average member attends six AA or NA meetings a week. Subsequent
annual surveys of Oxford House residents all around the country have confirmed that Oxford House residents attend an average of between five
and six AA or NA meetings a week. There are two primary reasons 12-step meeting are not held in an individual Oxford House: [a] it is good for
individuals in recovery to get into the habit of attending 12 step meetings in the community, and [b] it is unfair to house members and neighbors to
collect a lot of cars in the neighborhood for regular 12-step meeting at the house.

21



TRADITION EIGHT

Propagation of the Oxford House, Inc. concept should always be
conceived as public education rather than promotion. Principles should
always be placed before personalities.

Those who have benefited from living in an Oxford House™ have acquired enthusiasm for the
Oxford House concept. In their enthusiasm, they have been anxious to share Oxford House™
with any recovering alcoholics and drug addicts who want to establish an Oxford House™ in
their community.

Every Oxford House member stands ready to explain the workings of his House and the
benefits derived there to anyone anywhere. No personal gain is derived from any Oxford
House™ promotion. It should also be pointed out that Oxford House, Inc. in no way gains from
the creation of new Oxford Houses. It has been formed as a non-profit tax-exempt corporation
and will continue to operate as one both according to the letter and spirit of the law.

It is not easy to spread the word of a new concept or an old concept with a new twist.
Propagation, or spreading the word, of the Oxford House concept is given the highest priority
by the members of Oxford House™.

Before spreading the word, an individual Oxford House™ should make certain that it is
sufficiently established to undertake public discussion of it goals and mission. The best sales
pitch for spreading the word about Oxford House™ is simply the establishment of a sound
Oxford House™ and a straightforward discussion of what it is, how it works and why it is
needed.

As with any group or organization, there will be some individuals who will be so impressed
with the Oxford House concept that they will become "super salesmen." Each super salesman
should be keenly aware that the Oxford House concept is one based on principles rather than
personalities. The situation should be avoided whereby certain individuals will begin to equate
their persuasive qualities with the Oxford House concept. The concept and the standardized,
democratic, self-supported Oxford House system of operations itself are far more persuasive
than any individual. Be honest and straightforward when sharing the Oxford House concept
with others.

The Oxford House concept is a sound one, based on sound principles, and has demonstrated its
worth with an established track record. We should spread the word about Oxford House™,
but be wary of individuals who place their own personalities before the principles that made
Oxford House™ work. Oxford Houses are dedicated to recovery and group support; not
individual gain.

22



TRADITION NINE

Members who leave an Oxford House™ in good standing are
encouraged to become associate members and offer friendship,
support, and example to newer members.

While no one is ever asked to leave an Oxford House™ without cause, some individuals will
simply outgrow living in an Oxford House™. They will return to their families; they may start
new families; they may simply move into another living situation.

Once a member has left an Oxford House™, he or she should be encouraged to become active in
the Oxford House Alumni Association. Many alumni members continue to be associated with
their former Oxford House™ as an associate house member. The associate member should be
encouraged to attend House meetings, but a local house may decide that his voting privileges
are somewhat less than those who live in the House. Such a restriction of voting privileges
makes sense and should not discourage members who leave in good standing from becoming
associate members of their former house or chapter.

Gratitude is a feeling that most alcoholics acquire sometime during their recovery process.
Often, recovering alcoholics and drug addicts find it difficult to adequately express their
gratitude. The alumni member of Oxford House™ is in the enviable position of being able to be
of service in an environment in which he has total understanding. The alumni member can offer
friendship, support, and an example to the active members of an Oxford House™.

Moreover, the alumni member can often provide assistance in forming new Oxford Houses or
in recruiting new members who want to live in an Oxford House™. Above all the associate
member serves as an example of one who lived in an Oxford House™ and "made it."

All Oxford Houses should encourage members who leave in good standing to maintain a
continuous link with their Oxford House™ experience. The welcome mat should be out to any
associate member and contacts between associate members and active members should be
encouraged.3!

To the extent possible, each Oxford House™ should keep Oxford House, Inc. up-to-date with
the current address of Alumni Members who have left the House in good standing, so that
they can receive the "Oxford Grape" and other Oxford House newsletters.32

31 Many former residents of Oxford Houses, who left their particular house clean and sober, become members of the national Oxford House
Alumni Association. The Alumni Association is a fellowship of former Oxford House™ residents who share their experience, strengths and
hope in order to expand the Oxford House™ movement and keep it operating and expanding in a way to assure other recovering individuals the
same opportunity they have enjoyed.

32 Names and addresses of Alumni Members and inquires concerning the Oxford House Manual© should be sent to Oxford House, Inc. 1010
Wayne Avenue, Suite 300, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910. A cooperative effort by both alumni and active house members can help keep

successful members of Oxford House™ in touch with the Oxford House family. Most Oxford Houses honor their members who leave in good
standing by awarding them a certificate of accomplishment and the first year’s membership in the Oxford House Alumni Association. At the
website: www.oxfordhouse.org one can go to “Contact Us” and register the name and current address of alumni members.

23



OXFORD HOUSE SYSTEM CHECKLIST

MONEY

> Set up a checking account for each Oxford House™
> Obtain a federal tax identification number
» Get name of House and address on each check
> Require at least two signatures to write a check
» Record all deposits, checks drawn and service charges
> Run all income and expenses through account
» Post monthly statement so all members of House can see
> Set weekly equal share of household expenses to cover costs
» Figure monthly expenses (rent, utilities, staples)
» Divide by number of beds likely to be occupied
» Add a small amount to enable House to have a reserve
» Remember that any shortfall has to be made up by other residents if any of the house
recovery beds are not occupied
» Collect equal share of household expenses in advance
> Usually a House sets a rule of one or two weeks in advance
> Do not let members get behind in equal share of household expenses
» If a member is two weeks behind confront the member at the weekly meeting
» Discuss hardship cases at a meeting before accepting a new member — sometimes, it
may be necessary to take into account the fact that an individual just out of
rehabilitation will have to get a job in order to get rent money
> Utilities
» Remember electric bill is higher in summer
» Remember fuel bill is higher in winter
> Pay for view cable TV programs must be paid by user unless a house vote
> Protect against “pay for view” or “900” telephone calls

ALCOHOL AND DRUGS

> Sobriety

> Sobriety is the primary purpose of an Oxford House™

» Make no compromise

> Frequently go to AA /NA meetings but rely on "attraction” rather than mandates —

AA/NA meetings should be outside the house
» Alcohol or drug use

> As soon as use is suspected call a special meeting
» When a majority vote confirms use expulsion results
» If drunk or high, member should leave immediately
> If passive, leave the next morning
» Make no exceptions
> Establish a readmission guideline of thirty days sobriety
> Accept the fact that the House welfare is more important than any individual
» Accept the fact that "tough love" stops relapses

24



OFFICERS

> House President
»» Elected for six-month term
»» Must be resident of House
»» Calls and leads weekly and special meetings
»» Cannot succeed himself but can be elected to the same office after six
months have elapsed

> House Treasurer
»» Elected for six-month term
»» Must be resident of House
»» Responsible for maintaining House financial records
»» Keeps membership informed about financial condition
»» Cannot succeed himself but can be elected to the same office after six
months have elapsed

> House Secretary

»» Elected for six-month term

»» Must be resident of House

»» Responsible for recording minutes of House Meetings

»» Before each weekly meeting assures that vacancy updates have been
made and the vacancy contact cell phone is accurate

»» Sends thank you notes to contributors

»» Cannot succeed himself but can be elected to the same office after six
months have elapsed

» House Comptroller
»» Elected for six-month term
»» Must be resident of House
»» Responsible for collection of equal share of expenses and reports to house
»» Balances books with Treasurer prior to each meeting
»» Responsible for annual survey completion and transfer to website
»» Cannot succeed himself but can be elected to the same office after six
months have elapsed

» House Coordinator
»» Elected for six-month term
»» Must be resident of House
»» Assigns and reviews house chores
»» Cannot succeed himself but can be elected to the same office after six
months have elapsed

The goal of every Oxford House is to be an example to everyone in recovery of the way to

become comfortable enough in sobriety to assure long-term recovery without relapse. In brief,
every Oxford House is a “Good Neighbor and a Good Citizen.”

25



Staying Connected

Every Oxford House stays connected in order to share strength, experience and hope with other
Oxford Houses, Oxford House World Services, the treatment community, drug courts, researchers
and all in the recovery community. At the heart of staying connected is having the House
Secretary check the Oxford House website: www.oxfordhouse.org before each weekly house
meeting to report any new material to the house membership. The House Secretary should also
make certain that the cell phone number of at least one current resident is listed on the vacancy
input website: www.oxfordvacancies.com so that a person in the house can respond to the text
messages automatically sent each week to record current vacancies.

Remember that finding a safe place to live was a tough job for each of us. We were often
frustrated. One frustration was learning that a house reportedly had a vacancy but then finding
out there was no vacancy. The least each of us can do for the newcomer to recovery seeking a
safe place to live is to make sure that our vacancy data is correct — if for no other reason than to
protect the good name of our house among counselors and members of the recovery community
who are trying to help the newcomer to find a safe place to live. No counselor or twelfth-stepper
will refer anybody to Oxford House if they are consistently misled by the vacancy information on
the Oxford House website or if the telephone contact number is wrong or never answered. Now
that every house has been assigned an email address, answering email promptly can be a good
way to set up interviews and fill vacancies.

The elected Comptroller of each house is responsible for making certain that the house has an
assigned email account. Beginning in September 2012, every new house will get an assigned
email address when it gets its charter. Check the website for how houses existing before that date
can get an assigned email address. If an Oxford House does not have a computer or an Internet
connection, get one. Computers have come down in price and a fast Internet connection costs
much less than cable TV. Donated hand me down computers are also okay. Ask in the
community for donations of computers.

Keeping connected and up-to-date will mean that vacancies are promptly filled. Remember that if
a house does not have enough money in its checking account to pay the landlord or the utility
company on time, every resident must dig into his or her pocket to come up with the shortfall. It
is essential that vacancies be filled quickly and that adjustments to the equal share of household
expenses be promptly made to avoid losing the house charter. Keeping an Oxford House on track
by expelling residents who relapse and paying bills on time is important to everyone. It is also a
requirement for meeting the conditions of the House Charter.

g

26



Protecting House and Chapter Finances

The key to making any Oxford House work well is to have a weekly house meeting.
Avoid thinking that, “Things are going so well we only need to meet once every two weeks or
once a month.” Experience has shown that whenever a house fails to have a regular weekly house
meeting, trouble is just around the corner. The standard forms in the Oxford House Manual®, the
Oxford House Chapter Manual®, and on the website are blueprints or maps for staying on track
during a house or chapter meeting. Use them and if you have any questions use the hotline or
web contact form to get an answer or explanation from Oxford House World Services.

When an Oxford House is established it gets its own unique Federal Employer Identification
Number [FEIN] from the Internal Revenue Service because that number is needed to establish a
house checking account. Write the FEIN number in the House Record Book so that future
residents in the house will have it. Also, make certain that Oxford House World Services has a
copy of the number in their database. When the House Secretary checks into the website, he or
she should verify house data on the World Services database. If the FEIN number is blank, please
provide one. Your bank can tell you the FEIN number if your house has misplaced it.

All Oxford Houses require two signatures for checks drawn on their checking accounts. Most
Oxford Houses write checks for paying bills during their regular house meeting. That way
everyone knows that the house money — which belongs to all the house members — is
being properly spent. Between house meetings, the house checkbook should be locked up in
a safe place. A simple lock box can be purchased at office supply stores like Staples, Office
Max or Office Depot. The President, Treasurer and one other officer should have a key or know
the combination code for opening the lock box. This ritual underscores how important it is to
keep house money safe. Remember not to use electronic payments for paying bills except for
start-up loan repayment or contributions to Oxford House, Inc. That makes certain that all
expenditures on behalf of the house are easily documented and approved by all the house
members. Also do not vote the same person as treasurer of house, chapter and state association.*®

The best safeguard for protecting finances in a house or chapter or state association is to make the
financial data available to all members of the house or chapter or state association. Transparency
is the best safeguard against stealing by dishonest members. The audit forms and procedures
ensure transparency. The Treasurer of the House should report current house finances at each
weekly house meeting. The Comptroller should work with the Treasurer to conduct a monthly
audit of house or chapter funds to make sure careless mistakes in addition or subtraction do not
misrepresent how much money is on hand, paid out or due.

Finally, don’t let residents get behind in paying their equal share of expenses. Everyone in
recovery must be responsible. Our past addictive behavior often led us to put off doing things until
tomorrow. Remember there is never an excuse for not paying house bills on time - including rent
to the landlord. Vacancies can be no excuse. If the house checking account is short of funds
when the bills are due, residents must kick in an additional amount on an equal basis to pay the
rent and other bills on time.

Hinn

33 See World Council Resolution # 42. Voting different individuals to be in charge of membership money at different levels of the organization is a
sound “check and balance” to avoid embezzlement.

27



Application For Membership In Oxford House

To be accepted in an Oxford House an applicant must complete both sides of this application and be interviewed by the residents of
the particular Oxford House to which the applicant is applying. The residents of the house then vote on acceptance. An 80%
affirmative vote is needed to be accepted. Carefully read the application and honestly answer the questions. Living in an Oxford

House is special and if you understand its value it can help you achieve comfortable sobriety without relapse.

1. Print Name (Last, First, Middle)

3. Date of Birth

Month Day Year

2. Present address (Street) Check if treatment facility |:|

4. Phone Where You Can Be Reached

Home ( )

City State Zip

Work ( )

6. Date of Your
Last Drink?

5. Are you an Alcoholic?

|:|Yes |:| No

7. Are you addicted to drugs?

|:| Yes |:| No

8. Date of last
drug use?

9. List drugs you used addictively:

10. When did you attend your first AA or NA meeting?

11. How many AA/NA meeting do you now attend each
week?

12. Do you want to stop drinking alcohol and using addictive drugs?

|:|Yes |:| No

13. Are you employed?
|:| Yes |:| No If “yes” who is your employer?

14. Are you getting welfare or other non-job related income?
Yes |:| No If “yes” what?

15. If you do not have a job will you get one?
|:| Yes |:| No If “yes” what job plans do you have?

16. What is your monthly income right now?

$

17. What do you expect your monthly income to be next
month?

$

18. Marital status [Check One]
|:| Married, |:| Never Married, |:| Separated, |:| Divorced

19. Do you have a medical doctor?

|:|Yes |:| No

If “yes” list the doctor’'s name and phone number:

20. Have you ever been to a treatment facility for alcoholism and/or drug addiction?

|:| Yes |:| No If “yes” list the treatment provider, phone number and primary
counselor, if any.

21. Do you take prescription drugs?

|:| Yes |:| No If “yes” list drugs and reason the
drug has been prescribed.

Please complete the other side of this application.

—

© 2012 Oxford House World Services, 1010 Wayne Avenue, Suite 300, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910
Telephone (301) 587-2916 « Facsimile (301) 589-0302 « Website: www.oxfordhouse.org

28




Side 2

22. Date of move in ? |:| Immediately |:| Other -- If “other” list the date you would want to move in, if accepted, and why the date is in the
future rather than immediately. Date: Reason:

23. Have you ever lived in an Oxford House before? |:| Yes |:| No If “yes,” provide the name and location of the Oxford House below
and answer question 24.

24. [Answer this question if the answer to question 23 was “yes.”] | left the previous Oxford House for the following reason: [check one]

|:| relapse, |:| voluntarily, |:| other reason(s)

I, did |:| or do not |:| owe money to the Oxford House | left. If | did owe money to the Oxford House | left, | will agree to repay the money |
owed to my former Oxford House. |:| Yes |:| No

25. Emergency Telephone Numbers. [[List family doctor, if you have one, + two family members or friends]

Name and Address Relationship Telephone

1-

2-

26. | realize that the Oxford House to which | am applying for residency has been established in compliance
with the conditions of § 2036 of the Federal Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988, P.L. 100-690, as amended, which
provides that federal money loaned to start the house requires the house residents to (A) prohibit all residents
from using any alcohol or illegal drugs, (B) expel any resident who violates such prohibition, (C) equally share
of household expenses including the monthly lease payment, among all residents, and (D) utilize
democratic decision making within the group including inclusion in and expulsion from the group. In
accepting these terms, the applicant excludes himself or herself from the normal due process afforded by local
landlord-tenant laws.

27. Use this space for additional relevant information:

28. | have read all of the material on this application form including the limitations set forth in item 26. |
have also answered each question honestly and want to achieve comfortable recovery from alcoholism
and/or drug addiction without relapse.

SIGNATURE: DATE:

FOR USE BY OXFORD HOUSE

ACCEPTED NOT ACCEPTED MOVE IN DATE MOVE OUT DATE:

HOUSE KEYS RETURNED YES NO OUTSTANDING DEBT TO HOUSE $ DATE REPAID

Visit website: www.oxfordhouse.org for nearest Oxford House to you
29
© 2012 Oxford House, Inc.




WEEKLY OXFORD HOUSE FINANCIAL STATUS REPORT

Name of House

Week Of:
TO

20

Number of Weekly Report

CHECKING ACCOUNT
BALANCE

+

CASH IN BANK
START OF THIS WEEK
SAVING ACCOUNT | — $
BALANCE

DATE | DEPOSITS AND MONEY RECEIVED AT THIS MEETING
OR SINCE LAST DEPOSIT
[LIST BY SOURCE]

AMOUNT

TOTAL MONEY RECEIVED:
(ADD TO AMOUNT AT TOP OF PAGE
TO SHOW “CASH + RECEIPTS”)

CASH + RECEIPTS

$

30

© 2012 Oxford House World Services




CASH + RECEIPTS

FROM FRONT
v
EXPENDITURE BY CHECK AND CASH $
DATE PAID TO AND PURPOSE CHECK AMOUNT
v
_’
SUBTRACT TOTAL MONEY PAID OUT: $

BILLS TO BE PAID (Future bills due within 30 days)

DATE DUE

To WHOM AND FOR WHAT

AMOUNT

TOTAL

ENTER DIFFERENCE
BETWEEN AMOUNT PAID
OUT AND CASH + RECEIPTS

2 2

Carry forward this amount
to the next weekly
financial report.
Remember to number
each sheet for easy
reference of one week
from the next.

Oxford House World Services, 1010 Wayne Avenue, Suite 300, Silver Spring, MD 20910
Telephone 1-800-689-6411 « Facsimile 1-301-589-0302

31


John K. Fox
Typewritten Text
DATE


Oxford House Monthly Reconciliation and Financial Audit

HOW TO RECONCILE YOUR HOUSE CHECK BOOK --

Reconcile your checking account every month when you receive your Bank Statement. The following easy steps will help you do the job.

HOUSE NAME MONTH/YEAR OF:

Step 1. CHECK (") AMOUNTS SHOWN ON YOUR STATEMENT AGAINST AMOUNTS ENTERED IN YOUR CHECK BOOK.

Step 2. LIST BELOW THE CHECKS WRITTEN DURING THE PERIOD WHICH ARENOT RECORDED ON YOUR BANK STATEMENT.
Step 3. LIST BELOW THE DEPOSITS MADE DURING THE PERIOD WHICH ARENOT RECORDED ON YOUR BANK STATEMENT.
Step 4. ADJUST YOUR CHECK BOOK BALANCE BY SUBTRACTING ANY SERVICE CHARGES NOTED ON YOUR STATEMENT.
Step 5. Add the deposits not recorded to the statement balance and subtract the amount of outstanding checks plus service charges.

Apply the five steps above by filling in the form below. The result arrived at in the “AUDITED HOUSE ACCOUNT” box is the amount of money a
house has available at the end of the period. This completes an audit of the checking account. If your house has a savings account, audit it using
the steps on the other side of this form.

. . BANK STATEMENT DATE
House Checking Account Audit:

DEPOSITS NOT ON YOUR STATEMENT CHECKS NOT ON YOUR STATEMENT
DATE AMOUNT NUMBER AND DATE AMOUNT
SUB TOTAL MINUS TOTAL
ENTER STATEMENT TOTAL OF ITEMS NOT OUTSTANDING
ENDING BALANCE + DEPOSITED = - CHECKS
AUDITED HOUSE
1. HOUSE TREASURER, COMPTROLLER AND PRESIDENT ACCOUNT $
SHOULD WORK TOGETHER TO COMPLETE EACH MONTHLY
AUDIT OF HOUSE FUNDS.

2. AFTER COMPLETING THE AUDIT EACH SHOULD SIGN THE
OTHER SIDE OF THIS FORM AND THEN POST THE FORM SO
EVERYONE IN THE HOUSE KNOWS THE FINANCIAL STATUS.

© 2012 Oxford House World Services, 1010 Wayne Avenue, Suite 300, Silver Spring, MD 20910
Telephone 1-800-689-6411+ Facsimile 1-301-589-0302
32



Oxford House Monthly Reconciliation and Financial Audit

The summary of the financial status our Oxford House at the end of the month is computed

below by filling in the right amounts and adding or subtracting:

House Savings Account ’ $
Amount in the Bank
Plus
House Checking Account _’ $
Amount in the Bank
Plus
Amount to be Deposited in Savings _} $
Account
Plus
Amount to be Deposited in Checking _} $
Account
Minus
Total of Bills Due ’ $
Available Funds ’ $
Plus
Money Owed the House $

Total Funds Available When All
Money Owed the House is Paid

|

List below the individuals who are behind in paying their equal share of household expenses.

Name Amount Owed Name

Amount Owed

Auditing Officer’s Initials

President Date:
Treasurer Date:
Comptroller: Date:

© 2012 Oxford House World Services, 1010 Wayne Avenue, Suite 300, Silver Spring, MD 20910
Telephone 1-800-689-6411+ Facsimile 1-301-589-0302

33




‘pouiad Jabuoj e 1on00 Aew juswAed JI uans yoam ay) Aq Jl 0g "onp junowe pue sjuswAed s juspisal [enplAlpul uo Lodal Apjeam e doay)

34

[1 3ais]
J0NVIVE avd aivd I18VAVd avd | 378VAvd 40
VLiOL JONV1vE 31vd LINNOAYV LNNONV 3Ll JONVIvE | divd 31vd | LNNOWY SEE M3IM
and
AVLOL = [eworseuyeuoyd] S3SNIIXT SNOANVITIOSIN + [s33] 3yVHS ISNIdX3 TvNO3
3944 AHINS
S3|3yvHs

3Nd LNNONY

ISNIdX3 TvNO3

d3anNn4d3d 31vd

d3aNnN4d3d INNONY

SNOSV3d

3ISNOH 1437 31vd

divd 31vd

YIGNTN 40 IINVN

d39d31 F19VAIFOTS
d349N3IN TVNAIAIANI

dSNOH A¥04X0

31va
AL3IIH90S

NI
d3IAOW 31vdad



John K. Fox
Typewritten Text
ENTRY FEE

John K. Fox
Typewritten Text

John K. Fox
Typewritten Text
[EES]


01602 ANl ‘Bulids JaAIIS ‘00€ 8)NS ‘onudAy SUABAA 0101 ‘S8DIAIaS PIOM 9SNOH PIOIXO £00Z @

'SIWH31 dOO0S NO LNO SIAONW OHM d3dWNIN ANV 40 SS34AAdv M3N FHL
HLIM S30INE3S ATdOM ISNOH AHO4X0 HO d31dVHD dNOA ONIAINOEd A9 NOILVIOOSSY INWNTY 3SNOH AJdO4X0 IAILOV NV d1iNg d13H

'S3SN3IdX3 ATOHISNOH 40 FHVHS TVNO3 NV AVd OL dNOYO FHL 40 SHIGWIIN 1TV d713H ANV SONIANV.LSHIANNSIN LNIATHd SAJ003H
o099 "MOOG3LON 4v3713S00TV NI 43HLIODO0L S133HS ¥390d31 S, IVNAIAIANI HOVE 433X LNF A3HIN03Y SV L33HS ¥39A3T MAN V LHVLS

35

3JONV1VvE divd divd J19VAVd divd 319VAVd 40
V10l JONV1VE 31vd INNONYV INNONY N3l JONV1IVE | divd 31vd | INNOWNVY s33 I EENL
aNnd
TVLOL = [eworseuyeucud] SISNIAXI SNOANVTIIISIN + [s33] 33VHS 3SNIdX3 TVNO3

[z 3aIsI ¥3gNIN 40 INVYN




| 1 ¥9-689-008-1 auoydajs |
01602 AW ‘Bulds JaAJIS ‘00€ 9)INS ‘onusAy SUABAA 010 'SBJIAISS PIOA SSNOH PIOJXO £00Z ©

‘Aauow samo oym pue ajep-o3-dn pied sey oym mouy 0} slaquuiaw asnoy Joj |gejieAe apew pue Bunespy asnoH Apjeam ay je pajuasaid ‘Yoam yoes Jojjoidwo) ayy Aq pa1a|dwod S| wioy syl

¢— STviOL

o
=

-~
<~

=)
2

o))

~ N ™M S0 © | N0

[s33l
Sway| aleyg esuadx3 [[Asuow asnoy sy} Buimo Ayjus Jo uosiad Jayjo 1Q]
an(g saduejeg saul4 Shoaue||9dsIN usodaQg s33 lenb3 Ao JINVN S H3IFGN3IIN
‘40 M¥33IM IHL 40 SV
AV - HINOW IVNAHNOr 319vVAIdO0dd SINNODOJV

3ISNOH 40 FNVN

Hoday Alewwng Apjeapn
4SNOH AY04XO

36



LL$9-689-008-1 duoydaje
01602 A ‘Buuds JeA|IS ‘00€ 81NS ‘@nuaAy aukep) 0LOL ‘S82IAI8S PLIOAA 8SNOH PIOIXO 0002 ®

aleq

ainjeubig s Jojeulpioo)

-dnoub ay} jo 810/ e Ag panosdde aq jsnw sanjeuad Jo sauy |y Ajeuad Jo auly e ssasse 0}
aploap Aew dnoub ayy pue Bupssw asnoy ayj Je diysiaquiaw ||y 8y} 0} Jodal pjnoys Jojeulpiood) 8y} ‘Jsuuewl Alojoeysies e ul paja|dwod Jou SI a10yo e |

Jauuew Alojoejsnes e ul paajdwon Jou, :81edlpul 01 X ‘leuuew Alojoejsnes e ul paa|dwod, :8)eodlpul 0] [] :SMO||O) Se sWeu S Jaquiall
paubisse ay) 01 1Xau X0 8y} Ul 810Yd Yoes 8109s p|noys Jojeulpioo) Bunssw asnoy Jeinbai yoes alojog siseq Ajlep B U0 auop aqg p|noys saloyn

(sJoop 1ixe g slaysinbunxa
‘swuele ayows Bunop) A 1 J4VS ¢t

8SNOH JO Jeay - pIeA ‘Mt

9SNOH JO JUOI4 - pJeA Ol

‘6

‘8

L

Z "ON woouyjeg

|l "ON woolyleg s

sie)g/lleH v

wooy AipuneT ¢

usyoy] 2

wooy BulAIg b

JNVN
G "ON %99\

JNVN
¥ "ON %99\

JNVN
€ "'ON %99\

JNVN
C 'ON %93\

JNVN
L "ON 383\ ALIAILOY

[-euop aq 0} ylom saseys Ajjenbs auohians jey; os sqol ajejol pue sjuswubisse s Jaquiaw }sIT] "ues|) sealy uowwo) daay 0] sjiedq JopN ubissy

‘ISNOH 40 JNVN

140d3dd S HOLVNIAHdO00D
4SNOH d404X0O

37



OXFORD HOUSE TRADITIONS

1. Oxford House has as its primary goal the provision
of housing for the alcoholic and drug addict who
wants to stay clean and sober.

2. All Oxford Houses are run on a democratic basis.
Our officers serve continuous periods of no longer
than six months.

3. No Member of an Oxford House is ever asked to
leave without cause -- drinking, drug use, or disruptive
behavior.

4. Oxford House members realize that active
patticipation in AA and/or NA offers assurance of
continued sobriety.

5. Each Oxford House should be autonomous except
in matters affecting other houses or Oxford House,
Inc. - as a whole.

6. Each Oxford House should be financially self-
supporting.

7. Oxford House should remain forever non-
professional.

8. Propagation of the Oxford House, Inc. concept
should always be conceived as public education.

9. Members who leave an Oxford House in good
standing should become associate members.

SR

38



Oxford House™
1975 -2017

42 Years of Organized Self-Help To Enable Alcoholics and
Drug Addicts to Recover Without Relapse

* Providing Sole Authority for Oxford House Charters

* Providing Technical Assistance to Establish New
Oxford Houses

* Providing Technical Assistance to Keep Existing
Oxford Houses on Track

* Providing Organization of Chapters to Help Oxford
Houses to Help Themselves

* Providing the Time, Living Environment and
Support to Enable Alcoholics and Drug Addicts to
Achieve Recovery Without Relapse

* Providing the Legal, Philosophical, and Scientific
Framework for a Cost-effective, Worldwide
Network of Supportive Recovery Housing.

Write or Call

Oxford House World Services
1010 Wayne Avenue, Suite 300
Silver Spring, Maryland 20910

Telephone 301-587-2916
Facsimile 301-589-0302
E-Mail Info@oxfordhouse.org

Web Site: www.oxfordhouse.org




VARIANCE REQUEST
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
April 27, 2021

CASE: BOA-962
PETITIONER: Jeffrey Serens, applicant, on behalf of Ted Meehan, property owner.

REQUEST: Variance of 10’ from the 20’ minimum Performance Residential periphery setback
requirement per Section 3.1.3.D of the New Hanover County Unified Development
Ordinance.

LOCATION: 1140 Lt. Congleton Road
PID: RO7900-003-473-000

ZONING: R-15, Residential District
ACREAGE: 0.22 Acres
BACKGROUND AND ORDINANCE CONSIDERATIONS:

Jeffrey Serens, applicant, on behalf of Ted Meehan, property owner, is requesting a variance from the
minimum Performance Residential Subdivision setback requirement of 20’ in order to construct a 504-sf
addition to the existing single-family residence on the subject property.

The UDO allows for two different types of subdivision design: Performance Residential Developments and
Conventional Residential Developments. In a performance development, individual lots are not subject to
the specific yard requirements of a zoning district provided that the density for the zoning district is not
exceeded. In a conventional development, the UDO requires that the dimensional standards for each
zoning district be met. The subject property is a 0.22-acre parcel in the Tarin Woods subdivision, which
was recorded in 2016 as a performance subdivision.

Section 3.1.3 of the UDO contains provisions governing Performance Subdivisions, which generally address
design parameters and other approval requirements. Although the conventional front, side, and rear yard

requirements are not mandated on a performance residential lot, this section still requires a 20’ setback on
the periphery of the subdivision:

3.1.3. SUPERSEDING DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS
D. Performance Residential Development
Performance Residential Developments are not subject to the minimum lot size, minimum lot
width, and front, rear, and side setback requirements in the zoning district where they are
located. Performance Residential Developments shall comply with the standards in this section
and with all other applicable standards in this Ordinance.

1. Setbacks and Spacing

a. Buildings on the periphery of a Performance Residential Development shall
setback a minimum of 20 feet from the adjoining property line.

BOA-962 1of4



The subject property’s eastern side yard lies on the periphery of Tarin Woods, as shown on the plat
recorded in MB 61, Page 139 of the New Hanover County Register of Deeds. This eastern side yard is
adjacent to the rear yards of lots within Congleton Farms, which is a separate performance residential
subdivision recorded in 2018.

1392 37 UTILITY EASEWENT XL 77~
EXISTING yd - f o
15" UTILITY EASEMENT T & ff\"'ae L “‘ P& L T i
— ‘ tis i, e
XISTING - —_ ) = EXI
ASSIVE ~ e {\.g;/— 30' UTILITY ESMT Sentry Oaks, __ _
pagNﬂé.me }'-:.- 74 f e HS’"- Recorded in 2003 |- — "
TARIN WOODS S/D 73y~ 5 - /
PHASE VI B N 1 - X
PB. 61, PG, 1-2 / a 73
0y PB. 38, PG. 330 /
H“"\.
- /
~

\ - \/
\ -

| - 20" DRAINAGE ESMT, ™ <X\ i | 13/ - 10" DRAINAGE EASEMENT

103 a = L E . 4 |
| ol &1 Tarin Woods, }
i zl|= Recorded in 2016 Congleton Farms,
| 102 =1 7 7 Recorded in 2018
i 0
I -%

LOT FORMATION

20’ Tarin Woods

Periphery Setback

TARIN WOODS S/D on Subject Property
PHASE II

PB. 58, PG. 2895

'_."1. 10" DRATNAGE
EASEMENT

ARVIN H. HL l_._l-_ I J\ SR.
Figure 1: Inset of record plat for Tarin Woods, Phase VII showmg boundarles of separate Performance Subdivisions and location of required
periphery setback on subject property.

The single-family residence on the parcel was constructed in 2016. However, the periphery setback was
not applied to this side yard at the time of construction, and the structure currently lies 14’ from the eastern
side property line at its closest extent in the front of the lot. Research into the specific reason the periphery
setback was not applied in this instance is inconclusive. As the structure was submitted, reviewed, and
permitted with an encroachment into the 20’ periphery setback, staff determined that this extent constitutes
a legal non-conformity. With this interpretation, the applicant would be able to construct the addition
utilizing the 14’ setback as it does not increase the degree of the non-conformity, as stated in Section 11.4.6
of the UDO:

11.4.6. Physical alteration of structures or the placement of new structures on open land are
unlawful if they result in:

A. An increase in the total amount of space devoted to a nonconforming use; or

B. A greater non-conformity with respect to dimensional restrictions such as yard requirements,
height limitations, or density requirements.

BOA-962 20of4



However, the addition is proposed on the southeastern corner of the structure and would lie 10’ from the
eastern property line, extending approximately 4’ further into the periphery setback than the existing
structure. The applicant intends to utilize the additional living area for a bedroom, bathroom and
kitchenette for an aging family member.

The applicant contends that the variance is necessary to permit construction of the addition which the
property owners intended to pursue when they purchased the home. The preliminary plot plan provided
by the surveyor when the home was submitted for permitting labeled the side yard setbacks as 10’, and
the property owners were not informed of the required 20’ periphery setback.

Proposed 504’
SF Addition, 10’
from Side
Property Line

.| Congleton Farms,
| Recorded in 2018 L'—.?

20’ Tarin Woods
Periphery Setback
on Subject Property

Figure 2: Proposed Site Plan with Staff Markups

In summary, the applicants are requesting a variance from the 20’ Performance Subdivision periphery
setback requirement of 10’ in order to construct a 504 sf addition to the existing single-family dwelling on
the subject property, which will be set back 10’ from the periphery of Tarin Woods.

BOA-962 30f4



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT POWER AND DUTY:

The Board of Adjustment has the authority to authorize variances from the terms of the Unified Development
Ordinance where, due to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the regulations would result in
unnecessary hardship. In granting any variance, the Board may prescribe appropriate conditions and
safeguards in conformity with the Unified Development Ordinance. A concurring vote of four-fifths (4/5)
of the voting members of the Board shall be necessary to grant a variance. A variance shall not be granted
by the Board unless and until the following findings are made:

1.

Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the ordinance. It shall not be
necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of
the property.

The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or
topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from
conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for
granting a variance.

The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of
purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a
variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship.

The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such that
public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.

ACTION NEEDED (Choose one):

2.

Motion to approve the variance request based on the findings of fact (with or without
conditions)

Motion to table the item in order to receive additional information or documentation
(Specify).

Motion to deny the variance request based on specific negative findings in any of the 4
categories above.

BOA-962 4 of 4






Case: BOA-962 Zoning Map

Address: 1140 Lt Congleton Rd
Variance from Performance Subdivision Periphery Setback Requirements
Applicant: Jeff Serens

New Hanover County Board of Adjustment April 27, 2021




Case: BOA-962 Aerial Map

Address: 1140 Lt Congleton Rd
Variance from Performance Subdivision Periphery Setback Requirements

Applicant: Jeff Serens

New Hanover County Board of Adjustment April 27, 2021




NEW HANOVER COUNTY
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

230 Government Center Drive, Lucie Harrell Conference Room, Wilmington, NC 28403
Members of the Board
Cameron Moore, Chair | Kristin Freeman, Vice-Chair
Henry “Hank” Adams | Maverick Pate | Luke Waddell
Board Alternates
Pete DeVita | Richard Kern | Michael Keenan, Sr.

Rebekah Roth, Director of Planning & Land Use | Sharon Huffman, Deputy County Attorney

ORDER TO GRANT A VARIANCE - Case BOA-962

The Board of Adjustment for New Hanover County, having held a public hearing on April 27, 2021 to
consider application number BOA-962, submitted by Jeffrey Serens, applicant, on behalf of Ted Meehan,
property owner, a request for a variance of 10’ from the 20’ minimum Performance Residential
Development periphery setback requirement per Section 3.1.3.D(1)(a) of the New Hanover County Unified
Development Ordinance to use the property located at 1140 Lt. Congleton Road in a manner not
permissible under the literal terms of the ordinance and having heard all the evidence and arguments
presented at the hearing, makes the following FINDINGS OF FACT and draws the following CONCLUSIONS:

1.

3.

Itis the Board’s conclusion that, if the applicant complies with the literal terms of the ordinance,
specifically a variance of 10’ from the 20’ minimum Performance Residential Development
periphery setback requirement per Section 3.1.3.D(1)(a) of the New Hanover County Unified
Development Ordinance, that an unnecessary hardship would/would not result. (It shall not be
necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made
of the property.) This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

It is the Board’s conclusion that the hardship of which the applicant complains results/does not
result from unique circumstances related to the subject property, such as location, size, or
topography. (Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting
from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the
basis for granting a variance.) This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

It is the Board’s conclusion that the hardship did/did not result from actions taken by the
applicant or the property owner. (The act of purchasing property with knowledge that



circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-
created hardship.) This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

4. It is the Board’s conclusion that, if granted, the variance will/will not be consistent with the
spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial
justice is achieved. This conclusion is based on the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

THEREFORE, on the basis of all the foregoing, IT IS ORDERED that the application for a VARIANCE from
New Hanover County Unified Development Ordinance to allow a variance of 10 from the 20’ minimum
Performance Residential Development periphery setback requirement per Section 3.1.3.D(1)(a) of the
UDO be GRANTED/DENIED, subject to the following conditions, if any:

ORDERED this 27" day of April, 2021.

Cameron Moore, Chairman

Attest:

Kenneth Vafier, Executive Secretary to the Board



NEW HANOVER COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & LAND USE
230 Government Center Drive, Suite 110
Wilmington, North Carelina 28403

Telephone (910) 798-7165

FAX (210) 798-7053
planningdevelopment.nh¢gov.com

ZONING & SUBDIVISION VARIANCE APPLICATION

This application form must be completed as part of a request for a zoning and /or subdivision variance. The application
 submitted through the county’s online COAST portal. The main procedural steps in the submittal and review of
applications for a variance are outlined in the flowchart below. More specific submittal and review requirements, as
well as the standards to be dpplled in rewewmg the appllcchon, are set out In Sectlon 10.3.11 of 1he Unffied
Development Ordinance., » : o B af oE e . ok

Public

Hearing

Procedures
lu (!iiih?eu‘a {Optional 2 3 5
j tGnl G ST Apnplication Planning Public Hearing Board of BostDecision
3‘_%% : i Subimittal & SireciorReview,| “Schediling s Adivstment! | Limitasions and

Acceptance & S taff Reppr Notiication Flafining Board Arliang
Hearing &

Diecision

‘=

P —

S e I I R

1. Applicant and Property Owner Information

Applicant/Agent Name Owner Name (if different from Applicant/Agent)
Teflle, Seesnus Ted ™Medad
Company Company/Owner Name 2
A Serees Concdaukion)
Address Address
PO Boy /252 L 1140 14 Co.qﬁ\e—\vurc\
City, State, Zip City, State, Zip
i\ Ne. 2890S I\, NE. 25907
Phone Phone
UN0~443~0249¢ Glo-46S>7297
Email Email
1s-e < - il com ﬂ'ilg mee hﬂ,.) @ g mAa\. cun
2. Subject Property Informatidh J
Address/Location ‘I Parcel Identification Number(s) O
140 Lo, Conglodu) y2cd RoMre 03 41 - 090
' Toial Parcel(s) Acreage Existing Zoning and Use(s)
0. 11 @ RS 4 Lnkdad @

Page 1 of 4
Variance Application — Updated 02-2020



3. Proposed Variance Narrative

l Subject Zoning Regulation, Chapler and Section 1

_")-\-"J -'\7(\_“'\\

In the space below, please provide a narralive of the application (attach additional pages if necessary).

CRITERIA REQUIRED FOR APPROVAL OF A VARIANCE

The Board of Adjustment may grant a variance if it finds that strict application of the ordinance results in

an unnecessary hardship for the applicant, and if the variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and

intent of the ordinance. The applicant must explain, with reference to attached plans (where applicable),
how the proposed use meets these required findings (attach additional pages if necessary).

1. Unnecessary hardship would result from strict application of the ordinance. It shall not be necessary to
demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property.

Page 2 of 4
Variance Application — Updated 02-2020



2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size or topography.
Hardship resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from conditions that area common
to the neighborhood or general public, may not be the basis for granting a variance.

3. The hardship did not result from aclions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The act of purchasing i
property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be
regarded as o self-created hardship.

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose and intent of the ordinance, such that public
safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.

Page 3 of 4
Variance Application — Updated 02-2020



Staff wlll use the following checklist to determine the completeness of your application. Please verlfy all of the
listed items are included and confirm by inltialing under “Applicant Initial™. Applications determined to be
incomplete must be corrected in order fo be processed for further review.

Application Checklist Applicant Initial

[0 This opplication form, completed and signed

Application fee: $400 per application

0 Site plan or sketch lilustrating the requested variance
[0 One (1) hard copy of ALL documents
T One (1) PDF copy of ALL documenis

Acknowledgement and Signatures

By my signature below, | understand and accept all of the conditions, limitations, and obligations of the variance
application for which | am applying. | understand thot | have the burden of proving why this application meets
the required findings necessary for granting a variance. | certify that this application is complete and that all
information presented in this application is accurate o the best of my knowledge, information, and belief.

If applicable, | also appoint the applicant/agent as listed on this application to represent me and make decisions
on my behalf regarding this application during the review process. The applicant/agent is hereby cuthorized on
my behalf to:

1. Submit an application including all required supplemental information and materials;
2. Appear at public hearings to give representation and comments; and

3. Act on my behalf without fimitations with regord to any and all things directly or indirectly connected with
or arising out of this application.

_ﬂ - A/bz\ /rﬂuuofa»e. [Flaehen

erty Owner(s) Print Name(s)

ﬁ«@e/«/lf Severs

Print Name

Signature of Pr

atuyé of/Applicant/Agent

Note: This form must be signed by the owner(s) of record. If there are multiple property owners, a signature is
required for each owner of record.

o The land owner or their aftorney must be present for the cuse af the public hearing

Page 4 of 4
Variance Application — Updated 02-2020



3.

Mr. and Mrs. Meehan are requesting a zoning variance for their property 1140 Lt.
Congleton rd. Wilmington 28409.

Their intention is to build a 504 sq. ft. bedroom, bath and kitchenette addition to
accommodate Mr. Meehans aging mother.

We were made aware of a 20' periphery easement that is not noted on the
survey provided to them by ECLS dated 1-26-16

1.

The Meehan's purchased the home with the the intent of adding on this space for
Mr. Meehan's aging and now ailing mother. The Meehan's are more concerned
with moving their mother to a safe and more private living space with the
presence of Covid 19.

With a stamped survey and the fence constructed on the survey property line, it
is was reasonable to trust they could build to those same specification.

Please see attached exhibit A, B and C.

2.

The lot abuts a separate sub-division. In between is a natural creek and the new
sub-divisions lots are rear lots along this property. Those lots should have 20'
rear rear setbacks . This will maintain a natural buffer and a substantial distance
between homes that will not be built on in the future.

3

The hardship is not the result of the property owners actions.

The Meehan's purchased the property with the intent to pursue the addition for
their mother.

The home was built without the proper setbacks on the east side. The stamped
survey by ECLS dated 1-26-16 shows a 10' setback, it also states the 10'
setback in the survey text. The Homeowner's would have no reason to challenge
the stamped document.

4

The safety of each community and their residents is achieved with the existing
west side and rear setback. The east side has a natural creek buffer and the new
sub-division homes being all 20' rear setbacks. The safety, drainage and privacy
will be well maintained.



vV |

i A — Yl

FRAOJECT
Project Name

PRAJECT NO,
245170

LIENT
St Name John Langone’*x%
1140 LT.CONGLELTON
WILMINGTON N.C. i

e tioery & RAe T
Phona: ($I10) S40-5035
T2 Hosamant Avdmat | Wikiniglan, NG 28403
i um:hoqmml A3tn




8
z
5 0 .
I a #
m L v
= > _P'] I
3 B ;
2 3 W — b
= i :
. o
1
L
L
)
> EFFICIENTCY ADDITION JEFF SERENS John Langonei
140 LT CoNGeLTON o ey
WILMINGTON N T

Wliora: SRR 5405
TV Bt Auove JUNHTGHGr, NC 2BA0F
[T R Rty




]
W, .
LY 1 "e\
“h Ll LR
X, gon!
k: =k Y
2 ;;-:} ) e N
@ / & b A
" A
y m \
< # m
5 / =
= =
g 4 ]
4 z ol
/ \
# /
? EFFICIENTCY ADDITION ?%E?FRENS —on )f"John
= WILMINGTON N.C. fs _W -;'&_"}::':.f-?.-;-;”..””'-J

Fhonr, (916] 540-5ain
A B Bampar sinchet Pdareivrodt | WOHADHIIUN. O ZBAER
e B b v



DI

27-8"

5-10"

18-10"

—_—
_

‘r t 1
T
| I
- %
g " §
Tl
m o 1 |
8
> PROJECT CLIENT
b | FLOOR PLAN P Fwmee,, _John Lﬂ"9°"e\
WALMINGTON N.C. P SNy e

Plrant [910) 340 5038
221 Rosrmont Avanue | Widbmiigion, NG 2840+
JGMMGM m



Exisling House fo Remain

Rubbar Membrans
142" Sheathing

Metal Orip Edge

Double 2x4 Traated plate —

I<D4D<D4D¢P4 4.’4!54"4’4’4.4 INYNY A'S: Ty . o8 Sub Facia
248 Joist / 2 1x8 Facia
22 Ladper HZ5 Clip

R 38 Insulstion ——

112 Shestrogk «~——e———

l'l'l V '&‘d:l"‘l' o TA"' ‘l‘l"' 'l"'.l'l

2 Sheatrock 18 el
S 12 088
3
204 Wall 18 0.5 - 12" Bhontrieg

WREAARAN

LY,

NOTES:

4" Congrele Bleb .'-ll/

o ....a..ua*;_, et
i Bk -

RAISED SLAB WALL SECTION e =g

1. ALL CONTRUCTION TO COMPLY WITHLOCAL AND N.C. BUILDNG CODES,
2, MATERIALY SUBJECT TO CHANGE.

3, CHECK ELEVATIONS POR ROOF PITCH

4. 2018 NCRC 150MPH WIND ZOME.

5, SUBIECT TO CHANGE BY ENGINEER.

R

JLEIL T e )

John Langoné

CLIENT
Cliers Name

1140 LT CONGLELTON
WILMINGTON N.C,

PROJECT NO.
245170

PROJECY
Project Name

A.3

R.4









	topmostSubform[0]: 
	Page1[0]: 
	Name_of_House[0]: 
	Number_of_Weekly_Report[0]: 
	Week_Of__TO_20[0]: 
	fill_74[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_1[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_2[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_3[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_4[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_5[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_6[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_7[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_8[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_9[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_10[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_11[0]: 
	DATE__Row_12[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_12[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_12[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_12_2[0]: 
	DATE__Row_13[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_13[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_13[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_13_2[0]: 
	DATE__Row_14[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_14[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_14[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_14_2[0]: 
	DATE__Row_15[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_15[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_15[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_15_2[0]: 
	DATE__Row_16[0]: 
	DEPOSITS_AND_MONEY_RECEIVED_AT_THIS_MEETING_OR_SINCE_LAST_DEPOSIT_LIST_BY_SOURCE__Row_16[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_16[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_16_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT__TOTAL_MONEY_RECEIVED__ADD_TO_AMOUNT_AT_TOP_OF_PAGE_TO_SHOW__CASH___RECEIPTS[0]: 
	AMOUNT__TOTAL_MONEY_RECEIVED__ADD_TO_AMOUNT_AT_TOP_OF_PAGE_TO_SHOW__CASH___RECEIPTS_2[0]: 
	CASH___RECEIPTS[0]: 
	undefined_2[1]: 
	HOUSE_NAME[0]: 
	MONTHYEAR_OF[0]: 
	DATE__Row_1[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_1[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_1_2[0]: 
	DATE__Row_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_2_2[0]: 
	DATE__Row_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_3_2[0]: 
	DATE__Row_4[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_4[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_4_2[0]: 
	DATE__Row_5[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_5[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_5_2[0]: 
	DATE__Row_6[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_6[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_6_2[0]: 
	DATE__Row_7[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_7[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_7_2[0]: 
	DATE__Row_8[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_8[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_8_2[0]: 
	DATE__Row_9[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_9[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_9_2[0]: 
	DATE__Row_10[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_10[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_10_2[0]: 
	DATE__Row_11[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_11[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_11_2[0]: 
	ENTER_STATEMENT_ENDING_BALANCE[0]: 
	TOTAL_OF_ITEMS_NOT_DEPOSITED[0]: 
	BANK__STATEMENT_DATE[0]: 
	NUMBER_AND_DATE__Row_1[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_1_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_1_4[0]: 
	NUMBER_AND_DATE__Row_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_2_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_2_4[0]: 
	NUMBER_AND_DATE__Row_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_3_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_3_4[0]: 
	NUMBER_AND_DATE__Row_4[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_4_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_4_4[0]: 
	NUMBER_AND_DATE__Row_5[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_5_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_5_4[0]: 
	NUMBER_AND_DATE__Row_6[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_6_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_6_4[0]: 
	NUMBER_AND_DATE__Row_7[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_7_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_7_4[0]: 
	NUMBER_AND_DATE__Row_8[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_8_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_8_4[0]: 
	NUMBER_AND_DATE__Row_9[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_9_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_9_4[0]: 
	NUMBER_AND_DATE__Row_10[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_10_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_10_4[0]: 
	NUMBER_AND_DATE__Row_11[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_11_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_11_4[0]: 
	SUB_TOTAL[0]: 
	MINUS_TOTAL_OUTSTANDING_CHECKS[0]: 
	fill_80[0]: 
	NAME_OF_MEMBER[0]: 
	AMOUNT_DUE__EQUAL_EXPENSE_SHARE_EES_DEPOSIT[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__EQUAL_EXPENSE_SHARE_EES_DEPOSIT[0]: 
	DATE_LEFT_HOUSE__Row_1[0]: 
	REASONS__Row_1[0]: 
	AMOUNT_REFUNDED__Row_1[0]: 
	AMOUNT_REFUNDED__Row_1_2[0]: 
	DATE_REFUNDED__Row_1[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_1[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_1[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_1[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_1[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_1[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_1[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_1[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_1_2[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_1_2[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_1_2[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_1[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_2[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_2[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_2[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_2[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_2_2[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_2_2[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_2_2[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_2[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_3[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_3[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_3[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_3[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_3_2[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_3_2[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_3_2[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_3[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_4[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_4[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_4[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_4[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_4[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_4[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_4[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_4_2[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_4_2[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_4_2[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_4[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_5[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_5[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_5[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_5[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_5[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_5[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_5[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_5_2[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_5_2[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_5_2[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_5[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_6[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_6[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_6[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_6[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_6[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_6[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_6[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_6_2[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_6_2[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_6_2[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_6[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_7[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_7[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_7[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_7[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_7[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_7[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_7[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_7_2[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_7_2[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_7_2[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_7[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_8[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_8[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_8[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_8[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_8[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_8[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_8[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_8_2[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_8_2[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_8_2[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_8[0]: 
	AMOUNT_DUE__EQUAL_EXPENSE_SHARE_EES_DEPOSIT[1]: 
	AMOUNT_DUE__EQUAL_EXPENSE_SHARE_EES_DEPOSIT[2]: 
	MONTH_-_DAY[0]: 
	MEMBER_S_NAME_Or_other_person_or_entity_owing_the_house_money[0]: 
	_1[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__1[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__1_2[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__1[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__1_2[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__1[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__1_2[0]: 
	Fines__1[0]: 
	Fines__1_2[0]: 
	Balances_Due__1[0]: 
	Balances_Due__1_2[0]: 
	_2[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__2[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__2_2[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__2[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__2_2[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__2[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__2_2[0]: 
	Fines__2[0]: 
	Fines__2_2[0]: 
	Balances_Due__2[0]: 
	Balances_Due__2_2[0]: 
	_3[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__3[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__3_2[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__3[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__3_2[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__3[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__3_2[0]: 
	Fines__3[0]: 
	Fines__3_2[0]: 
	Balances_Due__3[0]: 
	Balances_Due__3_2[0]: 
	_4[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__4[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__4_2[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__4[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__4_2[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__4[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__4_2[0]: 
	Fines__4[0]: 
	Fines__4_2[0]: 
	Balances_Due__4[0]: 
	Balances_Due__4_2[0]: 
	_5[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__5[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__5_2[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__5[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__5_2[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__5[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__5_2[0]: 
	Fines__5[0]: 
	Fines__5_2[0]: 
	Balances_Due__5[0]: 
	Balances_Due__5_2[0]: 
	_6[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__6[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__6_2[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__6[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__6_2[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__6[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__6_2[0]: 
	Fines__6[0]: 
	Fines__6_2[0]: 
	Balances_Due__6[0]: 
	Balances_Due__6_2[0]: 
	_7[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__7[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__7_2[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__7[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__7_2[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__7[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__7_2[0]: 
	Fines__7[0]: 
	Fines__7_2[0]: 
	Balances_Due__7[0]: 
	Balances_Due__7_2[0]: 
	_8[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__8[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__8_2[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__8[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__8_2[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__8[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__8_2[0]: 
	Fines__8[0]: 
	Fines__8_2[0]: 
	Balances_Due__8[0]: 
	Balances_Due__8_2[0]: 
	_9[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__9[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__9_2[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__9[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__9_2[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__9[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__9_2[0]: 
	Fines__9[0]: 
	Fines__9_2[0]: 
	Balances_Due__9[0]: 
	Balances_Due__9_2[0]: 
	_10[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__10[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__10_2[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__10[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__10_2[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__10[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__10_2[0]: 
	Fines__10[0]: 
	Fines__10_2[0]: 
	Balances_Due__10[0]: 
	Balances_Due__10_2[0]: 
	_11[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__11[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__11_2[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__11[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__11_2[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__11[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__11_2[0]: 
	Fines__11[0]: 
	Fines__11_2[0]: 
	Balances_Due__11[0]: 
	Balances_Due__11_2[0]: 
	_12[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__12[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__12_2[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__12[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__12_2[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__12[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__12_2[0]: 
	Fines__12[0]: 
	Fines__12_2[0]: 
	Balances_Due__12[0]: 
	Balances_Due__12_2[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__TOTALS[0]: 
	Weekly_Equal_Expense_Share_EES__TOTALS_2[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__TOTALS[0]: 
	EES_Deposit__TOTALS_2[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__TOTALS[0]: 
	Miscellaneous_Items__TOTALS_2[0]: 
	Balances_Due__TOTALS[0]: 
	Balances_Due__TOTALS_2[0]: 
	undefined[1]: 
	NAME_OF_HOUSE[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__1__Living_Room[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__1__Living_Room_2[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__1__Living_Room[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__1__Living_Room_2[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__1__Living_Room[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__1__Living_Room_2[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__1__Living_Room[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__1__Living_Room_2[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__1__Living_Room[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__1__Living_Room_2[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__2_Kitchen[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__2_Kitchen_2[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__2_Kitchen[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__2_Kitchen_2[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__2_Kitchen[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__2_Kitchen_2[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__2_Kitchen[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__2_Kitchen_2[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__2_Kitchen[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__2_Kitchen_2[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__3_Laundry_Room[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__3_Laundry_Room_2[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__3_Laundry_Room[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__3_Laundry_Room_2[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__3_Laundry_Room[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__3_Laundry_Room_2[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__3_Laundry_Room[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__3_Laundry_Room_2[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__3_Laundry_Room[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__3_Laundry_Room_2[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__4_HallStairs[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__4_HallStairs_2[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__4_HallStairs[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__4_HallStairs_2[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__4_HallStairs[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__4_HallStairs_2[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__4_HallStairs[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__4_HallStairs_2[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__4_HallStairs[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__4_HallStairs_2[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__5_Bathroom_No_1[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__5_Bathroom_No_1_2[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__5_Bathroom_No_1[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__5_Bathroom_No_1_2[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__5_Bathroom_No_1[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__5_Bathroom_No_1_2[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__5_Bathroom_No_1[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__5_Bathroom_No_1_2[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__5_Bathroom_No_1[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__5_Bathroom_No_1_2[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__6_Bathroom_No_2[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__6_Bathroom_No_2_2[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__6_Bathroom_No_2[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__6_Bathroom_No_2_2[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__6_Bathroom_No_2[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__6_Bathroom_No_2_2[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__6_Bathroom_No_2[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__6_Bathroom_No_2_2[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__6_Bathroom_No_2[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__6_Bathroom_No_2_2[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__7[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__7_2[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__7[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__7_2[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__7[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__7_2[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__7[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__7_2[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__7[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__7_2[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__8[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__8_2[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__8[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__8_2[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__8[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__8_2[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__8[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__8_2[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__8[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__8_2[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__9[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__9_2[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__9[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__9_2[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__9[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__9_2[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__9[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__9_2[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__9[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__9_2[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__10_Yard_-_Front_of_House[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__10_Yard_-_Front_of_House_2[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__10_Yard_-_Front_of_House[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__10_Yard_-_Front_of_House_2[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__10_Yard_-_Front_of_House[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__10_Yard_-_Front_of_House_2[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__10_Yard_-_Front_of_House[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__10_Yard_-_Front_of_House_2[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__10_Yard_-_Front_of_House[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__10_Yard_-_Front_of_House_2[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__11_Yard_-_Rear_of_House[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__11_Yard_-_Rear_of_House_2[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__11_Yard_-_Rear_of_House[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__11_Yard_-_Rear_of_House_2[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__11_Yard_-_Rear_of_House[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__11_Yard_-_Rear_of_House_2[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__11_Yard_-_Rear_of_House[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__11_Yard_-_Rear_of_House_2[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__11_Yard_-_Rear_of_House[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__11_Yard_-_Rear_of_House_2[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__12_SAFETY_Working_smoke_alarms__extinquishers___exit_doors[0]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__12_SAFETY_Working_smoke_alarms__extinquishers___exit_doors_2[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__12_SAFETY_Working_smoke_alarms__extinquishers___exit_doors[0]: 
	Week_No_2_NAME__12_SAFETY_Working_smoke_alarms__extinquishers___exit_doors_2[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__12_SAFETY_Working_smoke_alarms__extinquishers___exit_doors[0]: 
	Week_No_3_NAME__12_SAFETY_Working_smoke_alarms__extinquishers___exit_doors_2[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__12_SAFETY_Working_smoke_alarms__extinquishers___exit_doors[0]: 
	Week_No_4_NAME__12_SAFETY_Working_smoke_alarms__extinquishers___exit_doors_2[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__12_SAFETY_Working_smoke_alarms__extinquishers___exit_doors[0]: 
	Week_No_5_NAME__12_SAFETY_Working_smoke_alarms__extinquishers___exit_doors_2[0]: 
	Date[0]: 
	Date[1]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__3_Laundry_Room[1]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__3_Laundry_Room[2]: 
	Week_No_1_NAME__3_Laundry_Room[3]: 

	Page2[0]: 
	fill_77[0]: 
	EXPENDITURE_BY_CHECK_AND_CASH__Row_2[0]: 
	PAID_TO_AND_PURPOSE__Row_1[0]: 
	CHECK_NO__Row_1[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_1_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_1_4[0]: 
	EXPENDITURE_BY_CHECK_AND_CASH__Row_3[0]: 
	PAID_TO_AND_PURPOSE__Row_2[0]: 
	CHECK_NO__Row_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_2_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_2_4[0]: 
	EXPENDITURE_BY_CHECK_AND_CASH__Row_4[0]: 
	PAID_TO_AND_PURPOSE__Row_3[0]: 
	CHECK_NO__Row_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_3_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_3_4[0]: 
	EXPENDITURE_BY_CHECK_AND_CASH__Row_5[0]: 
	PAID_TO_AND_PURPOSE__Row_4[0]: 
	CHECK_NO__Row_4[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_4_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_4_4[0]: 
	EXPENDITURE_BY_CHECK_AND_CASH__Row_6[0]: 
	PAID_TO_AND_PURPOSE__Row_5[0]: 
	CHECK_NO__Row_5[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_5_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_5_4[0]: 
	EXPENDITURE_BY_CHECK_AND_CASH__Row_7[0]: 
	PAID_TO_AND_PURPOSE__Row_6[0]: 
	CHECK_NO__Row_6[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_6_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_6_4[0]: 
	EXPENDITURE_BY_CHECK_AND_CASH__Row_8[0]: 
	PAID_TO_AND_PURPOSE__Row_7[0]: 
	CHECK_NO__Row_7[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_7_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_7_4[0]: 
	EXPENDITURE_BY_CHECK_AND_CASH__Row_9[0]: 
	PAID_TO_AND_PURPOSE__Row_8[0]: 
	CHECK_NO__Row_8[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_8_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_8_4[0]: 
	EXPENDITURE_BY_CHECK_AND_CASH__Row_10[0]: 
	PAID_TO_AND_PURPOSE__Row_9[0]: 
	CHECK_NO__Row_9[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_9_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_9_4[0]: 
	EXPENDITURE_BY_CHECK_AND_CASH__Row_11[0]: 
	PAID_TO_AND_PURPOSE__Row_10[0]: 
	CHECK_NO__Row_10[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_10_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_10_4[0]: 
	AMOUNT__SUBTRACT_TOTAL_MONEY_PAID_OUT[0]: 
	AMOUNT__SUBTRACT_TOTAL_MONEY_PAID_OUT_2[0]: 
	fill_78[0]: 
	DATE_DUE__Row_1[0]: 
	TO_WHOM_AND_FOR_WHAT__Row_1[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_1_5[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_1_6[0]: 
	DATE_DUE__Row_2[0]: 
	TO_WHOM_AND_FOR_WHAT__Row_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_2_5[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_2_6[0]: 
	DATE_DUE__Row_3[0]: 
	TO_WHOM_AND_FOR_WHAT__Row_3[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_3_5[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_3_6[0]: 
	DATE_DUE__Row_4[0]: 
	TO_WHOM_AND_FOR_WHAT__Row_4[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_4_5[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_4_6[0]: 
	DATE_DUE__Row_5[0]: 
	TO_WHOM_AND_FOR_WHAT__Row_5[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_5_5[0]: 
	AMOUNT__Row_5_6[0]: 
	AMOUNT__TOTAL[0]: 
	AMOUNT__TOTAL_2[0]: 
	fill_78[1]: 
	fill_31[0]: 
	____Plus_2[0]: 
	fill_33[0]: 
	fill_35[0]: 
	____Plus_3[0]: 
	fill_36[0]: 
	fill_38[0]: 
	Name__Row_1[0]: 
	Amount_Owed__Row_1[0]: 
	Name__Row_1_2[0]: 
	Amount_Owed__Row_1_2[0]: 
	Name__Row_2[0]: 
	Amount_Owed__Row_2[0]: 
	Name__Row_2_2[0]: 
	Amount_Owed__Row_2_2[0]: 
	Name__Row_3[0]: 
	Amount_Owed__Row_3[0]: 
	Name__Row_3_2[0]: 
	Amount_Owed__Row_3_2[0]: 
	_2000_Oxford_House_World_Services__1010_Wayne_Avenue__Suite_400__Silver_Spring__MD_20910_2[0]: 
	_2000_Oxford_House_World_Services__1010_Wayne_Avenue__Suite_400__Silver_Spring__MD_20910_2[1]: 
	_2000_Oxford_House_World_Services__1010_Wayne_Avenue__Suite_400__Silver_Spring__MD_20910_2[2]: 
	_2000_Oxford_House_World_Services__1010_Wayne_Avenue__Suite_400__Silver_Spring__MD_20910_2[3]: 
	_2000_Oxford_House_World_Services__1010_Wayne_Avenue__Suite_400__Silver_Spring__MD_20910_2[4]: 
	_2000_Oxford_House_World_Services__1010_Wayne_Avenue__Suite_400__Silver_Spring__MD_20910_2[5]: 
	fill_31[1]: 
	NAME_OF_MEMBER_SIDE_2[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_1_2[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_1_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_1_3[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_1_3[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_1_3[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_1_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_1_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_1_4[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_1_4[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_1_4[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_1_2[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_2_2[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_2_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_2_3[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_2_3[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_2_3[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_2_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_2_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_2_4[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_2_4[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_2_4[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_2_2[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_3_2[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_3_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_3_3[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_3_3[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_3_3[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_3_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_3_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_3_4[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_3_4[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_3_4[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_3_2[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_4_2[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_4_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_4_3[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_4_3[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_4_3[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_4_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_4_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_4_4[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_4_4[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_4_4[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_4_2[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_5_2[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_5_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_5_3[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_5_3[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_5_3[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_5_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_5_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_5_4[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_5_4[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_5_4[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_5_2[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_6_2[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_6_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_6_3[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_6_3[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_6_3[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_6_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_6_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_6_4[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_6_4[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_6_4[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_6_2[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_7_2[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_7_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_7_3[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_7_3[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_7_3[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_7_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_7_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_7_4[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_7_4[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_7_4[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_7_2[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_8_2[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_8_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_8_3[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_8_3[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_8_3[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_8_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_8_2[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_8_4[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_8_4[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_8_4[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_8_2[0]: 
	WEEK_OF__Row_9[0]: 
	EES_PAYABLE__Row_9[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_9[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_9[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_9[0]: 
	ITEM__Row_9[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAYABLE__Row_9[0]: 
	AMOUNT_PAID__Row_9_2[0]: 
	DATE_PAID__Row_9_2[0]: 
	BALANCE__Row_9_2[0]: 
	TOTAL_BALANCE__Row_9[0]: 




